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. CORPORATE PROFILE

b AEn

Parkson Retail Group Limited (the"Company") is a leading
nationwide lifestyle retail operator in the People's Republic
of China ("the PRC"). The Parkson brand was introduced
to the Beijing market in the early 1990's and has now
operated and managed a diversified collection of retail
formats - including department stores, shopping malls, city
outlets, supermarkets and food & beverage outlets. As of
31 December 2019, through the Company's subsidiaries, a
joint venture and associates (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the "Group"), the Group operated and managed 38
stores (including concept stores "Parkson Beauty"), 2 Parkson
Newcore City Malls, 1 shopping mall, supermarkets, fashion
and food & beverage outlets in over 27 major cities across
China.

Localisation and consistent market positioning are the key
strategies for the continuous growth and success of Parkson.
We are tailoring our merchandise assortments, brand mix
and floor space allocation on a store-by-store basis to better
serve our targeted middle to middle-upper end consumers
in every city that we operate. The Group offers a wide range
of internationally renowned brands of fashion and lifestyle
related merchandises focusing on four main categories
of merchandise namely, Fashion & Apparel, Cosmetics
& Accessories, Household & Electrical, and Groceries &
Perishables, targeting the young and contemporary market.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEXR

As at 3 April 2020

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Juliana Cheng San San

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Ko Desmond
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

REGISTERED OFFICE

Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road
Changning District
Shanghai 200051

China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1010, 10th Floor
Harcourt House

39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie, FCS (PE), FCIS

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman)
Ko Desmond

Yau Ming Kim, Robert

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Yau Ming Kim, Robert (Chairman)

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Ko Desmond

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)
Yau Ming Kim, Robert
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.0. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN THE PRC

Bank of China

Agricultural Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
China Construction Bank

China Merchants Bank

Bank of Communications

PRINCIPAL BANKERS IN HONG KONG

BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

WEBSITE

www.parksongroup.com.cn
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EXPANSION IN THE YEAR 2019
TSNEEXBERE

A new supermarket opened in Mianyang in
April 2019.
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EXPANSION IN THE YEAR 2019
TE-NTERER

A new gourmet supermarket opened in Shanghai in
August 2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRSE

The Board is delighted to present the annual report of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 ("Year under Review"). In 2019, the
Group achieved stable performance, which demonstrated its dedication to
continue diversifying its retail formats and enhanced product offerings to
reinforce the Group's position as a leading lifestyle retailer in China.

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Under multiple fronts of downward pressure including the prolonged trade
tensions between China and the United States, China's economic growth
slowed in 2019 to 6.19%, compared with an economic growth of 6.6% in
2018, according to the latest figures announced by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China.

China's retail market also faced a number of challenges. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics, China's total retail sales of consumer
goods grew by 8.0% in 2019, compared with a sector growth of 9.0% in
2018. The growth of retail sector has been easing for two consecutive
years. The economic uncertainty has had Chinese consumers think twice
before making any spending decision. Amid risks, however, the retail
market demonstrated remarkable resilience compared with other sectors.
The stable social and economic environments provide a solid support for
the consumer market. Consumption is expected to remain China's leading
driver for economic growth with a positive outlook in 2020.

The consumption upgrade trend has been steadily growing as consumers’
demands for products with higher quality and better user experience
have increased constantly. Although the growth of overall retail sales has
slowed down, some sectors such as cosmetics, food, daily necessities and
restaurants have increased steadily, with a higher growth rate than that of
overall retail sales. This coincides with the Group's strategy of sustainable
business development, which takes certain specific consumption sectors as
the focus of business development, strives to improve customer experience
and actively grasps the consumption upgrade trend, so as to capture the
opportunities of China's retail market.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

BUSINESS RESULTS

During the Year under Review, the Group recorded total gross sales
proceeds (“GSP") of RMB14,181.2 million inclusive of value-added tax,
a decline of 6.7% compared to last year, which was mainly due to the
closure of underperforming stores in 2019 and the decline in same store
sales ("SSS"). Total operating revenues of the Group increased by RMB178.2
million or 3.7% to RMB5,026.0 million, profit from operations increased by
179.3% year-on-year to RMB474.5 million. SSS decreased by 3.9% in 2019.

For the business performance, Parkson continued to diversify its retail
formats to meet growing consumer demand for quality products and
service. In order to meet the demand of consumption upgrade, the Group
has implemented a series of strategies, including the expansion of product
categories such as more international cosmetic brands, sports and apparel
brands on top of traditional products, as well as upgrading traditional
supermarkets into gourmet supermarkets in department stores to cater for
rapid changing of consumer demands.

During the Year under Review, to better utilise resources, we have closed
five underperforming stores. As of 31 December 2019, the Group operated
and managed 38 Parkson stores (including concept stores "Parkson
Beauty"), 1 Lion Mall, 2 Parkson Newcore City Malls, supermarkets, fashion
and food & beverage outlets, in 27 major cities across China.

DIFFERENTIAL POSITIONING CREATES SYNERGIES

Following a period of business transformation, Parkson is expanding
its retail portfolio while flexibly applying various operating models and
financial arrangements to strengthen the Group's position as a leading
lifestyle retailer in China. In June 2019, the Group secured the usage right
of a property above Bayi Guan Station of Nanchang Rail Transit Line 1
with a total gross area of 42,900 square meters, and this new Nanchang
Bayi Guan Store saw its grand opening on 16 January 2020. The new
department store is located on the prosperous Zhongshan Road in the old
city of Nanchang, above the intersection of two subway lines and is just
across the road from Nanchang Zhongshan Road Store. The Zhongshan
Road Store is a hub for high-end brands while the Bayi Guan Store focuses
on young and fashion brands. The tactics of differential positioning along
with close collaboration of the two stores have created synergies and
attracted a wider customer group, allowing the Group more flexibility while
leveraging on its diversified retail formats.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERRSE

STRATEGIC BUSINESS EXPANSION

In terms of the department store business, the Group's second department
store in Datong, Shanxi Province is expected to open in the second
quarter of 2020. It is expected that this retail space will be a “Complex of
department stores and shopping centers”, which will further diversify the
product mix within the facility. It also fits into the Group's Differential
Positioning tactics for "Multiple Stores in a City", which aim to serve more
customers with different spending habits. In addition, preparation work
for the Group's department store in Tongren city, Guizhou Province is well
under way and the store is expected to welcome guests in the second
quarter of 2020.

STRONG PERFORMANCE OF BEAUTY SEGMENT

In recent years, the Group has been actively exploring the beauty segment,
and has recorded ideal performance. The Group also focuses on the
innovation and exploration of business model in this field. "Parkson
Beauty”, the Group's beauty concept store, has been performing well
and received positive response from customers. It has attracted various
international beauty brands and created a brand-new beauty upgrading
experience for consumers. Up to now, "Parkson Beauty" has set up three
retail outlets in Changsha, Qingdao and Nanning, and has become a leading
collection store of high-end beauty brands. In order to enhance the brand
image and popularity of the Group's beauty segment, the Group has made
a number of promotions actively. It is worth mentioning that, Malaysia's
Lee Chong Wei, who is inducted into the Badminton Hall of Fame, was
invited to "Parkson Beauty" as a "one-day manager” in its Changsha IFS
store in November 2019. The event attracted a large number of customers
and fans of Lee Chong Wei.

FAST FASHION SEGMENT WITH BRIGHT PROSPECTS

In addition to the beauty segment, the fast fashion segment has become
another new business direction of the Group. In 2019, Parkson has
launched its self-owned fast fashion brand "evry-D" and set up sales
counters in five retail stores within a short period. With its unique brand
concept and business model, “evry-D" has attracted the attention of
consumers and the industry. It is also a new trend of Parkson in business
transformation and innovation. In view of the growing consumption power
of the younger generation, the Group will continue to expand the scale
of "evry-D" counters in 2020, so as to enhance its brand influence and
enlarge its market share. Besides, the Group has also actively discussed
with other brand operators to seek feasible cross-border cooperation, and
is committed to promoting the long-term development of the Group's
fashion sector through a variety of operation modes.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

Whilst the macroeconomic environment is expected to be uncertain
in the coming year, we remain optimistic about China's retail industry.
Furthermore, our strategic business transformation has brought significant
benefits to the Group through our practice in the past few years. With
more than two decades of experience in the department store sector, we
are confident that Parkson can champion the fast-changing retail sector
by improving the innovation of operation models and accelerating the
development of new businesses. We will remain deeply committed to the
Chinese market and create greater long-term value for our shareholders.

Looking forward, we will expand our retail portfolio at the right pace and
in the right manner. In order to meet the fast pace of modern life as well
as customers' expectations of a pleasant shopping experience, Parkson,
which owns a number of one-stop comprehensive retail premises, is
poised to take advantage of our product sales, logistics and data collection
capabilities to create a comprehensive and relaxed shopping experience for
customers.

Meanwhile, Parkson will continue to carry out its strategy of upgrading
brands and product categories by diversifying retail formats and further
exploring omni-channel marketing. It will also be devoted to developing
its various business segments, including the beauty segment led by
"Parkson Beauty" and the fashion segment led by its own fast fashion
brand "evry-D". The Group will actively strengthen the cooperation
between its own brands and other brands, create more interactive effects,
and constantly improve brand awareness and product quality. We believe
that by virtue of the Group's diversified business strategy and its leading
position in China's retail market, the Group is able to provide customers
with the best quality services constantly, achieve outstanding performance
amid challenging retail environment and drive the Group's long-term
development.

| would like to take this opportunity to express our gratitude to our
employees, customers, shareholders, suppliers and business partners for
their unwavering support throughout the year. We look forward to working
with you closely in the years to come.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MFRE

Change (%)

Operating Results (RMB'000) wEEE (ANRETT)
Gross sales proceeds' HEMGIARE 15592728 14313028 13763634  13,184983 12,560,987 (4.7%)
Total operating revenues mElamEE 4,738,679 4,605,892 4,677,243 4,847,808 5,026,018 3.7%
(Loss)/profit from operations e (EB) /I (94,472) (201,901) 83,663 169,932 474,484 179.20
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE)/FIH (182,635) 154,129 (133,753) (54612)  (203,680) 273.0%
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of [SUNGIE =N/

the parent (E8),/7E (186,154) 147,257 (135,952) (79283)  (222,751) 181.0%
Basic (loss)/earning per share (RMB)? BRER (BE) /BT

(AR®) (0.069) 0.056 (0.052) (0.030) (0.085) 183.3%

Interim dividends per share (RMB) FRPHRE (ARE) 0.040 0.020 - 0.030 - (100.0%)
Final dividends per share (RMB) BRAHRE (ARE) 0.010 - - - - -
Full year dividends per share (RMB) BR2FRE (ARE) 0.050 0020 - 0.030 - (100.0%)
Gross sales proceeds Total operating revenues
HEMBNEAH RMBO00 A R F 7T Rewndn RMBO00 A R F 7T

5,026,018
15,592,728
12,560,987 4738679 4,847,808
14,313,028 /30, 4,677,243
13,763,634 4,605,892
I I 13'184,983 I I I
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBFRE

Summary of consolidated REVBRRAERRE

statement of financial positon (AR F7T)

(RMB'000)
Non-current assets ERBEE 8,604,328 6,888,397 6,467,608 8,024,164 10,769,810
Current assets MEEE 4,621,223 6,278,606 6,507,764 4568318 4,776,190
Total assets BWEE 13,225,551 13,167,003 12,975,372 12,592,482 15,546,000
Current liabilities mEAaE 3,788,053 3,832,668 6,935,446 3,238,307 4,007,043
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 4,398,184 4,458,543 1,120,821 4729325 7,192,624
Net assets BESE 5,039,314 4,875,792 4,919,105 4624850 4,346,333
Represented by ATFIEERT:
Equity attributable to BRAEIMAA

owners of the parent FEIE 4,972,268 4,821,046 4,873,963 4509939 4,230,661
Non-controlling interests R = 67,046 54,746 45,142 114,91 115,672
Total equity B 5,039,314 4,875,792 4,919,105 4624850 4,346,333
NOTES: B & -

1.

GSP (excluded value-added tax) represent the sum of sales proceeds from
direct sales and concessionaire sales, income from providing consultancy
and management services, rental income, credit service income and other
operating revenues.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year of approximately RMB222,751,000 and the weighted average
number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2018
is based on the net loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
for the year of approximately RMB79,283,000 and the weighted average
number of 2,634,532,000 shares in issue during the year.

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(pEIEREY ekl

FINANCIAL REVIEW
GSP and Operating Revenues

During the 2019, GSP (consists of direct sales, sales proceeds from
concessionaire sales, rental incomes, consultancy and management service
fees, credit service income and other operating revenues) decreased by
6.7% year-on-year to RMB14,181.2 million (inclusive of value-added tax),
mainly due to closure of underperforming stores in 2019 and the decline in
SSS. SSS decreased by 3.9% in 2019.

TOTAL MERCHANDISE SALES

Bt 7% [ B8

HEMESREAERKE NG
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For the year ended 31 December

BEEZt-R=t—-HLEE

2019 2018 Year-on-

—B-NF —FN\F year change

RMB'000 9% of total RMB'000 % of total (%)

IHEZEN FesErn B8

ARBTRT Bk ARETT B (%)

Concessionaire sales FErEEHEE 8,963,992 76.8% 9,961,302 81.1% (10.0%)
Direct sales HEHEE 2,712,119 23.2% 2,323,660 18.99% 16.7%
11,676,111 100.0% 12,284,962 100.0% (5.0%)

Total merchandise sales decreased by RMB608.9 million or 5.0% to
RMB11,676.1 million (net of value-added tax) in 2019. Concessionaire
sales continued to be the key sales driver in 2019, but as a percentage of
our total merchandise sales, it decreased in 2019 compared to 2018. This
decrease was primarily due to the growth in sales from our Cosmetics &
Accessories category in direct sales, which was mainly attributable to the
robust performance of beauty segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MERCHANDISE SALES MIX

BIRES R R DT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=t—-BLEE

2019 2018

—E—-hEF —E-N\F

% of total % of total

merchandise merchandise

sales sales

LS b 3H & B 5

HE L B DL

(L)) (%)

Cosmetics & Accessories {b it &% £ B £ 51.4% 48.0%
Fashion & Apparel Ry 2% B AR 5 40.8% 43.3%
Groceries & Perishables RmMkiEE 5.1% 5.7%
Household & Electrical KEAMEES 2.7% 3.0%
100.0% 100.0%

In 2019, sales from Cosmetics & Accessories category, which constituted
51.4% of our total merchandise sales, demonstrated faster growth
compared to other categories, mainly attributable to the opening of
standalone concept store of Parkson Beauty in May and September 2018
and our efforts to enhance market awareness of our beauty segment.

Merchandise gross margin

The Group's merchandise gross margin (a combination of concessionaire
commission rate and the direct sales margin) stabilized at 16.0% in 2019,
consistent with last year.

Total operating revenues

Total operating revenues of the Group increased by RMB178.2 million or
3.7% to RMB5,026.0 million in 2019, which was primarily attributable to
(i) the increase in direct sales of RMB388.5 million which was contributed
by the strong sales performance of the Cosmetics & Accessories category
and (i) inclusion of the revenue of RMB57.1 million in credit services
generated by Parkson Credit Sdn Bhd which was acquired in October
2018. The increase was partially offset by the decrease in commissions
from concessionaire sales due to closure of unprofitable stores and rental
income due to the impact of adoption of IFRS 16.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BV R DT

Operating Expenses
Purchase of goods and change in inventories

The purchase of goods and change in inventories represented the cost
of sales for direct sales. In line with the increase in direct sales, cost of
sales increased by 14.7% to RMB2,270.5 million in 2019 from RMB1,979.6
million in 2018.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased by 2.6% to RMB666.6 million in 2019 from
RMB684.2 million in 2018. This decrease was primarily due to the closure
of unprofitable stores in 2019. The decrease was partially offset by the
increase in staff costs incurred by Parkson Beauty, PLAYUP and credit
service and an increase in base salaries of our employees. On a same store
basis, staff costs increased by 1.2%.

Staff costs as a percentage of GSP increased from 5.2% in 2018 to 5.3% in
2019.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation increased by 162.5% to RMB696.7 million in
2019 from RMB265.4 million in 2018. The significant increase was largely
attributable to the impact of adoption of IFRS 16. In 2019, RMB456.9
million of depreciation expense on the right-of-use assets was charged to
depreciation and amortisation.

Without the impact of IFRS 16, depreciation and amortisation decreased by
RMB25.6 million to RMB239.8 million in 2019. The decrease was primarily
due to savings from closure of stores and fully depreciated assets in some
stores. On a same store basis, depreciation charges decreased by 14.0%,
mainly due to the fully depreciated assets mentioned above.

Without the impact of IFRS 16 on depreciation and amortisation,
depreciation and amortisation as a percentage of GSP decreased from 2.0%
in 2018 to 1.9% in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Rental expenses

Rental expenses decreased by 87.8% to RMB113.9 million in 2019 from
RMB937.3 million in 2018. The significant decrease was primarily due to
the impact of adoption of IFRS 16. Under IFRS 16, rental expenses are
replaced with depreciation expense on the right-of-use assets and interest
expense on the lease liabilities.

Without the impact of IFRS 16, rental expenses decreased by RMB85.5
million or 9.1% to RMB851.8 million in 2019. The decrease was mainly due
to (i) lease term renegotiation of some stores within the Group; and (ii)
savings from closure of underperforming stores in 2019. On a same store
basis, rental expenses decreased by 1.1%.

Without the impact of IFRS 16 on rental expenses, rental expenses as a
percentage of GSP decreased from 7.1% in 2018 to 6.8% in 2019.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which consist of (a) utilities cost; (b) marketing,
promotional and selling expenses; (c) property management expenses; (d)
general administrative expenses; and (e) city development and educational
surcharge, decreased by 0.9% to RMB803.8 million in 2019 from RMB811.3
million in 2018 as a result of closure of underperforming stores in 2019
and management's effort to rationalize cost within the Group. On a same
store basis, other operating expenses decreased by 7.4%.

Other operating expenses as a percentage of GSP increased from 6.2% in
2018 to 6.4% in 2019.

Profit from Operations

The Group generated a profit from operations of RMB474.5 million for
2019, an increase of RMB304.6 million or 179.3% compared to RMB169.9
million recorded in 2018.

Without the impact of IFRS 16 on profit from operations, profit from
operations increased by RMB79.8 million or 46.9% to RMB249.7 million in
2019; profit from operations as a percentage of GSP increased from 1.3%
in 2018 to 2.0% in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BV R DT

Finance Income/Costs

The Group's finance income decreased by 46.1% to RMB75.4 million in
2019 from RMB139.9 million in 2018. Under IFRS 16, RMB28.6 million
of interest income on the net investments in sublease was recognised in
finance income in 2019. Without the impact of IFRS 16, finance income
decreased by RMB93.1 million or 66.5% to RMB46.8 million in 2019.

The Group's finance costs increased significantly to RMB662.9 million in
2019 from RMB208.1 million in 2018. Under IFRS 16, RMB425.0 million
of interest expense on the lease liability was charged to finance costs in
2019. Without the impact of IFRS 16, finance costs increased by RMB29.7
million or 14.3% to RMB237.8 million in 2019. This increase was primarily
attributable to the higher interest rate charged for the bank loans
compared with bonds.

Share of Profits of a Joint Venture

This is the share of profits from Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development
Co., Ltd., a joint venture of the Group. The share of profits decreased to
RMB13.6 million in 2019 from RMB16.2 million in 2018. This decrease
was primarily due to the negative impact on local consumption by the
slowdown in the PRC economy.

Share of Profits of Associates

This is the share of results from the Group's associated companies. Share
of profits of associates decreased to RMB7.1 million in 2019 from RMB7.9
million in 2018. This decrease was primarily due to the negative impact of
IFRS 16 of RMB7.9 million. Without the impact of IFRS 16, share of profits
of associates increased by RMB7.1 million to RMB15.0 million in 2019. This
increase was primarily attributable to the profit from Parkson Newcore
which entered into the stable development period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Loss)/Profit before Tax (“PBT")

Loss before tax decreased by 138.6% year-on-year to RMB48.6 million in
2019, compared to a profit before tax of RMB125.8 million in 2018. This
decrease was primarily due to the impact of adoption of IFRS 16. The
combination of straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use assets and
effective interest rate method applied on the lease liabilities results in a
higher total charge to profit or loss in the initial years of the lease, and
decreasing expense during the latter part of the lease term. The negative
impact of IFRS 16 on PBT for 2019 was RMB180.3 million.

Without the impact of IFRS 16, our PBT increased by RMB5.9 million to
RMB131.7 million in 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to our
increased revenues and gains on disposal of a property in 2019.

Without the impact of IFRS 16 on PBT, PBT as a percentage of GSP
remained stable at 1.0% in 2019.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expense decreased by 14.0% to RMB155.1 million
in 2019 from RMB180.4 million in 2018, mainly due to (i) the withholding
tax of RMB64.0 million accrued for dividend distribution and (ii) the
decrease of profit before tax.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our loss for the year increased by RMB149.1
million to RMB203.7 million in 2019 from RMB54.6 million in 2018.
Without the impact of IFRS 16, our loss for the year increased by RMB5.3
million or 9.7% to RMB59.9 million in 2019.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Parent

Loss attributable to the owners of the parent increased from RMB79.3
million in 2018 to RMB222.8 million in 2019. Without the impact of IFRS
16, loss attributable to owners of the parent increased by RMB0.7 million
or 0.9% to RMB80.0 million in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BV R DT
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Impact of IFRS 16 on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

The following tables show the adjustments recognised for each individual
line item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals disclosed cannot be
recalculated from the numbers provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE-_ZT-hEF+ZA=+—-BLEFE

Results
without Impact of Results as
IFRS 16 IFRS 16 reported
RERH B
PR B 7 2] [ B 75
& Z Al HEAR|
£165% £169% 23k
OES N S
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T ARBT T
Revenue W 25 4,627,087 (58,584) 4,568,503
Other operating revenues E &2 W zs 460,555 (3,040) 457,515
Depreciation and amortisation PrEE (239,774) (456,900) (696,674)
Rental expenses HeMX (851,765) 737,832 (113,933)
Other operating expenses Hip e Mz (809,321) 5,525 (803,796)
Profit from operations RERE 249,651 224,833 474,484
Finance income B 75 U A 46,821 28,590 7541
Finance costs B R AR (237,838) (425,040) (662,878)
Share of profit of a joint venture JBih—RE &R ENBE 14,358 (764) 13,594
Share of profit of associates FE (G B = 2 5] R 14,982 (7,908) 7,074
Profit/(loss) before tax BATFE, (FE) 131,677 (180,289) (48,612)
Income tax expense Frig i it (191,565) 36,497 (155,068)
Loss for the year FEFIE (59,888) (143,792) (203,680)
Attributable to: ATIEB B
Owners of the parent BARIFIAE A (80,005) (142,746) (222,751)
Non-controlling interests FEVE RS 1 = 20,117 (1,046) 19,071
(59,888) (143,792) (203,680)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the cash and cash equivalents and deposits with
licensed banks of the Group (aggregate of principal guaranteed investment
deposit, time deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and cash and bank balances deposited with licensed banks) stood at
RMB4,493.7 million, representing a reduction of RMB377.0 million or 7.7%
from balance as at 31 December 2018 of RMB4,870.7 million. The decrease
was primarily due to (i) net cash inflow from operating activities amounted
to RMB589.9 million; (ii) net cash inflow from investing activities
amounted to RMB105.4 million; and (iii) net cash outflow from financing
activities amounted to RMB1,072.3 million.

Total debt to total assets ratio of the Group was 25.9% as at 31 December
2019.

Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's current assets as at 31 December 2019 was RMB4,776.2
million. Net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 decreased by 6.0%
to RMB4,346.3 million.

Information on the Financial Products

Investment in principal guaranteed deposits refer to the principal
preservation type wealth management products subscribed by the Group
from licensed banks operate in China. As at 31 December 2019, the balance
of these products was RMB250.1 million, accounting for approximately
1.6% of the total assets of the Group.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss refer to the non-
principal preservation type wealth management products subscribed by
the Group from licensed banks operate in China. As at 31 December 2019,
the fair value of these products was RMB250.8 million, accounting for
approximately 1.6% of the total assets of the Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged deposits of RMB1,188.0
million, pledged buildings, investment properties and prepaid land lease
payment with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB2,292.6 million,
RMB286.8 million and RMB369.9 million respectively to secure general
bank loans. Other than the aforesaid, no other assets are pledged to any
bank or lender.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BV R DT

Segment Information

For management purposes, except for the consumer financing business
carried out under Parkson Credit mainly in Malaysia, the Group has a single
operating and reportable segment - the operation and management of
department stores in the PRC. Except for credit services, revenues from
external customers are generated in the PRC and all significant operating
assets of the Group are located in the PRC.

As the consumer financing business does not have a material impact on
the Group's results based on a measure of revenues, net profit and total
assets, respectively. For management purpose, there is no need to treat it as
a separate operating and reportable segment to disclose.

Employees

As at 31 December 2019, total number of employees for the Group was
5,773. The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme.

Treasury Policies

The business transactions of the Group were mainly denominated in
Renminbi. Therefore, except for the capital market transactions for
funding needs, there is limited exposure in foreign exchange risk. Hedging
instruments including swaps and forwards have been used in the past
and would be used in the future, if necessary, to ensure that the Group's
exposure to the foreign exchange rate fluctuation and the interest rate
fluctuation is minimized.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, aged 77, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Tan Sri Cheng is also the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He has more than 45 years of experience in the business
operations of the Lion Group of Companies ("Lion Group") encompassing
retail, branding, food and beverage, credit financing and money lending
services, property development, mining, steel and tyre manufacturing,
motor, agriculture and computer industries. He oversees the operations of
Lion Group and is responsible for the formulation and monitoring of the
overall corporate strategic plans and business development of the Group.

Tan Sri Cheng was the President of The Associated Chinese Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of Malaysia ("ACCCIM") and The Chinese Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuala Lumpur and Selangor ("KLSCCCI")
from 2003 to 2012 and is now a Life Honorary President of ACCCIM
and KLSCCCI. Tan Sri Cheng was also the President of Malaysia Retailers
Association ("MRA") from August 2014 to May 2018, and the Chairman
of the Federation of Asia-Pacific Retailers Associations (“FAPRA") from
October 2017 to September 2019. Thereafter, Tan Sri Cheng was appointed
as an Honorary President of MRA in June 2018 and assumed the position
of Vice Chairman of FAPRA in September 2019. Tan Sri Cheng is currently
a Trustee of ACCCIM's Socio-Economic Research Trust and the President of
Malaysia Steel Association.
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Tan Sri Cheng's directorships in public companies are as follows:

- Chairman and Managing Director of Parkson Holdings Berhad and
Lion Corporation Berhad ("LCB")

- Chairman of Lion Posim Berhad (formerly known as Lion Forest
Industries Berhad) and ACB Resources Berhad ("ACB")

- Director of Lion Asiapac Limited

- Executive Chairman of Parkson Retail Asia Limited

- Chairman, a Founding Member and a Permanent Trustee of The
Community Chest, a company limited by guarantee established by
the private sector for charity purposes

Save for LCB, ACB and The Community Chest, all the above companies
are public listed companies in Malaysia whilst Lion Asiapac Limited and
Parkson Retail Asia Limited are public listed companies in Singapore.

Tan Sri Cheng is the father of Juliana Cheng San San, the Executive Director
of the Company.

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 28 August 2015. Ms. Cheng started her career with
the Lion Group in 1995 with stints in Singapore and Malaysia. During her
tenure from 1995 to 2004 she held various positions in finance, human
resource, administration and business development. In 2004, she was
seconded to Parkson China as Cosmetics Manager, thus beginning her
career in the retail industry. She left Parkson China in May 2006 and joined
Chanel (China) Co Ltd as the National Accounts Manager for business
development in the PRC. In June 2010, she re-joined Parkson China as
Regional Director overseeing retail operations in China. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. During her 20 years with
Lion Group, Parkson China and Chanel (China) Co Ltd, she has accumulated
vast experience and knowledge of the retail and branding industry which
will enable her to contribute to the Board of the Company.
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Ms. Cheng graduated in 1994 from University of Western Sydney, Australia
with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce (Management) and completed a
Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business School in year 2000.

Ms. Cheng is a daughter of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director
and Chairman of the Company. From 24 May 2002 to 30 June 2014, Ms.
Cheng was an alternate director to Tan Sri Cheng in LTC Corporation
Limited (formerly known as “Lion Teck Chiang Limited"), a public listed
company then listed in Singapore.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung, aged 57, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the Company on 13
November 2014. Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou was a Member of Parliament and the
Deputy Minister of Higher Education Malaysia from 2008 to 2013. He holds
the Bachelor and Master of Arts from University of Malaya, while his Ph.D
was received from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University of
London.

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou served at University of Malaya from 1990 to 2008
as a lecturer and lastly as Associate Professor. During his tenure in
the university, he had been appointed and held positions as Head of
Department of East Asian Studies, and Director of Institute of China
Studies. He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
Furniweb Holdings Limited, a public listed company on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 20 September 2017.

Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou was a member of the Senate in the Parliament of
Malaysia. He resigned as the Vice President of the Malaysian Chinese
Association (MCA) and Chairman of the Institute of Strategic Analysis
& Policy Research (INSAP) on 2 December 2018. Dato' Sri Dr. Hou is the
Council Member of both University Tunku Abdul Rahman (UTAR) and
Tunku Abdul Rahman University College (TAR UC) and a Guest Professor at
Xiamen University China.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, aged 71, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 13 November 2014. Dato' Fu was appointed as
Chairman of the Audit Committee on 29 February 2016 and is a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dato’ Fu holds a Master
Degree in Industrial Engineering specializing in Management Science, Post
Graduate Diploma in Education and a B.Sc. (Hons) degree in Physics. Dato'
Fu has 13 years of distinguished services since 1995 in the Parliament
and Malaysian Government as member of the Parliament, Parliamentary
Secretary and Deputy Minister. Before joining the Government, Dato’ Fu has
worked in a few multinational companies. After retirement from politics
in 2008, Dato’ Fu was appointed as independent director cum chairman in
several listed companies.

Dato’ Fu is currently an independent non-executive chairman of Tiong Nam
Logistics Holding Berhad and STAR Media Group Berhad (formerly known
as "STAR Publications (Malaysia) Berhad") respectively, all public listed
companies in Bursa Malaysia Berhad.

He resigned as the independent non-executive chairman of Fitters
Diversified Berhad on 1 July 2019.

Ko Desmond, aged 51, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 9 November 2005 and is currently a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Ko has
been the Audit Committee Chairman of the Company since 22 November
2006 and had stepped down on 29 February 2016. He remains as a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr. Ko became a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in 1994. Mr. Ko is
a businessman.
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Yau Ming Kim, Robert, aged 81, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 January 2007, and is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Yau was the Chief Executive
or Managing Director of many major international and local apparel
companies since 1971. From 1998 to 2004, he was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of Hong Kong Exporters' Association, a member of the Executive
Committee of The Hong Kong Shippers' Council and the Garment Advisory
Committee of The Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of Alltronics
Holdings Limited and Tungtex (Holdings) Company Limited respectively,
which shares are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS' INFORMATION

Subsequent to publication of the 2019 Interim Report and the
announcement dated 31 October 2019 of the Company, notifications
were received regarding the changes of Directors' information, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules"):

With effect from 31 October 2019, Mr. He Dong has resigned as an
Executive Director of the Company and as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Juliana Cheng San San, aged 50, has been appointed as the Executive
Director of the Company since 2015. Ms. Cheng oversees the Cosmetics
Division, Branding Division, Merchandising Division and Information
Technology Division of the Group. Ms. Cheng is the daughter of Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem, the Executive Director and Chairman of the Group. Ms.
Cheng completed a Program for Global Leadership from Harvard Business
School in year 2000. Her other biographical details are set out under the
paragraph headed "Executive Directors” above.

Zhou lJia, aged 48, has been appointed as the Chief Operating Officer
of the Group since 2016. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor degree in
Business Administration from Yuzhou University. In 1995, he joined the
Merchandising Division of Chongging Wanyou Parkson and was promoted
as the Assistant General Manager of Kunming Parkson in 2002. Mr. Zhou
was promoted to be the head of Kunming Parkson, the Regional General
Manager and the Group's Senior Operating Officer in 2004, 2010 and 2014
respectively.
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Yu Kai Yan, aged 57, joined the Group as General Manager of Property/
Mall Management Division in September 2018. He is in charge of mall
construction, asset management, mall operation management and business
development for the Group. Mr. Yu obtained the Master Degree of EMBA
from Tsinghua University. Prior to joining the Group, he had been working
for multi-national property companies and financial institutions for over
34 years. His working experience includes property equity, Merger &
Acquisition, investment and development, asset and property management,
sales and marketing, real estate development, and construction and design,
etc.

Li Bing, aged 63, who owned 15-year-working experience in large state-
owned enterprises, graduated from Chonggqing University with a bachelor's
degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Li joined Parkson in 1996. In 2005,
he was promoted as the head of Nanning Parkson. Then he was promoted
as the head of Parkson in both Guangxi and Guangdong provinces in 2011
and worked as the Chief Operating Officer of the two regions in 2014.
In 2017, he took charge of the regions of Guangdong, Guangxi, Hunan
and Jiangxi provinces. In 2019, he was appointed Deputy Chief Operating
Officer of the Group as well as Senior Operating Officer of Southeast
Region.

Li Zhong Hui, aged 48, has been appointed as General Manager of risk
control division and auditing director of the Group since August 2018. He
graduated from Shandong University with a bachelor degree in Economic
Law in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li served as the chief risk
officer, general manager of risk control division and auditing director in
NVC Lighting, Tsinghua Unigroup Ltd. and Cedar Holdings.

Zhang Jin Rui, aged 34, has been appointed as Chief Information Officer
of information technology division since October 2019. He obtained his
bachelor degree in automation technology from Donghua University.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked with The Dow Chemical
Company China and Decathlon China and had been expatriated to Lille,
France in the headquarter of Decathlon Group, to be responsible for digital
transformation technology.
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Huang Lu, aged 44, has been appointed as the Director of Marketing
Department since 2016. She obtained her bachelor's degree of International
Business Management from Oxford Brookes University of the United
Kingdom. Ms. Huang worked with Starbucks China and IKEA China as
Marketing Director responsible for marketing and brand building before
joining the Group.

Zhang Ji Ning, aged 46, has been appointed as the General Manager of
the Qingdao Lion Mall and the General Manager of Qingdao region since
2014. Mr. Zhang has more than 20 years of retail operation experience.
He obtained his Master of Arts in International Relations from Nankai
University. The program was a partnership between the Flinders University
from South Australia and Nankai University.

William Tan, aged 43, has been appointed as General Manager of the
brands division of the Group since 2018. He obtained his Master Degree of
Architecture from Cornell University of the United States of America and
Master Degree of Business Administration from University of Oxford of
the United Kingdom. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tan was Vice President
with Li & Fung Limited where his career traversed corporate finance, global
fashion sourcing operations, and responsive supply chain solutions for
global brands and retailers. Mr. Tan started his career at the exclusive and
world-renowned London-based design and architecture studio of the late
Pritzker Prize winner Dame Zaha Hadid, specialising in high-end design
projects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company's healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts in
identifying and formulating corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's records. The Company's corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code ("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied with
the CG Code (to the extent that such provisions are applicable) except
for below deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which
are explained in the relevant paragraph of this report. The Company will
continue to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of its businesses and to review such practices from
time to time to ensure that they comply with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the "Model Code"). Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the standard as
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the "Employees Written Guidelines") for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the
employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As of the date of this report, the Board comprises two (2) Executive
Directors namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and Juliana Cheng San San; one
(1) Non-executive Director namely Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung; and three
(3) Independent Non-executive Directors namely Dato' Fu Ah Kiow, Ko
Desmond and Yau Ming Kim, Robert.

The Directors' biographical information and the relationships between the
members of the Board are set out in the "Biographies of Directors and

senior management” section on pages 23 to 29.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there is no financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship among the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Chong Sui Hiong as the
former Chief Executive Officer of the Group ("CEQ") on 1 February 2019,
certain functions of CEQ have been undertaken by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem,
the Executive Director and Chairman of the Company. Since 1 February
2019, the Company has deviated from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
during the period from 1 February 2019 to 31 December 2019. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and the CEQ in the same
person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group
and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board further believes that the balance of power and authority
for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by the current Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals with sufficient number thereof being Independent Non-
executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has met the Listing Rules requirements regarding the
sufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors with one
Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate qualifications.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation as regards independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' RE-ELECTION

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that Non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas Code Provision A.4.2 states that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Non-executive Director and the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a term of three years and one
year respectively. All the Directors are subject to renewal and retirement
by rotation once every three years in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the CG Code.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, (i) Dato' Fu Ah Kiow has
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one
year commencing on 13 November 2019 (based on the same terms and
conditions); (i) Ko Desmond has renewed the letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of one year commencing on 9 November 2019
(based on the same terms and conditions); and (iii) Yau Ming Kim, Robert
has renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
one year commencing on 1 January 2020 (based on the same terms and
conditions).

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board takes decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group's operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of
the Company as well as the services and advice from the company
secretary and senior management. The Directors may, upon request, seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT H£E#&HE

REBEZ_ZT—NF+-A=+—BHILFE"
(EENEBEHAARREEZEE B
Z-NEF+—A+=ZHEFTAEH—F (BIE
FEEMEFR K A& ) (i) Ko Desmond B B AN A
EEEFE BZE-NE+—ALBR
FAH—F (RBAERGR RGN  Kiii)
EHRBRARAEELZIE BT =%
F—A— BB AR —F (REBEMERER K
fER ) ©

EZEREEERE BERERM

E=g88 E&&T%$ VEEALE
ENES LR Rﬁ&%ﬁ.%& tR&R
BREENEERNRRFBHESH AR
R-BRGRUARBMEIEHFEIRE

E=eEEMNHEEBREZBEWRLE
%EEF‘@%%E&%%kE 2 HE1T 5
CEEAKEE &%ﬁ%ﬁ ARELR R

EE%W%W$&HVME%

2RES (BHFMTESERBUIFNTE
B REZTETFEREBERENEEXZHBKLK
B HELER EESRLAREE-

PRESEY AT MEESKARRE
BE ARBRQAFWERSRERERHE
fRERER EENREEREEEE R
MTIESRBIEEER  URAAQRFEITE
BE - E2ARAMBAQARE-

ERARARRKBERFETHEORS
MHE MEFETHEHSEZTAAAT
BITERERMEFELNER -

EXZSREREMBEAFE EF PR
BREFE REMEE AHEZERERE
B BARS (LEAESEMGEER %)
MBER REEFRARRHEMENLE
EH-BBATEFSARR BERBAXR
NEIREEE &Eﬁ%%fi??%ﬁﬁ



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board as a whole is also responsible for reviewing its composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience relevant to
the Company's business.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the Company and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director's responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors have complied with
Code Provision A.6.5 to participate in continuous professional development
and receive trainings.
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Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem had attended briefings, trainings and seminars as
follows:
Topics Name of Institutions
- (i) Corporate Liability & Directors'

Personal Liability for Corrupt Practices
- Amended MACC Act 2009

Lion Group In-House
Directors' Training

- (ii) Proposed SC Guidelines on Initial Coin
Offerings: Monetising Loyalty Points

- Risk Management and Internal Controls:
Internal Audit Programme and Legal Risk
Prevention of Company Operation

Lion Group In-House
Directors' Training
Reading topic

- Financial, Business, Economic and Commercial related Magazine/
Documents

Juliana Cheng San San had attended trainings and seminars as follows:
Topics Name of Institutions
- Risk Management and Internal Controls:

Internal Audit Programme and Legal Risk
Prevention of Company Operation

Lion Group In-House
Directors' Training

Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung had attended trainings as follows:
Reading topic

- The Edge Financial Daily, The Economist Magazine
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Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow had attended trainings and seminars as follows:

Topics Name of Institutions

- Briefing on 2020 Budget Highlights Lion Group In-House
Directors' Training

- Malaysia & China Business Outlook Star Media Group Berhad

Reading topic

- Financial, Business, Economic and Commercial related Magazine/
Documents

Mr. Ko Desmond had attended trainings and seminar as follows:
Topics Name of Institutions

Technochimica
Milan Management School

- Sustanability
- Responsible Luxury Summit

Reading topic

- Economist and other business magazines
Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert had attended trainings and seminars as follows:

Topics Name of Institutions

- Has corporate governance in Asia truly
improved

PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Chong Sui Hiong (Resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 February 2019) did not attend trainings and
seminars during the period from 1 January 2019 to 1 February 2019.

He Dong (Re-designated from a Non-executive Director to an Executive
Director on 5 May 2019 and appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of
the Group on 5 May 2019 before his resignation from all positions of
the Group on 31 October 2019) had attended trainings and seminars as
follows:
Topics Name of Institutions

- Listing Rules Introduction & Compliance
Requirement

Lion Group In-House
Directors' Training

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE EETEeENRHFEAY

Board meetings are held at least four (4) times a year with additional ZZ@®FFABEEINUWIEH INEE
meetings to be convened as and when necessary to determine the overall BB FHEEING FH  UETAE B LR
strategic directions and objectives of the Group and approve quarterly, &R BEIZE  WBBEEESLE FHEEN
interim and annual results and other significant matters. FEFXERHEMEKRER

During the year ended 31 December 2019, six (6) board meetings were held E’\%Zjliﬁ NETZA=1T—RHIEFE"

and the Directors' attendances are listed below: BRITRNEOAEZGEH EF2HFEBR
UM
Number of
Board Meetings
Held During
the Director's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2019 Attended
R-ZB-h#F
ZESEHRA
BOZESES
Name of the Directors SRR
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman) FHETREER (XF) 6 6
Chong Sui Hiong (Resigned as an Executive Director KiniE (RZZE—-NF=
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group on A—HBBERTES R
1 February 2019) AEBERAITE) 0 0
Juliana Cheng San San 455 3t 38 6 6
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SEHREREEHELT 6 6

He Dong (Re-designated from a Non-executive Director Al (R =T — N4 FH A
to an Executive Director on 5 May 2019 and appointed TRBEFNTESHAE
as a Chief Financial Officer of the Group on 5 May 2019. AHITEEH TR _-Z
He had resigned from all positions on 31 October 2019) —NFRARABHEZMFE

RAEEERMEE -
TR —_FE—AE+A
=t+—HEEMER

%) 4 3
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow EX-WrEEE 6 6
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond 6 3
Yau Ming Kim, Robert E8a%l 6 5
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Mr. Chong Sui Hiong resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 February 2019. No board meeting was scheduled
during the period from 1 January 2019 and up to his resignation date on
1 February 2019. Mr. He Dong was re-designated from a Non-executive
Director to an Executive Director on 5 May 2019 and appointed as a Chief
Financial Officer of the Group on 5 May 2019. He resigned from both
positions on 31 October 2019, during which four (4) board meetings were
held and he had attended three (3) board meetings.

The Chairman had met with the Independent Non-executive Director
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non-executive Directors should attend the issuer's
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Directors' attendances at the
Company's general meeting are listed below:

Name of the Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)

Chong Sui Hiong (Resigned as an Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on
1 February 2019)

Juliana Cheng San San

He Dong (Re-designated from a Non-executive Director to
an Executive Director on 5 May 2019 and
appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the Group

5% 1 3
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on 5 May 2019. He had resigned from all positions —NFRARAEEZMAE
on 31 October 2019) ABAEBEFEUBKE -
FR-_ZE—NF+A
=+—HBEFER
%) 1 1
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SEHMEMBEAEL 1 1
Dato’ Fu Ah Kiow SEfLR 1 1
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond 1 1
Yau Ming Kim, Robert gyl 1 1
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Mr. Chong Sui Hiong resigned as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 February 2019. No general meeting was
scheduled during the period from 1 January 2019 and up to his resignation
date on 1 February 2019. Mr. He Dong had attended one (1) annual general
meeting before his resignation from all positions of the Group on 31
October 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee which currently
comprises four (4) members, three (3) of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Dato' Fu Ah Kiow (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Ko Desmond and Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert and the other
one (1) member is Non-executive Director, namely, Dato" Sri Dr. Hou Kok
Chung.

The Audit Committee is required: (i) to advise the Board on the
appointment and retention of external auditor; (i) to review the external
auditor's independence and objectivity; (iii) to review quarterly, interim
and annual accounts of the Group; (iv) to access the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control; and (v) to review the internal audit
function and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year and the Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Internal Auditor, In-House Counsel, the Compliance
Officer and a representative of the external auditors of the Company shall
normally be invited to attend the meetings. The Company Secretary or her
nominee shall be the secretary of the Audit Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were four (4) meetings REE-_Z—NF+_A=+—HIFE"
Z2Z B BRTH@REZR  HEBM

held by the Audit Committee and the attendances are listed below: Bz

Meetings Held

during the
Member's Number of
Term of Office Meetings
in 2019 Attended

R=F—-N#F

ZHEEHRA

BT8R

Name of the Audit Committee Member ERZEEHRENSA RE
Dato' Fu Ah Kiow EERER 4 4
Ko Desmond Ko Desmond 4 2
Yau Ming Kim, Robert a4l 4 4
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung EEHMEMBEAEL 4 4

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee had REEZE-_ZT—NF+_A=1+—HIFE"
met with the executive Directors and management of the Company to HBZXZECHARNANTEELEEES
review the interim and annual results, the interim report and annual F& > BHEIAEBNPE N FEEE P HR
report and other financial, internal control, corporate governance and risk &5 M FEFFHE L E MBI AL EEIE ¥
management matters of the Group and made recommendations to the B ANBEMEREE WHREESIRLEE
Board. The Audit Committee had met with the external auditor without the B R -BREZECHEETEERE 2B THE
presence of management and discussed about the interim financial report,  JNEIZEBRENEHE » Wl s P HAM SRS R &
its annual audit of the consolidated financial statements and key audit ¥#RAP KRR FEBZIULEXEXK
issues. EHe

The Group's results for the year 2019 was reviewed by the Audit BEZEZESCBHAEE T - HLERNE
Committee. =)

¢ C
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, the Company's
Remuneration Committee consists of three (3) members, two (2) of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Ko Desmond and the
other member is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure
for all Directors; and develop the Group's policy on remuneration for its
Directors (including Executive Directors) so as to ensure that it attracts
and retains the Directors needed to manage the Company and the Group
effectively. Directors do not participate in decisions regarding their own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year and at
such other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Remuneration Committee had one (1) meeting and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Remuneration Committee Member FMEEERENHS
Yau Ming Kim, Robert a4l

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem FHAT BB E AR

Ko Desmond Ko Desmond

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the remuneration policy and

the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors during the year

ended 31 December 2019.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three (3) members, one (1) of whom
is an Executive Director, namely Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman of the
Nomination Committee) and the other two (2) members are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert and Dato’ Fu Ah
Kiow.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the
Board on appointment of the directors, so as to ensure that all nominations
are fair and transparent.

The Company has adopted an updated Board Diversity Policy on 20
November 2018 (first adopted on 16 August 2013) which sets out, among
others, a number of aspects of board diversity in reviewing and accessing
the board composition and nomination of directors, as applicable. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse board,
and sees diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary, agree on
the measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and make
recommendation to the Board.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy on 20 November
2018 which sets out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company with a view to ensure that
the Company's board of directors has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and to ensure the
Company's board of directors' continuity and appropriate leadership at the
board level.

The Board and the Nomination Committee regularly examine the Board's
size and, with a view to determine the impact of the number upon
effectiveness, decide on an appropriate size of the Board, taking into
account the scope and nature of the Group's operations.

The Board comprises a balanced and well diversified members of different
age, cultural background and ethnicity. They provide the Board with the
necessary experience and expertise to direct and lead the Group.
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A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences
in the skills, region and industry experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These differences will be taken into
account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments will be based on merit while taking into account diversity.
The Nomination Committee will report annually (if it is necessary) in the
corporate governance report, on the Board's composition under diversified
perspectives, and monitor the implementation of this policy.

The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the Board has the appropriate
mix of expertise to lead and govern the Group effectively and provide a
balance of views.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year and at such
other times as its chairman shall require. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the Nomination Committee had one (1) meeting and the
attendances are listed below:

Name of the Nomination Committee Member REZEERERR
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem FHET 2B E AR

Yau Ming Kim, Robert gyl

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow SEHEE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
had reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and has
considered and nominated an individual to the Board for appointment as a
Director.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 20 November 2018 which
aims to set out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends
to apply in relation to the declaration, payment or distribution of its net
profits as dividends to the shareholders of the Company.

The Board shall take into account the following factors: (a) the Articles
of Association of the Company; (b) the applicable restrictions and
requirements under the laws of the Cayman Islands; (c) any banking or
other funding covenants by which the Company is bound from time to
time; (d) the investment and operating requirements of the Company; and
(e) any other factors that have material impact on the Company.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and shall be subject to
any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Dividend Policy will continue
to be reviewed from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be proposed or declared in any particular amount for any
given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Executive Committee was established by the Board for performing the
functions set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Employees
Written Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company's external auditor, Ernst &
Young, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

¥ BB B &=
ARRGBE_FT-NAF+_A=1+—8H
IEFEERN AR INE R E D % k& 5D

EHFTRBEEHY 0T

Fees Paid/

Payable

Bt/

EAEA

Service Category PR 7 $E 5 RMB
ARETT

Audit services Z SR 75 3,913,050
Non-audit service IEZ B RS 882,302
Total et 4,795,352

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group that gives a true and fair view on a going concern
basis and the Board was not aware of any material uncertainties.

The statement of the auditor on their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor's Report on
pages 88 to 95.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least
annually. The system has been designed for: (i) safequarding assets against
unauthorised user or disposition; (i) ensuring the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication; and (iii) ensuring compliance of applicable
laws, rules and regulations. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
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The Company's risk management and internal control systems have been
developed with the following principles, features and processes:

- Identify significant risks in the Group's operation environment;

- Assess and evaluate the impacts of those risks on the Group's
business and the likelihood of their occurrence;

- Develop necessary measures to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks;

- Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures and report
to the Audit Committee and the Board regularly.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementing and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The management, in coordination with division/department heads, assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans to mitigate
risks in day-to-day operations, monitors the risk management progress,
and provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside information
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group has adopted and implemented an inside
information procedure. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safequards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include the
maintaining of a good control environment with defined organisational
structure, limit of authority, reporting lines and responsibilities
in accordance with the Company's guidelines and the regulatory
requirements.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019.
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The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and provides its findings and recommendations
for improvement to the management and the Audit Committee.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group, for the year ended
31 December 2019, and considered that such systems are effective and
adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant
resources.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the
Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Company's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mrs. Seng Sze Ka Mee, Natalia ("Mrs. Seng") was the Company Secretary
of the Company since 1 January 2019 and she resigned on 31 December
2019. Ms. Yuen Wing Yan, Winnie ("Ms. Yuen") has been appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company since 31 December 2019.

Each of Mrs. Seng and Ms. Yuen are nominees of the external professional
service providers appointed to act as the Company Secretary of the
Company in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The appointment of each of Mrs. Seng and Ms. Yuen as a Company
Secretary of the Company during the relevant period has been nominated
by Tricor Services Limited under an engagement letter made between the
Company and Tricor Services Limited.

Each of Mrs. Seng and Ms. Yuen has attended over 15 hours' relevant
seminars during the year ended 31 December 2019 pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the primary person at the
Company with whom each of Mrs. Seng and Ms. Yuen had been contacting
in respect of company secretarial matters was Ms. Juliana Cheng San San
and Ms. Li Li Ping ("Ms. Li"), deputy general manager of Legal department
of the Company. Ms. Li joined the Company since 1 April 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholders’ meetings,
including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at
shareholders' meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 79 of the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting.
General meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of the Company
which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided that such
requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s)
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Under normal circumstances, the Company will not deal with verbal or
anonymous enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to

the following:

Address: 5th Floor, Metro Plaza

No. 555 Loushanguan Road

Changning District

Shanghai 200051

China

(For the attention of Chairman of the Board/
Chief Executive Officer)

(8621) 6229-8001

(8621) 3258-0520

Telephone:
Fax:

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders'
information may be disclosed as required by the law.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary at the Company's head office and principal place of business,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact
details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting
regarding any specified transaction/ousiness and its supporting documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board, all other members of the Board including
Non-executive Directors, Independent Non-executive Directors, and the
Chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) will make themselves
available at the annual general meetings to meet shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company's Articles of Association is also available on the Company's
website and the Stock Exchange's website.
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The Group entered the China market in the 1990's and has grown together
with the country for more than 20 years. As we transform to adapt to the
changing retail landscape, Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
elements have been embedded into our company strategy, management
and daily operations to ensure fulfilment of our responsibility as a
social citizen. We believe an enterprise dedicated to the well-being of
its customers, employees, communities and the environment will create
greater value for its stakeholders, including shareholders, over the long
term.

In the section that follows, we share with you our 2019 ESG Report
prepared in accordance with the £SG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules, covering the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019. The ESG Report covers the main businesses of the Group.
Conforming to the requirements in the £SG Reporting Guide, the Group has
disclosed the Key Performance Indicators ("KPIs") in environment area in
the ESG Report, covering our department stores (including supermarkets),
F&B stores and the centralized kitchen in operation in 2019. Compared
with last year, there is no significant adjustment to the scope for this
report.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Reporting Principles
of the £ESG Reporting Guide, which include:

° Materiality: The Group identifies key ESG areas through
communication with stakeholders and materiality assessment, and
develops specific strategies and improvement plans;

° Quantification: This report presents the KPIs on environmental and
social aspects in quantitative terms;

° Balance: The report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
current performance on ESG management following the principle of
balance;

° Consistency: The data statistics and calculation methods used for

this report are consistent with those for the 2018 ESG report to
ensure the comparability of information.
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ESG MANAGEMENT STRATEGY

Parkson adheres to the strategy of sustainable development and commits
to providing the society with a high-quality diversified collection of retail
formats. Based on the core principle of green and sustainable development,
the Group has developed its ESG strategies, which provides a direction
for ESG management in the daily operation, and reviews the ESG strategy
regularly.

The Board supports the Group's commitment to its corporate social
responsibility by regularly reviewing the ESG-related issues of the Group,
identifying and assessing ESG risks and ensuring that the Group has
established appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems. The Board assumes full responsibility for the Group's ESG
strategy and reporting, and is responsible for supervision and approval of
the Group's annual ESG report.

The Group's management is responsible for executing ESG risk
management and internal control systems, reporting ESG risks and
opportunities to the Board, and ensuring the effective operation of relevant
ESG systems. In order to carry out ESG managerial work in full coverage,
the Group established the ESG panel which is comprised of Parkson's major
departments directly involving department heads and designated persons
to take the responsibility for ESG management and reporting.

STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group's stakeholders include governments and regulators, shareholders
and investors, employees, business tenants, consumers, suppliers,
community. The Group attaches great importance to communicating with
stakeholders and has established effective communication channels with
stakeholders to learn about their demands and expectations, to discuss and
respond to the corporate social responsibility concerns of all stakeholders,
so as to promote the growth of both sides.
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns  Communication channels = Communication frequency
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns

Communication channels

R B REBHRS

Communication frequency

Az MEEA T HMEREE BERE BEAR
Business visit
Fair and impartial prgcurement Daily meeting
Suppliers NERAFARRE Sy Multiple times per month
fitpER Win-win cooperation Review an? - fx BRAZR
85 A pe'r ormance
evaluation
ERRRETH
Community engagement
o Company's official website
Community Business compliance NG Multiple times per year
HEAR EBER Public welfare activities BFZR
Environmental awareness N
RREH
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMTME

In order to further define the key ESG areas of the Group and respond to
the expectations of stakeholders on the ESG performance of the Group, we
conducted a materiality assessment through the following steps:

Step 1 - Identifying ESG issues: We identified 14 ESG issues in accordance
with the ESG Reporting Guide, and classified them by environment,
employees, operation and public welfare;

Step 2 - Ranking ESG issues: According to the industry characteristics and
the importance of issues to the business development and stakeholders of
Parkson, ESG issues are ranked in their prioritization to construct a ESG
materiality assessment model and identify key issues;

Step 3 - Verifying assessment results: The senior management and ESG
working team of the Group reviewed and confirmed the assessment results.
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Parkson embraces the concept of sustainable development and complies
strictly with applicable laws and regulations in China while conducting its
operational activities. We try our best to reduce environmental impacts
where possible whilst ensuring service quality with the aim to create a
green and low-carbon shopping and dining experience.

Parkson complies with the following laws and regulations in the PRC so as
to guarantee the protection of environment during operation:

i) Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic of China

(PEA R FERZ RiEZ)

ii) Law of the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation

(P A R FIE B 49 EIR )% D
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iii) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution (% A B2 F1 BT K525 8% )

iv) Law of the People's Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution (%2 A R ZF1EI A 55 27
VA \‘i\t))
=z

v) Emission Standard of Cooking fume on food Service (GB18483-
2001) (BLR ZHEHELIRE) (GB18483-2001)

Conserving Resources

The Group formulated various policies including the Parkson Group Energy
Conservation Policy and Stores Facilities Maintenance and Safe Operations
Policy, as part of the responses to the PRC government's call for energy
conservation and emission reduction.

Energy, water and packaging materials saving has been a part and parcel
in our stores' daily management. In response to the call for "energy saving,
environmental protection and low carbon”, we conduct regular assessment
on the effectiveness of resources consumed during daily operations and
renovate the old equipment in time, to minimize the usage of resources
and to avoid wastage. We encourage the usage of LED lights and have
established a clear opening and closing schedule on equipment such as
air conditioner etc to avoid unnecessary waste of resources. Maintenance
teams in our stores also regularly repair facilities and check water valves
to avoid leakage. Regarding to the packaging materials, we follow the rule
against excessive package and encourage the reduction of paper cake boxes
usage. We provide regular training to raise our employees' awareness on
resources saving and to cultivate a culture that values resources.
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2019 KPIs on the Aspect of Use of Resources

ype of resources

BRER

—E-AFEREABEHRARERER:

Energy consumption in total (in MWh)' REJRIEFEE S (JKEEF ) 316,378 339,835 365,931
Intensity of energy consumption RERERETE

(in MWh per square meter) (RELEF[FFK) 0.187 0.194 0.204
Water consumption in total (in tonne)? #2FE/K & ()2 1,719,174 1,776,753 1,895,317
Intensity of water consumption in total #BFEKZ[E

(in tonne per square meter) (W85 2K) 1.015 1.015 1.056
Packaging materials used for 2K @ATA B EMEHE R

finished products in total (in tonne)? (Mg )® 65 57 58

Notes: i

1. The energy sources consumed by the Group mainly include electricity, 1. AEBFEFANTERREBEE - RRAM
natural gas and heating energy during winter. Total energy consumption is REMHEER LR ERAERERE
accounted according to electricity consumption, natural gas consumption, £ RAKRAAFEAE BREAELBERE
heating energy consumption and the default value of parameters related RANEZESBMMN (REBREBEED
to fossil fuel as listed in Annex 1 of the Guidelines on Accounting Methods XEREREHBZEF ZEREEM)
and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Public Building Operators MRUE AR RS SR EEE -
issued by the National Development and Reform Commission.

2. The Group's water consumption is mainly for domestic use and sourced 2. REEEF ERFERE EERK KRR
from municipal water supply system, so there is no problem in obtaining B K - A SR EE A KR E N E
applicable water source. 8 e

3. The Group's stores use paper and plastic packages. As the Group is not a 3. REBEMEFRABREMBHBE -HR

production-oriented enterprise, the packaging material used for finished
products per unit produced is not applicable to the Group.
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Emissions BEr

We have strictly implemented the Parkson Group Environmental Protection — BiR IR IBHEMD B IE KT  BPIBRIE T
Policy to improve management of environmental waste such as emissions, (B EEBIRBREFE) @ NaHER-
greenhouse gas emissions, waste water and wastes. Waste emissions from B EREE - BEKMEEYENEIE - B
the Group are properly treated before discharging to minimize pollution to  ¥IRIBA) T » ANE B FE £ M BER Y 7E BE
the environment. WA G BEIENEE -

. Office and household waste water of the Group is discharged into ~ ® REBHOWAMEFEKHY D EE

municipal sewer system for collective treatment in compliance CRRBEA R T KBKRKEZRE) -
with the Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal WHREFEATBISKEBETH—
Sewers (VGIKBEASLEE T 7KEKEZE) BRI o

. In active response to the relevant requirements of the Regulation — ® REBBEGERE (WA ENRE
of Household Waste Management of Shanghai {_F & ij7 4 )& t7 4K BEH) HEER - 8 T#ITH IR
EFZ£/]) | the Group has propagated the knowledge of garbage DEEE  WHBEBFERHNR D B
classification among employees and set up specialized areas for K@

collection of classified garbage.

. Non-hazardous wastes produced by the Group in its daily e AEBERBECHELNREERY

operations are recycled for integrated treatment by respective HHREESYEERARETHA —E
property management company. WHER & R IE
2019 KPIs on the Aspect of Emissions’ TE-NAFHRYEEBERENER
ype of emissions RYESR
Waste water in total (in tonne) REIK RS (WE) 1,554,991 1,610,091 1,734,246
Non-hazardous waste emissions BEEREVHNEE
in total (in tonne)? (Mg )2 14,969 27,063 26,806
Intensity of non-hazardous waste BEBRREDTE
(in tonne per square meter) (WA T K) 0.009 0.015 0.015
Greenhouse gas emissions in total BEREBHERESE
(in tCO2)? (S LIREE) 193,894 207,608 224,412
Intensity of greenhouse gas emissions A ZEREHNEE
(in tC02¢e per square meter) (ME—EeixE &/ FHXK) 0.115 0.119 0.125
cC
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Notes:

According to the management's assessment results, the Group does not
generate hazardous waste during its daily business operation, and therefore
KPI A1.3 hazardous waste does not apply.

Non-hazardous wastes include engineering waste, domestic waste, grease
in grease traps, food waste and recyclable waste (waste paper, scrap iron
and plastic waste, etc.). During the reporting period, there was a significant
decrease in the total amount of non-hazardous waste emissions compared
with previous years due to the decrease in the Group's engineering projects
and the amount of engineering waste.

Based on the nature of the Group's business operation, the greenhouse
gas emissions of the Group include direct emissions resulting from natural
gas combustion and indirect emissions resulting from energy consumed
through consumption of heating energy and purchased electricity, so
greenhouse gases include only carbon dioxide (CO2). Greenhouse gas
emissions are presented as CO2e (carbon dioxide equivalent) and calculated
according to the Accounting Methods and Reporting Guide for Greenhouse
Gas Emissions from Public Building Operators issued by the National
Development and Reform Commission.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Except for the content disclosed above, our business operation does not
cause any other significant impact to the environment or significantly
consume other environmental and natural resources during our course of
operation.
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EMPLOYEES

We consider talent as our most important asset and adopt a "people
first" philosophy. Our corporate culture embraces team spirit, equality,
continuous learning, innovation and commitment. We invest in programs
to improve employees' satisfaction and give priority to employees' health
and safety during our business operation.

Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group adheres to the following Chinese labor laws in its daily
operations:

i) Labor Law of the People's Republic of China (7 ZE A B+ 7157 4
%)

ii) Labor Com‘racz‘ Law of the People’s Republic of China (A &
HAE L )& %)

iii)  Safe Production Law of the People’s Republic of China (FFEA K
RAE &2 422D

iv) Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor (Z£iF{E/HZ T
HE)

V) Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors

(P EN B A FEK K FNNREZ)

A Human Resources Management Manual covering employment,
compensation, promotion and termination of employees etc. has been put
in place to ensure our compliance.

In 2019, we established a set of human resources compliance risk
management review mechanism. We reviewed and evaluated human
resource compliance risk management through annual self-assessment and
headquarter's review to effectively prevent and control human resource
compliance risk.

Parkson is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not tolerate
discrimination and harassment of any kind in our work place. As stipulated
in the Group's recruitment policy, we are committed to the principle
of equal employment opportunity for all employees and to providing
employees with a work environment free of discrimination and harassment.
All employment decisions are based on business needs, job requirements
and individual qualifications.
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The Group ensures that all levels of employees are paid competitively
within the standard in the market and employees are rewarded on
performance related basis within the framework of the Group's salary,
incentives and bonus scheme. All of our employees are entitled to statutory
holidays, including national public holidays, compassionate leave and
annual leave.

The Group's Recruitment Policy is in compliance with local regulations and
employees under 16 years of age are not allowed to be hired. The Group
embraces work life balance culture and looks after our employees' physical
and mental well-being. Employees are entitled to leaves as provided under
the relevant regulations and work hours shall not exceed the statutory
work hours' limit.

Health and Safety

Parkson is committed to providing a safe workplace and protecting
the health and ensuring safety of all our employees. We have created
an infrastructure, established mechanisms and procedures to prevent
accidents and help protect our employees and the assets they work with by
following accepted standards and practices. We have in place Production
Safety Management System and Safe Production Management Policies
as listed below, to provide clear guidelines on areas including roles &
responsibilities, operational safety and preventive measures, employee
rights and obligations, accident investigations and handling, etc. to our
employees:

i) Safe Production Training Policy
i) Production Safety Inspection Policy

iii) Safety Management Policy of Place of Business, Equipment and
Facilities

iv) Personal Protective Equipment Provision and Management Policy
V) Accident Reporting and Handling Policy

The concept of safety is continuously reinforced amongst our employees
through a number of channels such as periodic training, speeches on
firefighting, emergency mock drills, safety campaigns, health knowledge
lectures, field inspections together with landlords, periodic safety
inspections and displays on safety, in order to promote health and
safety during work. We encourage our staff to obtain fire management
qualification certificates and reimburse for related examination fees.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT H£E#&HE

AEBERESERFNE TXNETSREET
AEBBFNOF I WARIE AR E QBN -
BENRSEHE  SEEMEZER Y
BTHETRB -MEETIHEREERY
BREBRAKEBH FRARER

AEB (ABREEERE) e AR
E3R o AAFERARMI6E RN EIRE K
SEEBVYHERETIE VALCETINS
DR B THAEMRBRERN  BTHTIE
B NS BATE TIER ] o

BEHRZE

BERBRINABEIRELZEMNIIEREY
REFMBEIMNREHELZE KMAIETE
MEIREE BRARNIZEMREIE B
TIER EMFRER N E T E E MK
HIFIEF - HMGIE T TEELEEIREE
AN EEERHE UWETERE &
B2 JEMEE BT EMNERR B
FENEEE T EAE TIRMERAEAIED

v SEERMEEMEESE
v) LEEEFWRENEIESE

BAPBRETE RE OBFERE B FHR
B 225 BENESHEE ZXBaK
5 EHTERE ZEETHMELER
B TEHRSEINZEEH  RETER
B2 IS BB TEBUA B2 1HR
BEREE IR WHEBEEAER-



ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In 2019, we held some entertaining athletic activities such as "Parkson
Cup” to provide our employees opportunities to relax and exercise
themselves after work, and thus creating healthy, united and harmonious
corporate culture and atmosphere.

Development and Training

Parkson is a learning organization that encourages employees' professional
and personal development as part of our culture. Confronted by the
changes in the retail industry, employee training and development has
become more important than ever. Therefore, we continuously promote
employees' skills to support our transformation strategies.

Through a structured career development program, we assist our
employees to find the intersection between their aspirations and Parkson's
company goals. We offer a vast array of training programs to employees at
different levels, covering orientation to new comers and leadership training
to senior management. In addition, we cooperate with external training
institutions to help our employees improve professional skills and develop
leadership skills.

In 2019, Parkson carried out AMA (American Management Association)
win-win negotiation skills training for 30 management staffs to improve
their negotiation strength through the aspects of negotiation skills,
expertise, negotiation mentality, etc.

We have also established the /nternal Lecturer Management System to
encourage our employees to act as part-time lecturers, so as to better
motivate them to work actively, demonstrate expertise and surpass
themselves.

OPERATION

As a household name with more than 20 years' experience in China's retail
sector, Parkson places high priority on the quality of the products provided
to our customers and ensures that our suppliers share the same philosophy
with us.
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The Group strictly complies with the following Chinese product
responsibility laws in its daily operation:

i) Laws of the People's Republic of China on Product Quality {#ZA
R 2 in & &)%)

ii) Law of the People’'s Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumer/?/ghrsand/nterests (hEANRLFE G EE IR

ﬂx /f)
i) Advertisement Law of the People's Republic of China (FFZEA FH4E
B & &%)

iv) Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (' ZE A &£l
B B 17204 )

Supply Chain Management

The Group is in continuous search for the highest quality merchandise
at a competitive price, to satisfy consumers' increasing demand for high
quality products. We work hand in hand with our suppliers to make
improvements in quality, designs and prices. Parkson ensures that suppliers
and business tenants comply with relevant national laws and regulations
by the implementation of the Purchaser and Supplier Management Policy
and the Environmental and Social Risk Management System for Suppliers
and Business Tenants.

We pay attention to the sustainable development of supply chain, and
convey the concept and requirements of sustainable development to
our suppliers, in order to encourage them to steer towards sustainable
development and social responsibility fulfilment. Supplier management
policies and corresponding operating procedures relating to the different
categories of products have been developed to guide the supply chain
management.

For purpose of enhancing the integrity awareness of suppliers and
safequarding the interests of both parties, we require each supplier to sign
the Letter of Commitment of Integrity to jointly build a frank, honest and
trustworthy cooperative relationship.
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Product Responsibility

As stipulated in the Supplier Management Policy, suppliers' qualification/
credentials are carefully vetted before being admitted into our list of
qualified suppliers. A complete response mechanism is in place to handle
product recalls timely and smoothly. Process for Handling Non-conforming
Products was formulated to trace the defective products, and prevent the
stores from using or taking out of non-conforming products. The Store
Food Safety Management Policy is followed by the Group to manage the
food quality and safety during the operations of F&B stores, and we also
provide regular trainings on food safety to enhance employees' awareness
on food safety.

The Group's own brand "Hogan Bakery”, adhering to the tenet of "quality
first, customer foremost”, has prepared the Quality Management Manual
to ensure product safety. We strictly control the processes, such as
procurement, delivery quality inspection and timely disposal of returned
goods. By establishing standardized store services and franchise treaties,
as well as implementing strict quality management system and scientific
production processes, we have been recognized by consumers. In 2019,
customer satisfaction for "Hogan Bakery" reached 99%.

Optimizing the Shopping Experience

In order to provide a healthy, safe and comfortable shopping environment
to our customers, the Group strictly implements the Stores Facilities
Maintenance and Safe Operations Policy and continues to reinforce
operation and maintenance management on shopping mall facilities
including elevators, escalators, firefighting equipment, etc.

We value our customers' experience and demands and constantly
improve our customer relationship system through continuous customer
interaction. In addition, we maintain a keen insight into market tendency
and launch new experience and better services in keeping with the
evolution of customers' lifestyle to improve customer satisfaction. Product
knowledge and service skill training are also part of our routine training
programs to ensure that our employees can provide the best quality service
to our customers.

Protecting Customers' Rights and Interests

The Group is committed to protecting our customers' rights, interest
and privacy. Channels for complaints and suggestions are provided in
each store. We comply with the Consumers’ Privacy Protection Policy to
safequard consumers' right of privacy and protect customers' information.

In 2019, Parkson has checked members' information twice to avoid the
leakage of consumer information.
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Standardizing Compliance Operation

Parkson conducts strict review over the contents of its advertisements, to
ensure conformity with the Advertisement Law of the People's Republic
of China (P #E A K £ 15 & £ %) and other applicable laws and
regulations in China.

By continuously strengthening trademark management, Parkson protects
its exclusive rights to use trademarks and does not infringe the trademark
rights of others.

Parkson has also formulated rules to regulate texts and pictures used in
WeChat official account, so as to ensure that the network information
published does not contain materials without purchased copyrights.

Anti-corruption

A transparent and clean cultural environment is essential to a healthy
enterprise culture. Parkson strictly complies with the following
anticorruption laws of China in its daily operation:

i) Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China {H ZE A £ £ 1 B
FHZED

ii) Law of the People’s Republic of China against Unfair Competition
(RTIEE#HFZ)

iii) Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery (G2 1F &

KR TRV ETTHE)

Parkson maintains a high standard of business integrity, and has joined the
Enterprise Anti-Fraud Autonomous Cooperation Organization, Enterprise
Anti-Fraud Alliance and Trust and Integrity Enterprise Alliance. Parkson
adopts a "zero tolerance” policy for corruption or bribery in any form.,
Parkson requires our suppliers to sign the Letter of Commitment of
Integrity and share the same “zero tolerance” policy towards bribery or
corruption.

Customers, suppliers, business partners and employees can report any

suspicious event by means of e-mail and telephone:

E-mail: Anti-Fraud@ 139.com;
Phone No.: +86 21-3258 0566;
Mobile phone No.: +86 137 9535 5237 or +86 137 9520 2119
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PUBLIC WELFARE

With corporate social responsibility in mind, Parkson has been passionately
serving and giving back to the community by engaging in charity work.
The Group has formulated Farkson Group Charitable and Public Welfare
Activities Management Policy to manage social welfare activities organized
by the Group. In 2019, some of the community activities carried out by our
network of stores across the nation are as follows:

Empty Bottle Recycling Programme
ZRE W RERTE
From 19 April 2019 to 22 April 2019,
Parkson joined hands with Kiehl's to
launch the empty bottle recycling
programme to encourage consumers to
recycle their cosmetics bottles.
—ET-AFOATABE=-+Z
CAREBFHEARARBARMER
@Hﬁz?ﬁl,ﬁ‘%%%ﬂ B ENEEE Rk
fn ZE HRE 1T @ UL

Harbin Taipinggiao Parkson-"Angels that Live on Earth”
Charity Activity

Harbin Taipinggiao Parkson held a charity activity on the theme
of "Angels that Live on Earth" in 2019. This is the second year of
this series of charity activities for the disabled children held by
Parkson. Taipinggiao Parkson
donated daily necessities,
school supplies, school
uniforms and flowers to the
disabled children from Harbin
Liaoyuan School, and auctioned
the handicrafts made by these
children, raising nearly ten
thousand yuan for school
improvement.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEBHRSES

The Board (the "Board") of directors (the "Directors") of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company” and together with its subsidiaries, the
"Group”) presents this report to the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders") together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
3 August 2005, acts as an investment company. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the principal activities of the Group are the operation
and management of a network of department stores in the PRC. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2019, which includes an analysis of the Group's performance using
financial key performance indicators are set out in the section headed
"Management Discussion and Analysis" on page 14 to 22 of this report.
The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set
out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. The principal risks
and uncertainties that the Group may face, particulars of important events
affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, and an indication of likely future development in the Company's
business are set out in the section headed "Chairman's Statement” on
page 6 to page 9 of this report. A discussion on the Group's environmental
policies and relationships with its key stakeholders and investors are
set out in the section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” on page 50 to page 65 of this report. An analysis of the Group's
performance indicators are set out in the section headed "Financial
Highlights" on page 10 to page 11 of this report. The compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact on the Group
is set out in this Directors' report. The reviews form part of this statement.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 96.

FIXED ASSETS

Changes on the Group's fixed assets are disclosed on note 11 of the
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2019
and as at the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem (Chairman)

Chong Sui Hiong (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 1 February 2019)

Juliana Cheng San San

He Dong (Note 1)

Non-executive Directors
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato' Fu Ah Kiow
Ko Desmond
Yau Ming Kim, Robert

NOTES:

1. Re-designated from a Non-executive Director to an Executive Director on 5
May 2019 and appointed as a Chief Financial Officer of the Group on 5 May
2019. He had resigned from all positions on 31 October 2019.

Details of the profile of each member of the Board are set out in the
"Biographies of Directors and senior management” section on pages 23 to
29.

In accordance with Article 130 of the Articles of Association, Dato' Fu Ah
Kiow and Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiary corporations, which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
THAT HAVE A SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE COMPANY

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, the Directors were not aware of any
non-compliance by the Company with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on the Company.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
report, none of the Directors were interested in any business apart from
the Company's business, which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report,
a permitted indemnity provision as defined in the Companies Ordinance
was in force for the benefit of the Directors. The Company has taken out
and maintained appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential losses
or liabilities which the Directors or officers may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of their duties of their office during the year ended 31
December 2019.

EQUITY LINK AGREEMENT

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which any such Director or Chief Executive is
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be entered into the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or which were otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were set out below:

(a)

Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company:
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)Sé BITBABEFE AR B S H E R FHE%
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Number and Approximate
Name of Class of  Percentage of
Nature of Interest Name of Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Securities Shareholding?
HHEE IR REBE A
EHEME ZREEAERR EXBEAES RE Rl Bk
Corporate interest PRG Corporation Limited PRG Corporation 1,438,300,000 54.59%
NAIEZ ("PRG Corporation”) ordinary shares
1,438,300,000A%
Corporate interest East Crest International Limited East Crest 9,970,000 0.38%
NEIEZ ("East Crest") ordinary shares
9,970,000
% & iR
NOTES: Bt &
1. Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem, together with his wife, Puan Sri Chan 1. R EEEHREREZ T ENERUE

Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har, through their interests and a series
of companies in which they have a substantial interest, are entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of more than one-third of the
voting power at general meetings of PHB. Since PHB is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of 100% of the voting power at
general meeting of PRG Corporation through East Crest, pursuant
to the SFO, he is deemed to be interested in both the 1,438,300,000
Shares held by PRG Corporation and the 9,970,000 Shares held by
East Crest in the Company.

2. Based on the issued and paid up capital of the Company as at 31
December 2019.
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T i ERER LT Bt BIBEES
K BRI &4 - #4% /B FAPRG CorporationfT
5 7K A T)1,438,300,000% J& 17 Kz East Crest
FIT#%5 28 A 79,970,000 A% A% 1 o 75 #E 25 ©

2. NARBIR-_FE-NF+_A=1+—HR
WEETRBERAREE-

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BHEBEXEEBAERA R

69



)

q)
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EFBREE

(b) Long positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

PHB

East Crest

Puncak Pelita Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Properties Holdings

Co,, Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Investment

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Prime Yield Holdings Limited

Corporate Code Sdn. Bhd.

PRG Corporation

Smart Spectrum Limited

Nature of Interest
EEME

Beneficial interest and
corporate interest

EnEnlk
AAlER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

2019 ANNUAL REPORT HFE®RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har directly,
and through a series of
controlled corporations

R EEERERALEE
HERNEEE REB
— Ry EEE

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

b) FAHBEBERNARREBEE (E
EABHFLHEGRD) R 4F

=N

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BnEAAEH

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his
spouse Chan Chau Ha
alias Chan Chow Har
directly, and through
a series of controlled
corporations

A EEERERA
RBERERNE

B JEB—ZT)

RBEE

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

PHB

East Crest

East Crest

Number and

Class of Securities

#EYE
K35

628,455,084
ordinary shares
628,455,084/%

Liak

1 ordinary share

RE AR

2 ordinary shares

WRE BB

2 ordinary shares

WRE BB

2 ordinary shares

WRE BB

1 ordinary share

RE AR

2 ordinary shares

WE BB

1 ordinary share

RE AR

1 ordinary share

RE AR

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
RERQ
ok

58.88%0

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Approximate

Name of Name of Name of Number and  Percentage of
Associated Corporation Nature of Interest Registered Owner Beneficial Owner Class of Securities ~ Shareholding
#5HE REHD
HEEEER BntE BREEAER ERZREALH REH ok
Park Avenue Fashion Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 250,002 100%
Sdn. Bhd. NEER ordinary shares
250,002f% & A i
Serbadagang Holdings Corporate interest East Crest East Crest 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn. Bhd. ARl WE R
Parkson Retail Asia Limited ~ Beneficial interest and ~ Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and ~ Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 458,433,300 68.03%
corporate interest through East Crest and through East ordinary shares
BRahRaEs AHEEERR Crest 458,433,3008%
i# B East Crest FHHEEERK Lak
i B Fast Crest
Parkson Properties NDT Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings Parkson Properties 2 ordinary shares 100%
(Emperor) Co., Ltd. NGIL Co,, Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. MR E B
Parkson Properties Hanoi Corporate interest Parkson Properties Holdings Parkson Properties 1 ordinary share 100%
Co,, Ltd. AEES Co., Ltd. Holdings Co., Ltd. 1RE R
Parkson TSN Holdings Corporate interest Parkson Vietnam Investment ~ Parkson Vietnam 2 ordinary shares 100%
Co,, Ltd. NEER Holdings Co., Ltd. Investment Holdings 2R AR
Co,, Ltd.
Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
AR Limited W E AR
Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
AR Limited W E AR
Prestasi Serimas Sdn. Bhd. Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited Prime Yield Holdings 2,000,000 100%
NElER Limited ordinary shares
2,000,000
Parkson Credit Holdings Corporate interest Prime Yield Holdings Limited ~ Prime Yield Holdings 2 ordinary shares 100%
Sdn. Bhd. AR Limited WRE B
cc
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Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

PT. Tozy Sentosa

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co,,
Pte. Ltd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFBREE

Nature of Interest
BEEME

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
AEES

Corporate interest
AEES

2019 ANNUAL REPORT HFE®RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BRERAEH

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Centro Retail Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Number and
Class of Securities

#5EHE
R 3R

2 ordinary shares
(SGD)
WEBR
(#7T)

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
REBEK
(HEH)

45,000

Series A
common shares
45,000
AZTIE B

5,000

Series A
common shares
5,000
AR E B

30,355,850
Series B
preference shares
30,355,850
BRIIE LR

82,000,002
ordinary shares
82,000,002
L@k

1 ordinary share
(SGD)
1REER
(#7)

1 ordinary share
(MYR)
1REER
(HEH)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBL
AW

100%

100%
(in aggregate)
(&)

100%

100%

100%



Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

Parkson Yangon Company

Limited

Parkson HBT Properties
Co., Ltd.

|daman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Giftmate Sdn. Bhd.

Ombrello Resources Sdn.Bhd

Parkson SGN Co., Ltd.

Nature of Interest

BatE

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NAlER

Corporate interest
NI 5

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Parkson Retail Asia Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas Sdn.Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

BRERAEH

Parkson Retail Asia
Limited

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson TSN Holdings
Co., Ltd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Dyna Puncak Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Gema Binari Sdn. Bhd.

Prestasi Serimas
Sdn.Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Number and
Class of Securities

#5EHE
R 3R

1,900,000
ordinary shares
1,900,000

& B

100,000 ordinary
shares
100,000 & 3 %

2,100,000
capital (USD)
% 752,100,000
(%(7)

2 ordinary shares
WEBR

2 ordinary shares
WEBR

1 ordinary share

& AR

7,000,000
ordinary shares
7,000,0001%
TR

120,000
ordinary shares
120,0008%
TR

457,000
ordinary shares
457,0008% & 8 %

4,500,000
Capital (USD)
% 754,500,000
(%)

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBL
AW

100%
(in aggregate)
(&)

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

60%

100%

100%

¢ C
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Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

Parkson Cambodia Holdings
Co., Ltd.

Parkson Edutainment World

Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd.

Kiara Innovasi Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Haiphong Co., Ltd.

Parkson Unlimited Beauty

Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Trends Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Private Label Sdn.
Bhd.

Nature of Interest

BatE

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NalEsR

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
ARER

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
AR

Corporate interest
AR

2019 ANNUAL REPORT HFE®RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BRERAEH

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Number and
Class of Securities

#5EHE
R 3R

1 ordinary share

1 B AR

1,000,000
ordinary shares
1,000,0008%
el

35,000,000
ordinary shares
35,000,0008%
TRk

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,0008%
EBR

30,000,920
capital (USD)

% 730,000,920
(%(7)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,0008%
EiBR

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,0008%
T

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,000 & 1 fix

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBL
AW

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%



Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

Parkson Trading (Vietnam)

Company Limited

Solid Gatelink Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment

Company Pte. Ltd.

Festival City Sdn. Bhd.

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

Parkson Fashion Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Branding (L) Limited

(Note 1) (Struck off on
6 July 2019)

Parkson Branding (L) Limited
(BE1) (RZZ—h

FLANBEH)

Nature of Interest

BatE

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
NAlER

Corporate interest
NalEsR

Corporate interest
ARl

Corporate interest
NEER

Corporate interest
AEER

Corporate interest
NalEsR

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co., Pte. Ltd.

|daman Erajuta Sdn. Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn. Bhd.

True Excel Investments Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Branding Sdn. Bhd.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Name of
Beneficial Owner

BRERAEH

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Corporation
Sdn. Bhd.

Parkson Myanmar Co.,
Pte. Ltd.

Idaman Erajuta Sdn.
Bhd.

Magna Rimbun Sdn.
Bhd.

True Excel Investments
Limited

Parkson Branding Sdn.
Bhd.

Parkson Branding Sdn.
Bhd.

Number and

Class of Securities

#5EHE
R 3R

300,000
capital (USD)
F% 45300,000

(%)

3,000,000
ordinary shares
3,000,0008%
TRk

10,340,000
capital (USD)
A% 510,340,000
(%)

2,100,000
ordinary shares
2,100,000f%
TR

500,000
ordinary shares
500,0001% & 37 A%

300,000
ordinary shares
300,0008% & 37 A%

1,000
ordinary shares
10008 & & %

5,000,000
ordinary shares
5,000,0008%
i

300,000
ordinary shares
300,0001% & 37 A%

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBL
AW

100%

100%

100%

70%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

¢ C
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Name of
Associated Corporation

BB ZEER

Parkson (Cambodia) Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam
Management Services Co.,
Ltd

Parkson Myanmar Asia
Pte. Ltd.

Myanmar Parkson Company
Limited

Dimensi Andaman Sdn. Bhd.

Nature of Interest

BatE

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
NEER

Corporate interest
NalER

Corporate interest
AEER

Corporate interest
NEER

2019 ANNUAL REPORT HFE®RE

Name of
Registered Owner

BRERAEHE

Name of
Beneficial Owner

BRERAEH

Parkson Cambodia Holdings Co., Parkson Cambodia

Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Co., Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Investment
Company Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia
Pte. Ltd.

Megan Mastika Sdn. Bhd.

Holdings Co., Ltd.

Parkson Vietnam Co.,,
Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar
Investment Company
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar
Investment Company
Pte. Ltd.

Parkson Myanmar Asia
Pte. Ltd.

Megan Mastika Sdn.
Bhd.

Number and

Class of Securities

#5EHE
R 3R

1,000
ordinary shares
10008 & 3B X

100,000
capital (USD)
% 45100,000

(%)

30,000

ordinary shares
(USD)
30,0001 & & X
(%)

1 ordinary share
(SGD)
REBEK
(#7T)

270,000
ordinary shares
270,000 & 1 i%

30,000 ordinary
shares
30,000f% & 1 i

300,000

ordinary shares
300,0001% & 37 A%

53,719,999
redeemable
convertible
cumulative
preference shares
53,719,999
B G AT R
ZRELR

Approximate
Percentage of
Shareholding
REBL
AW

100%

100%

100%

100%
(in aggregate)
(&)

100%
(in aggregate)
(&)



(0)

NOTE:
1.

NOTES:

Parkson Branding (L) Limited will be deemed dissolved if its name
remains struck off continuously for 3 years from 6 July 2019 but
Labuan Financial Services Authority may apply to the Court on
or before the expiration of 3 years to have Parkson Branding (L)
Limited put into liquidation.

The Companies Commission of Malaysia ("CCM") had on 5 February
2020 notified that Parkson Online Sdn. Bhd. ("POSB"), a dormant
wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by Parkson Retail Asia
Limited which is a 67.96% owned subsidiary of PHB, had following
its application for deregistration in June 2019, been struck off the
CCM's register and dissolved on 7 October 2019 and ceased to be a
subsidiary of PHB and an associated corporation of the Company.

Short positions of Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem in the share capital of
the Company's associated corporations (as defined in the SFO):

Name of
Associated Corporation

Loy

PHB

Name of

Nature of Interest Registered Owner

B4

Bt

BRERAERHE

Corporate interest
NS

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
together with his spouse
Chan Chau Ha alias
Chan Chow Har directly,
and through a series of
controlled corporations

RHEEERERHLERE
HERNEEE REB
—RIIREEE

Based on the issued and paid up share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2019.
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EFBTREE

fidlParkson Branding (L) Limited® & E —
T NEFLANARBE=ZFRIFEN
BIE B E BRE - B M ZemREE
12 BRI = F B i 5 2 B AA BT B 76 1
Parkson Branding (L) Limited5 £ °

BRATAFZEG ([CCM)R=ZZ=
T4 — A 7 H & FParkson Online Sdn. Bhd.
(TPOSBJ) (Parkson Retail Asia Limitedf&
BEHENELEETHZ2EWNBERR M
Parkson Retail Asia Limited & PHBYE /& 67.96%
M BAT) BN -_E—HENABREBHE
e YR =T —hF+ At HRCM
EMEE AR B APHBHKE A
A R AR AR HEEE A E -

FHETBEERNARREBEE (F
FERESFMYEGRD) BT %

=N

Approximate

Name of Number and  Percentage of

Beneficial Owner Class of Securities  Shareholding

REHS

EZREALH ESHERER Aok

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem 40,000,142 3.74%
together with his ordinary shares
spouse Chan Chau Ha 40,000,142%
alias Chan Chow Har LR

directly, and through
a series of controlled
corporations

R EEERERA

BB ERNE
B REB—X5I
XEEE

it
1.

WARRAR-F-AF+-A=+—A
MEHTRMRBAREE.

cc
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFQ), or are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Save from the above disclosure, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2019 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; nor was the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiary corporations or fellow subsidiary corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT FERIRAROREBRROHOESZR
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES RE

As at 31 December 2019, so far as the Directors are aware, each of the WN_-ZE—AFE+_A=+—H BEE=MHN
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, %1 A TEA LT (WIHARREFHZSIT
had interests and short positions in the Company's shares which falls to be XA B ) RARA T RMH P AR AR
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of — ZBARIE &5 R EI S EHIEXVEFE 2R E30 Y
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO: [DEAVNCIDSE 3

Percentage of
Shareholding

(direct or

Name of Shareholder Long/Short Positions Nature of Interest Number of Shares indirect)

BRREH He/ %R EEME RO#E B)

PHB Lon Corporate interest 1,448,270,000 54.97%

9 p

i DA (Note 1)
(BizE1)

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Long Interest of spouse 1,448,270,000 54.97%
Chan Chow Har e L (Note 2)
(MzE2)

PRG Corporation Long Beneficial interest 1,438,300,000 54.59%
#R B (Note 1)
(BtzE1)

Chan Kin Lon Corporate interest 548,278,580 20.82%

9 p

B e NS o (Note 3)
(MEE3)

Argyle Street Management Long Corporate interest 548,721,080 20.82%
Holdings Limited e ArlER (Note 3)
(MEE3)

Argyle Street Management Limited Long Investment manager 548,278,580 20.82%
HE RELE (Note 3)
(PEE3)

ASM Connaught House Long Corporate interest 534,851,080 20.30%
General Partner I Limited S Al 3 (Note 3)
(MzE3)

ASM Connaught House Fund LP Long Beneficial interest and corporate interest 540,106,580 20.50%
55} Enfn Rk RrER (Note 3)
(MEE3)

cc
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Name of Shareholder

BRRERB

ASM Connaught House
General Partner Limited

ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP
Bishan Street Limited ("Bishan")

Wang Hung Roger
ERE]

Wang Hsu Vivine H
THREE

GEICO Holdings Limited

Golden Eagle International Retail
Group Limited

Wang Dorothy S L
Wang Janice SY

HSBC Holdings PLc

Long/Short Positions

BR/ KR

Long
HE

Long
g

Long
e

Long
HE

Long
e

Long
e

Long
e

Long
He

Long
3

Long
R
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Nature of Interest

BitE

Corporate interest

N/

NSE- 5

Corporate interest
NAIEE

Beneficial interest and
security interest

EnknhERER
neficial interest and trustee

Be
EnfnlXAEA

Interest of spouse and beneficiary of a trust

EBERMEEXEA

Corporate interest
NGIL: 3

Beneficial interest

Beneficiary of a trust
EREXEA

Beneficiary of a trust

EERE

Corporate interest
NGIE S

Number of Shares

RH#E

540,106,580
(Note 3)
(F3E3)

534,851,080
[N‘ote 3)
(FzE3)

527,948,080
(Note 3)
GEXD

397,129,000
(Note 4)
(Fi3E4)

397,129,000
[N‘ote 5)
(HzE5)

395,686,846
(Note 6)
(Kizx6)

395,686,846
(Note 6)
(Fi3te)

395,686,846

395,686,846

250,000,000
(Note 7)
(HzE7)

Percentage of
Shareholding
(direct or
indirect)
FRAEAL
(B
m#)

20.50%

20.30%

20.03%

15.07%

15.07%

15.01%

15.01%

15.01%

15.01%

9.48%



NOTES:

PRG Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of East Crest which in turn is
wholly-owned by PHB. By virtue of the SFO, PHB is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by PRG Corporation in the Company.

Puan Sri Chan Chau Ha alias Chan Chow Har is the wife of Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem and is deemed to be interested in 1,448,270,000 Shares which
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem is deemed to be interested in for the purposes of
the SFO.

According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock Exchange's
website, Mr. Chan Kin is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
several corporations which he directly or indirectly controls. Out of these
548,721,080 Shares, 3,748,080 Shares are interests in cash-settled unlisted
derivatives.

Bishan and ASM Connaught House Fund LP beneficially owned 3,748,080
and 12,158,500 Shares respectively. Bishan also held 524,200,000 securities
interest on the Shares among the 527,948,080 Shares it is interested in.

Bishan was held indirectly by Argyle Street Management Limited as the
Investment Manager through ASM Connaught House Fund Il LP, ASM
Connaught House Fund LP and several other controlled corporations. ASM
Connaught House General Partner Il Limited and ASM Connaught House
General Partner Limited were two wholly controlled corporations of Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Mr. Chan Kin has 100% control over
Argyle Street Management Limited through his 50.43% control over Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Chan Kin, Argyle
Street Management Holding Limited and Argyle Street Management Limited
were deemed to be interested in an aggregate holding of 548,721,080
Shares by virtue of the SFO.

The capacities of Wang Hung Roger in holding the 397,129,000 Shares
(Long position) were as to 8,289,154 Shares (Long position) as beneficial
owner and 388,839,846 Shares (Long position) as trustee.

Wang Hsu Vivine H is the wife of Wang Hung Roger and is deemed to be
interested in 397,129,000 Shares held by Wang Hung Roger.

Golden Eagle International Retail Group Limited is wholly-owned by GEICO
Holdings Limited. By virtue of the SFO, GEICO Holdings Limited is deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited in the Company.
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PRG Corporation/ZEast Crestf) 2 & i &
/X&) MEast CrestX HPHBE B A ©
ERNFH K EE GG PHBME IR ERPRG
CorporationfE A X B #5 A K AR ) 7 #E A 1

.
e

EHEMMEANTEEIRNET B
REBEHFRBEEY WEEREATES
FEFRWAR B A R 2 AY1,448,270,0000% A%
D HRE S

BIRE R TR AT S S AR R
REEWEBRBREEERHEL %IJ
RARIFTEHENRD TP HEEERD - EXF
548,721,0800% i% 15 71 3,748,0800% A% 19 & 7
FIMBSEETETARMER-

B|shan)§ZASl\/| Connaught House Fund LP% Bl

5 #E 53,748,080 2.12,158,500% i {7 ° £
Ei‘?ﬁﬁ%?&ﬁ%wmso%%ﬁﬂﬁ# Bishan
T2 524,200,0004% A% 17 7 78 A R 2 o

BishanFH Argyle Street Management Limited
(ERIE L) B BASM Connaught
House Fund Il LP*ASM Connaught House
Fund LPRBIK B ZEMERE -
ASM Connaught House General Partner Il
Limited 2ASM Connaught House General
Partner Limited &Argyle Street Management
Holding Limited® K 5t & X 125 F o
BR 2 55 A i35 38 H ¥k /5 50.43001% i #E &Y
Argyle Street Management Holding Limited &
& Argyle Street Management Limited #100%
ZHIRE - Bt ARIEF 5 R E O R
fi# 5 4 ~ Argyle Street Management Holding
Limited &2 Argyle Street Management Limited
AR BRE 51548,721,0808% AR 15 ) 45 A A
AR -

T fE AT 45 B #9397,129,0000% f% 15 (17 &)
8,289,154 1D (ITB)ANE=RES
ANF1D1EE  M388,839,84604 A% 10 (1A )
INZFEABEDEE -

ITHEBRAITENHEF HRERTER
A #9397,129,0000% A% 15 A #E A #E 2w o

Golden Eagle International Retail Group
Limited 81 GEICO Holdings Limited & & A °

ANiE FH R HAE 1] - GEICO Holdings
Limited#% 12 #E P Golden Eagle International
Retail Group Limited T8 BY AR A R IR
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7. According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock Exchange's 7. IRIRBE A AL A SR R EE R
website, HSBC Holdings PLc is deemed to be interested in the Shares held HSBC Holdings PLeti iR AN B REZRE R
through a number of its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The interest in the BN BARIFFBMRMNDFHEEREZ K
security is in the form of a "Charge” over the securities. iR AE S (W] BRAKRR-

As at 31 December 2019, as far as the Directors are aware, each of the E@i%—ﬂij—:ﬁi %fi H "?Jf%;%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ A
following persons, not being a Director or Chief Executive of the Company, FEUAL (WFARAFEFAHEBTHAR)

3z 5t *f{: £ =R =1 NS E3UN
was directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value ERRAERAARERIANE (SRR

. o . ) ET B R AR AN (BE PR ) P FE R AT IB 0 T R AR R
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at K 0 ) A 10%3E A F g -

general meeting of a member of the Group other than the Company:

Percentage of
Equity Interest

Substantial Shareholder Member of the Group Held
FERE

FERR AEBRE QT Batt

Xinjiang Youhao' Xinjiang Parkson 49%

iy gl 98 B R

Wuxi Supply and Marketing? Wuxi Parkson 40%

1 5 i 852 E SRR

Guizhou Shengi Enterprise® Guizhou Parkson 40%

M T EE EMEE

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Lion Property* 71%

FEABEE Mabi=3 b kY S

Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson® 29%

FBNEBEE FRNEERS

Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited® Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. 51%

BREATEREEE (L8)BRAT

Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited’ Nanchang Parkson Newcore Retail Ltd. 51%

MEARAERERRAR

Parkson Credit Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. 30%
Koh Wee Lit Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 40.55%
Bernice Cheong Nyuk Siew Habitat Blue Sdn. Bhd. 16.67%
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Xinjiang Friendship (Group) Co., Ltd. owns 49% of the equity interest of
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development Co., Ltd. ("Xinjiang Parkson").

Wuxi Supply and Marketing Group Co., Ltd. owns 40% of the equity interest
of Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Wuxi Parkson").

(i) Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise, owns 40% of the equity interest of
Guizhou Parkson.

(i) Zhang Pei, Zhang Zhi Jun and Zhang Ya, own 30%, 40% and 30%
of the equity interest in Guizhou Shenqi Enterprise, respectively,
representing a 12%, 16% and 12% indirect equity interest in
Guizhou Parkson.

Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Lion
Property") is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the
laws of the PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry”) and Exonbury Limited ("Exonbury”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. According to public records, Shanghai Nine Sea
Industry and Exonbury owns 54.79% and 45.21% of the equity interest in
Shanghai Lion Property respectively. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the
Group are entitled to 71% and 29% of the voting rights in the board of
Shanghai Lion Property respectively under a mutual agreement between
both parties. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 65%
and 35% of the distributable profits of Shanghai Lion Property respectively.

Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ("Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson")
is a cooperative joint venture enterprise established under the laws of the
PRC between Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and Exonbury. According to public
records, Exonbury owns 100% of the equity interest in Shanghai Nine Sea
Parkson. Shanghai Nine Sea Industry and the Group are entitled to 29%
and 71% of the voting rights in the board of Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson
respectively under a mutual agreement between both parties. Shanghai
Nine Sea Industry is entitled to a pre-determined distribution of income
from Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson while the Group is entitled to 100% of its
distributed profit after deducting the aforesaid pre-determined distribution
of income attributable to Shanghai Nine Sea Industry.

Newcore Retail Hong Kong Limited ("Newcore Hong Kong") owns 51%
of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. ("Parkson
Newcore").

Parkson Newcore owns 100% of the equity interest in Nanchang Parkson
Newcore Retail Ltd. ("Nanchang Newcore"). Newcore Hong Kong owns 51%
of the equity interest in Parkson Newcore, and thus Newcore Hong Kong is
indirectly interested in 519% of the equity interest in Nanchang Newcore.
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Save as disclosed above and so far as the Directors are aware, as at 31
December 2019, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Company's shares or underlying shares (as the case may be), which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or was otherwise
directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company or his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the financial year 2019 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.

No contract of significance was entered into between any member of
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries corporations or contract of significance for the provision of
services to any member of the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisted as at the end of the financial year 2019 or during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OR CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

There were no discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report.
None of the "Related Party Disclosures” as disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-
exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules. To
the extent of the above "Related Party Disclosures” constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in the Listing
Rules, the company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Deed of Non-competition

A deed of non-competition was entered into between Lion Diversified
Holdings Berhad ("LDHB") and the Company on 10 November 2005
(supplemented and amended on 18 September 2007), under which LDHB
has undertaken not to engage, other than through the existing managed
stores, in any business of the retail trade in merchandise in department
stores, supermarkets, hypermarkets, convenience stores, specialty
merchandise stores, supercentres and category killers in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan. Pursuant to a reorganization scheme undertaken
by LDHB, LDHB had agreed to consolidate most of its retail business
(including most of its existing managed stores in the PRC) into PHB. In
light thereof, PHB has entered into an identical deed of non-competition
with the Company on 18 September 2007 with respect to those managed
stores acquired from LDHB. In conjunction therewith, LDHB has granted an
indemnity in favour of the Company which will be invoked if PHB fails to
fulfill its obligation under the aforesaid deed of non-competition dated 18
September 2007.

The principal businesses of LDHB are manufacturing and selling computer
and related products, developing property, investment holding and others.
The principal business of PHB is operation of department stores and PHB
is a substantial shareholder of the Company and therefore a connected
person of the Company. Both PHB and LDHB are members of The Lion
Group which is ultimately controlled by Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem and
hence, LDHB is a connected person of the Company. Save for Tan Sri
Cheng Heng Jem who has material interest in the aforesaid transaction,
none of the directors have a material interest in the aforesaid transaction
and need to be abstained from voting in respect thereof. Tan Sri Cheng
Heng Jem is deemed interested in the aforesaid transaction and has been
abstained from voting in any of the resolutions in relation to the aforesaid
transaction.

Trademark license agreement

A trademark license agreement was entered into between Shanghai Lion
Investment (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and
Parkson Corporation on 9 November 2005, pursuant to which Parkson
Corporation granted to Shanghai Lion Investment an exclusive license
to use certain trademarks, including the "Parkson” and "Xtra" trademarks
for a term of 30 years at the license fee of RMB30,000 per store per
annum. The Trademark was subsequently assigned by Parkson Corporation
to Smart Spectrum Limited on 14 June 2011. All rights, obligation, and
liabilities under the Licence Agreement were therefore novated by Parkson
Corporation to Smart Spectrum Limited on 1 August 2011.
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Smart Spectrum Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of PHB (and hence
an associate of PHB) and its principal activity is investment holding. None
of the directors has a material interest in the aforesaid trademark license
agreement and needs to be abstained from voting in respect thereof.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the transactions
had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them and

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed interest in any of the
Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands although there
are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND PENSION SCHEMES

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
employees. The remuneration payable to employees includes salaries and
allowance/bonuses.

The Group has also made contributions to staff-related plans or funds in
accordance with the local regulations of the PRC: pension plans, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and
maternity insurance.

The Group has been advised by its legal advisers on PRC law that the above
arrangements are in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is principally engaged in retail sales, none of its customers
and suppliers accounted for more than 5% of its turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2019. None of the directors or shareholders who
owned 5% or more of the issued capital of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 or any of their respective associates held any interest
in any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out in the
"Corporate Governance Report" under this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution may be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem
Executive Director & Chairman
24 February 2020

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEWEE

FEEXEFRMEER
HRAEBFERETEER HE-Z
—NF+-A=+—HIFE BETFK
HEELHEESESE WAL BE-_ZT—H
F+-A=Z+—HULFE HEHEARAGDE
1TRR A5008% LA B B ek iR R sk B &% B B
BEABMBERABE_ET-NE+-_A=+—
AEFEREARAIARER RHEEFD
EfaTfE s o

READNRIERE
RAFRTEMNFEERATAY AR
AIEMBRANDARIGRE -

TEERRE
BERARRNEEE AR RANFBENA
FERSGIEXERARE] —HA-

= BUED
KEMEBNEHE EER  ETE
BRI RS EEHMEE - NEK G FHBE
BFEAELARREE —THRER EFNRE
LZXKEET R BRI RA R R BED -

REEES
8T B E i A&
HITEFHRTE
—E-EF A =-+WH

c¢cc

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEE%&EmERAT S/



88

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BIKHEIHRSE

e
EY:

To the members of Parkson Retail Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Parkson Retail
Group Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set
out on pages 96 to 236, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BIUZBEIRSEE (8)

FAREZER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, RFAEFZEIBERIEESNHEEHLE 2 4A
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ¥ ARBGEMEHREANBEZREEENE

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

inthe B ZFFHREEZEBRERRAMER
whole, KREXRBFHEMEBERANS S NETRK

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 1B BEEIT S HZEEHIEHEBHNER -
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how  EZ ¥ T it & — FHIB & FAZ =2 40 {A] FE &

our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

COETRUR AN b=

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's BECBIIANREEBRHFEZFLSH
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements JEIRFZFIELE L — T B BIFE
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, Z%EEHEEHENEE -Hit BEHNEZXE
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to  FEINTT BEH T ER4RE B EHREK B AR
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated PRIt /E [ MR BIZEF - BEEXRT
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the 4R BIEERIE THIEIEANITHIEF -
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for AZEZEHENNGEHBHREZ2EFZER
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. TR E R o

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREREE
Valuation of deferred tax assets

BEEHREE G E

ERTHEARELEENEERS L

The Group recognised deferred tax assets amounting to RMB34.9
million as at 31 December 2019 for the carryforward of unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which unused tax losses can be utilised.
Assessing the forecasts of future taxable profits is complex and
requires significant management estimates and judgements, in
particular on the assumptions about the expected future market
and economic conditions in the People's Republic of China (the
"PRC") which impact the future operating performance of those
entities that have carried forward unused tax losses. In view of the
significance of the amount and the level of judgement exercised by
management, we consider this as a key audit matter.
RZE-NF+ZA=+—H EBEXEERAAEAER
RERTAERENMAMBHEBENLERN  HREE
AMBRIBEEBEENREERIEEEAREMIBE T T ER
KERBANBENBAREEM FTR2EREFLEANG
KA CEBATREARLNE ([HE])HFEHARRD
BREBERANRE HEZERFEEERNARIEAE
BEBNARKREEXRL -ENFHBREEEMEHE
MIZEEHEEEXN BEERUERA—HERERER-

The Company's disclosures for deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses are included in notes 3 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B BERRNEEBENEEHEEENRKEHNGEE Y
KM 319 ©

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating management's assumptions and estimates,
such as the revenue growth rate adopted in their
forecast of future taxable profits. We assessed the
historical accuracy of management's assumptions
and the sensitivity analysis prepared by the Company.
We also assessed the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
EENEZREFBRETRNTHEREEMEN
R AR B 5t - QA TR RN R 2R 8 SR A F B B 40 B W e
BEXR BEEFHEREBEMERRMNERIE
N BERAIMRENBRED - &F IR h#E
Wi E MR -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIUZBEIRSE (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREREE
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Y= L5 KR R E

REEaEE (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERTHRARELEANEERS E

The Group operates department stores in the PRC. Having
considered the loss-making performance of certain stores,
management performed annual impairment testing with respect
to the assets of those loss-making department stores with a total
carrying amount of RMB402.9 million as at 31 December 2019 and
no impairment was provided in the current year. The impairment
testing requires management to make assumptions to be used
in the underlying cash flow forecasts. The assumptions include
expectations for gross margin and growth rates, as well as the
overall market and economic conditions in the PRC. In view of the
significance of the amount and the level of judgement exercised by
management, we consider this as a key audit matter.
EREERTRELEREE -E8HETPENEERR &
BEAZEEEREENEELETFERENRA - R Z2F
—NF+ZA=+—RH ZEEEENRALERARE
402988 BAFEWEREREE - REAAFTEEIRE
HRIEAEBRESREFLHRR ZFBEREFB/HENER
BRE ARPEEEHISERLER NI - EXNEEE
BLEREMEHEBNREEREEN EFHUHBER A
R EZER-

The Company's disclosure for impairment of property, plant and
equipment are included in notes 3 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

B ERFMER BEARBRBRENKBEHNGEEWE
2 M T3 F o

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the Group's policies and procedures to
identify triggering events for potential impairment of
assets related to the underperforming stores. We have
also involved our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the assumptions, discount rate and
methodologies used by the Group, and compared the
key assumptions used in the impairment assessment to
historical data of the Group and the external data in
the similar industry to assess the assumptions made by
management. We also assessed the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
EENEREFBEETIRNAME SESEANU
BBCIBEAFEREPIENEEEERES M
ZHRERF - BEFNELESNHAEGERK
BBESTE EXEEEANBRR TRELS
WK HERESGRAERNBRRRE &
S EE L BUR LT RSN EBBURETT L BUK
HEEEEMONRE BEF T EEA TR
RAHHEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREREE
Impairment of goodwill

BIUZBEIRSEE (8)

REEgEE (8)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERTHRARELEANEERS E

Under IFRSs, the Group is required to perform an impairment
assessment of goodwill at least annually. Management performed
annual impairment testing with respect to the goodwill with a
total carrying amount of RMB1,770.5 million as at 31 December
2019. This area was important to our audit due to the significance
of the amount as well as the judgement involved in the
assessment. Management's assessment process is complex and
highly judgemental and is based on assumptions, in particular
those relating to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the
overall market and economic conditions. Given the sensitivity of
the assumptions and the level of judgement involved, we consider
this as a key audit matter.

REBERYHREER BRESFEIHFETRB
ZRETH - ERERR_Z-NAF+_RA=+—HAK

HAEAARE1 770588 THEE2ETEERENR - AR
CHENERARTHER S RAG ZBOHEETEEZMNE
BEZ -EREMNTHBREAEERE FHELAEHEHER
ERBREL TESBEBEEANEREREMHBRZALE
BHiE REEMRN - ERRENSRE RE P kA H B2
T EEBHE A BHEREZEE-

The Company's disclosures for impairment of goodwill are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bl ERFBEBRENRBEENGS MK HRK WM
140

Our audit procedures included, amongst others,
evaluating the discount rate and methodologies
used by the Group with the assistance of our
internal valuation specialists, and comparing the key
assumptions used in the impairment assessment to
the historical data of the Group and the external data
in the similar industry, and assessing the assumptions
made by management. We also focused on the
Company's disclosures about those assumptions to
which the outcome of the impairment test is most
sensitive, that is, those that have the most significant
effect on the determination of the recoverable amount

of goodwill.
EENEZEFBERETRRE FEEHNNA
A EE B 7B TR E\m@ﬁﬁﬁq B Hr IR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B ZBEIRSEE (8)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZBEIRSEE (8)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BIZSEIREE (&)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE BB e ERERENS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) F(E)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine f{EHEZEZE € /BBEMNEIER  BEEETFE X
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the ZH¥WARHBGENERRNERZTAEE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore  FYSEIE > A MBK @R EZEE BHEZ
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report  ZEMIREEZHEBZEE1E B IEEAFELN
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or IR A FARIPLEZLEEE S EBRIBEER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should AJIBER T SETEHIMNREE 2 shE 2Dt
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of BARE EIEEKNEBHERBBEELEN AR
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest  F|25 - BB ZRENEEREZDTHZE

benefits of such communication. I o

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HEBUVERHMBEENEZLEEIAEA
auditor's report is Melody Lam Siu Wah. RMBERL L -

Ernst & Young XK ET RN E BT

Certified Public Accountants HESTTHA

Hong Kong s

24 February 2020 —ETF A=+ IMH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ReBRER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

2019 2018
—EBE-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
M RE AR T AREFIT
REVENUE W &5 4 4,568,503 4,372,462
Other operating revenues H A48 s 4 457,515 475,346
Total operating revenues £ 2 AR RE 5,026,018 4,847,808
OPERATING EXPENSES RERX
Purchases of goods and changes in inventories ~ BEE &V Rz & & 5 (2,270,490) (1,979,633)
Staff costs BTIA (666,641) (684,216)
Depreciation and amortisation & X g (696,674) (265,408)
Rental expenses e (113,933) (937,327)
Other operating expenses HEh &2 (803,796) (811,292)
Total operating expenses KL A% (4,551,534) (4,677,876)
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS &R E 474,484 169,932
Finance income B WA 6 75,411 139,900
Finance costs BF 5 R AN 6 (662,878) (208,056)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAG F) B KR &8 -
A joint venture —REENDE 15 13,594 16,187
Associates i /N 16 7,074 7,874
Gains on disposal of plant, property and HEME HERZE
equipment, net B FT1S - 5 43,703 =
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bl (BE) FHE 5 (48,612) 125,837
Income tax expense FT5 % &2 4 9 (155,068) (180,449)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEEER (203,680) (54,612)
Attributable to: LATNIE B FE1h
Owners of the parent SRARIME A (222,751) (79,283)
Non-controlling interests JEVE RS HE 19,071 24,671
(203,680) (54,612)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT EHHEAEEEREIE 10
Basic AR (RMBO0.085) (RMB0.030)
(AE¥o0.0857) (AR00307T)
Diluted i (RMB0.085) (RMB0.030)
(AE¥o0.0857) (ARM00307T)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RE EENER

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—2-hEFE  —F-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER (203,680) (54,612)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hih2mEKA
Other comprehensive income that T LA 12 BARET AT g
may be reclassified to profit or loss in DEEERMEM
subsequent periods: ZHEBA :
Exchange differences on translation of REBIINEBREEZ
foreign operations PER =2 (71,354) (174,096)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEBEHM
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2EBA (71,354) (174,096)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXEHBRALE
FOR THE YEAR (275,034) (228,708)
Attributable to: LATRIE B AL :
Owners of the parent BRABIMEBA (294,105) (253,379)
Non-controlling interests IEFE R = 19,071 24,671
(275,034) (228,708)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
TRe M FiINR R

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hE —FT-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T AREET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E R ] 1 3,449,090 3,894,419
Investment properties REWME 12 303,292 30,293
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(b) 3,248,189 =
Prepaid land lease payments BN THHAER 13(a) 381,185 394,497
Intangible assets B EE 14 1,792,053 1,797,675
Investment in a joint venture R—RELDLEMNIKE 15 26,934 28,517
Investments in associates REEE N RIRIRE 16 41,769 34,792
Trade receivables EUE 5518 21 78,482 91,596
Other assets HEMEE 17 433,331 132,657
Time deposits EHITE R 24 787,899 1,433,142
Deferred tax assets BT IR & B 19 227,586 186,576
Total non-current assets FEREEEEE 10,769,810 8,024,164
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 20 384,041 350,083
Trade receivables FEUWE 55 IE 21 265,536 290,183
Prepayments and other receivables TR A FRIE K H A
JE Uk kI8 22 420,812 490,462
Financial assets at fair value through BEAnRBEFERR
profit or loss BEHAEBRZ
ERMEE 23 250,761 544,593
Investments in principal guaranteed deposits REGFEFIZE 18 250,050 664,780
Time deposits EHTF K 24 939,482 683,863
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEEEEY 24 2,265,508 1,544,354
Total current assets MBEEMETE 4,776,190 4,568,318
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 5KI8 25 (1,136,563) (1,354,766)
Other payables and accruals H fth FE AT RIB K
fEEHIE B 26 (637,769) (719,515)
Contract liabilities aH8aE 27 (685,792) (782,389)
Interest-bearing bank loans STRETER 28 (1,011,588) (321,646)
Lease liabilities HEAE 13(c) (474,677) -
Tax payable JE @A E (60,654) (59,991)
Total current liabilities BB EERE (4,007,043) (3,238,307)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 769,147 1,330,011
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERRBDAE 11,538,957 9,354,175
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REMFBINRR (&)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-nF  ZF)\F

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
=2 ARET T AREFIT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans sFESRITEX 28 (3.013,883) (3,721,241)
Long term payables K HIE S 3008 - (727,970)
Lease liabilities HEBE 13(c) (3.865,554) =
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIEAE 19 (313,187) (280,114)
Total non-current liabilities FREBAEEE (7.192,624) (4,729,325)
Net assets BEEFE 4,346,333 4,624,850
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the parent B ARIAE ARBGHER
Issued capital BT IR 29 55,477 55,477
Reserves =i 30 4,175,184 4,454,462
4,230,661 4,509,939

Non-controlling interests IR ERS 115,672 114,911
Total equity R 4,346,333 4,624,850

Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem Juliana Cheng San San

Director Director

FEBEEZER 455 3 3

EE EF

c e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Re S BER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARMEARLE
PRC Asset Non-

Issued reserve Exchange revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital funds reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity

BEEf
BRTRE  wELRE ERGE 1 RERT ait  FERESR aEs
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz AR®Tn ARETz ARMTz AR¥TR ARMTn ARMTR ARETR AR%T:R

(note 29)  (note 30 (a)) (note 30 (b))

(Wa20)  (MisE30 (a) (K30 (b))
At 31 December 2018 R=2-NF+ZA=+-H 55,477 285,769" (434,615)* 251,412 4,351,896 4,509,939 1491 4,624,850
Effect of adoption of IFRS 16 ROEREBREENZ 6T E 220e) - - - - 14827 14827 - 14,827
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R=B-hE-F-R (BE3) 55477 285,769 (434,615) 251,412 4,366,723 4,524,766 1491 4,639,677
(Loss)Jprofit for the year FE(58)/FE - - - - (222,751) (222,751) 19,071 (203,680)
Exchange differences related to foreign operations BESNERRELNELZE - - (71,354) - - (71,354) - (71,354)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EMALE - - (71,354) - (222,751) (294,105) 19,071 (275,034)
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds EREPENES - 2916 - - (2916) - - B
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders B FERRERS - - - - - - (18,310) (18,310)
At 31 December 2019 R=F-nE+-A=1-A 55477 288,685" (505,969)" WA 4,141,056 4,230,661 115,672 4,346,333
* As at 31 December 2019, these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated ~ * RZZBE-—NF+ZA=+—8 %5HE
reserves of RMB4,175,184,000 (31 December 2018: RMB4,454,462,000) in REAKGE B KRANGS B
the consolidated statement of financial position. AR #4,175184,0007C (= ZF — N\NF+=

A=+—H: AR%4454462,0007T) °

cc
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

G BR (&)

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-T—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

PRC
Issued reserve
capital funds

BRTRE  wELRE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
ik ARETR  ARETR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARMEARE

Exchange
reserve

ERGH
RMB000
AR®TR

Asset Non-
revaluation Retained controlling Total
reserve eamings Total interests equity
REEf
1] REER &t FERER 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

(note 29)  (note 30 (a)) (note 30 (b))

(Hit29) (W&o (a) (K30 ()
At 1 January 2018 R=2-NF-A-A 55471 283,457 (260,519) 251,412 4,544,136 4,873,963 45,142 4,919,105
(Loss)profit for the year 5 (BR)/HE - - - - (79,283) (79.283) 2467 (54,612)
Exchange differences related to foreign operations BEBIEERELNER 2R - - (174,096) - - (174,096) - (174,096)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2ERAEE - - (174,096) - (79,283) (253.379) 24,671 (228,708)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests e RES - - - - (31,608)" (31,608) 30,150* (1,458)
Transfer to the PRC reserve funds BREREANES - 2312 - - (2312) - - -
Interim 2018 dividend paid BRZE-N\FHhERS k) - - - - (79,037) (79,037) - (79,037)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHBAR 31 - - - - - - 28,706 28,706
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders B FERRERS - - - - - - (13,758) (13,758)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=t-H 55477 285,769 (434,615) 251412 4,351,896 4,509,939 114911 4,624,850

On 30 June 2018, the Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand
Parkson Retail Group Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Mount Earnings Sdn. Bhd. to acquire 30% of non-controlling interests
in Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. ("Yeehaw Best") at a total consideration
of RMB1,458,990.

On 31 March 2018, the Company, through a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd., entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Southwest Ordinance Industry Corporation to acquire 30% of
non-controlling interest in Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd.
("Chongging Parkson") at a total consideration of RMB1.

RZZE—NFENA=+H AQFEB
2 BB AR A KB EEGR A A EMount
Earnings Sdn. Bhd.7] 32 B & 1% - LAMEE
Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. ([ Yeehaw
Best | )3000R) JEIERR s - BREAAR
#51,458,9907T ©

RZEBE—NF=ZA=1+—H AQalHE
iB2 & I B A R)Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd.
B ER TEF VBB AWES
BErRBRESERA G ([ERAZ])
300% ) FEIE R R BRERARE 1T

cc
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-NF

—E-N\F
RMB'000
AR T T

Notes RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ T

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REFHNRERE

(Loss)/profit before tax AT (&BE),/FH (48,612) 125,837
Adjustments for: AT HIEELAE:
Share of profits and losses of BE—RegEhER
a joint venture and associates RN IS
X E#E (20,668) (24,061)
Finance income 3N (75.411) (139,900)
Finance costs I 662,878 208,056
Depreciation and amortisation 8 Ko g 696,674 266,447
(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of property, HEME - HWE K
plant and equipment, net BER (F1R)
Eie - FHE (43,703) 17,363
Impairment of inventories FERE 198 -
Reversal of impairment of other receivables H b & W kI8
VERIEEZYE (43) (6,071)
Impairment of receivables e W F R R E 14,871 2,439
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ME BB Kk
RERE - 7,843
Foreign exchange loss PE 5 &8 24,295 =
1,210,479 457,953
(Increase)/decrease in other assets HuEE (%M, md (70,607) 78,366
Increase in inventories FEE I (34,156) (35,627)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables e E 5 78
A () 22,890 (4,028)
Decrease in prepayments and other receivables 815 ZRIE & H b g U
IR 32,495 74,649
Decrease in trade payables BB SR IER D (218,203) (129,646)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H A & 1~ 5RIB I FE 5T
HARD (34,049) (753,190)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHalE Cd) i (96,597) 782,389
(Decrease)/increase in long term payables RERFES 508
CR ) /48 hn (57,323) 23,403
Cash generated from operations KEEHELENR S 754,929 494,269
Income tax paid NS (153,028) (118,970)
Net cash flows from operating activities KETEBE A
RENEFEHE 601,901 375,299
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
mERERER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE—T—NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—2-RE Z—FT-NF

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ T ARET T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETENRERE

Proceeds from disposal of items of property, EEME ME R
plant and equipment REFEFIE 89,695 874
Purchases of items of property, BEYWE BEKR
plant and equipment Bl (131,504) (347,173)
Dividends received B S 15,274 18,213
Interest received 2 U F & 81,725 116,387
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BAnRBEFEER
through profit or loss PHFTAEBRZ
TREERMD 293,832 1,059,837
Decrease in investments in principal REGFFIEER D
guaranteed deposits 414,730 2,495,680
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE— KK B AT 31 - (70,841)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with BARRAEREAE
original maturity of more than three months 838 =1 A 7 7 HA
when acquired TR L /(1 m) 389,624 (2,090,940)
Litigation compensation paid BEEFREE - (90,000)
Income tax paid on investing activities MIRERSHEMZ
Fig®t (12,645) (75.098)
Proceeds from subleases EHEMBEHRIE 62,833 -
Repayment of a loan from an associate WH| —KEE & R A
EENER - 9,800
Net cash flows from investing activities BEEBFTEER
HengFs 1,203,564 1,026,739

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFENRERE

Increase in an amount due to the JE S B AR R A )
ultimate holding company FRIEHE N 26(c) 4,886 -
Net proceeds from bank loans RITE RIS HIAFE 3,465,426 3,542,945
Repayment of bank loans BEIETEX (3.566,172) (727,329)
Repurchase of bonds BOES - (3,077,639)
Interest paid =ENEAIESA (227,616) (235,336)
Dividends paid 2R E - (79,037
Payment of lease liabilities HEBGEMNK (730,556) -
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders DR T FEFE RS IR (18,310) (13,758)

Net cash flows used in financing activities BMEEBFARS
mE (1,072,342) (590,154)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
IMERERER ()

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE—ZT—NF+-A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—2-hE  —F-N\F

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥T ARET T

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERREEEY

EQUIVALENTS N E 5 733,123 811,884
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~FHINEE RIE &%

=87 1,544,354 726,724

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXREFH & F5E (11,969) 5,746
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERNEASRES

END OF YEAR ZEY 2,265,508 1,544,354
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HEeERRSEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS R
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTHH 24 788,901 1,112,087
Non-pledged time deposits with BARREINHATR

original maturity of less than three months =B A g R

when acquired T H 17K 1,476,607 432,267
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the ReEnsxkmMiBEe

statement of cash flows FIREZEEY 24 2,265,508 1,544,354

2019 ANNUAL REPORT FE®RE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Parkson Retail Group Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3 August 2005. The
Company has established a principal place of business in Hong
Kong in Room 1010, 10th floor, Harcourt House, 39 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the operation and
management of a network of department stores in the People's
Republic of China (the "PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Parkson Holdings
Berhad ("PHB"), which is incorporated in Malaysia and listed on
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

RIFSERRMYEE

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

AEAIREBEHR
BREEEEEGRATNR_ZEAF
NA=ZBERESHEFMKIZABR
RNA R RBRBEBNE E & EH B
BB BT ELTITERERKNE
1010E °

FEMRE AEEETEARLME
(PEDEEREBRBEEBE-

EERR ARFAMNERAG K&
#2472 % /X B) B Parkson Holdings Berhad
(TPHB ) » B— KN H R MM
NHRED WRBERAEESFR S
Frie

FHENEARNER
ARBINEBARFEMOT

incorporation/
registration

and business
EmEYL/
R A 3t B

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
LN )
Paid-up REEDL
capital Direct Indirect

BRBRE BE &

Principal activities

TEXH

Grand Parkson Retail Group Limited British Virgin Islands HK$0.5 100 - Investment holding

BREBXERATF KERIHS 058 7T REER

Parkson Investment Pte Ltd. Singapore $$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
N 10,000,000 REER

BT

Rosenblum Investments Pte Ltd. Singapore S$2 - 100 Investment holding
CiplIb BRI T REER

Exonbury Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding

HEEMNERAT 0 28T REER

Parkson Supplies Pte Ltd. Singapore S$100 - 100 Investment holding
IR 10037 3% 7T K&K

Step Summit Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

EBERRA e BT REER

Hong Kong Fen Chai Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding

BREXRERAR AT e BT REER

cc

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED mamxzmara=a 105



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

AAREEER (B)
FEMBLARNESN (F)
ARBMBARMFEELT (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

cc
106

HE
incorporation/
registration

and business
EMKL
L A 3t B

Paid-up
capital

BERA

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERFEM
REBDLE
Direct Indirect

BE# B

Principal activities

FREH

Shanghai Lion Parkson Investment The PRC S$500,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Consultant Co,, Ltd. * H 500,000% 7T and management
LEREREFABRAH services
REFZARERRE
Shanghai Nine Sea Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. **  The PRC US$12,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
FBNEERESERRA HE 12,000,003 75 stores
BEREE
Shanghai Honggiao Parkson The PRC RMB16,800,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. * e ARE stores
BB ERHERRAA 16,800,0007C BEREE
Wuxi Sanyang Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ** The PRC RMB80,000,000 - 60  Operation of department
B =GARBSERAR Lol ARE stores
80,000,0007C BEREE
Xi‘an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB32,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
ALV EFRESER A el ARE stores
32,500,00075 BEREE
Chongging Wanyou Parkson Plaza Co,, Ltd. *  The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EEERBBRBSZERRAA HE ARE stores
35,000,0007C BEREE
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. **  The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BHEERERESERAH i ARE stores
30,000,0007C BEREE
Sichuan Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. * s ARE stores
m)EHEEEEEREERAR 30,000,0007T KEEEE
Hefei Parkson Xiaoyao Plaza Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
AEEREERZAERAA Lol ARE stores
8,000,0007C BEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. REAREEEHR (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB ARNER (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) AARIMNBARMFBWT: (&)
HE Percentage of equity
incorporation/ attributable to the Company
registration NGl
and business Paid-up REBA K
FMEEL capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B3N ES-$E BRRE E# ME TEXE
Anshan Tianxing Parkson The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Shopping Centre Co,, Ltd. ** H ARE stores
BIWXEREREYNRLBRAF 10,000,0007T BERERE
Guizhou Shengi Parkson The PRC RMB 17,000,000 - 60  Operation of department
Retail Development Co., Ltd. ** H ARE stores
EMBEARREERBRAF 17,000,0007C BERERE
Parkson Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. * The PRC 1S$30,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
EHABRERERAA HE 30,000,000 7T REZK
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. The PRC US$16,680,000 - 100 Operation of department
("Beijing Parkson")* H 16,680,000 7T stores
BREFEXERARAR ([tRAK]) BEREE
Global Heights Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
FREREBRAA RERAHS 1%7T REZK
Asia Victory International Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
BERRERAA REBRUES 50,000 7 REZKR
Shunhe International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
JEFMERRERR A A B 10,0007 7T REZKR
Kunming Yun Shun He The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Retail Development Co,, Ltd. * F AR stores
ERERNAXERERAR 30,000,0007C BERRRE
Creation (Hong Kong) Investment & Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited G 10,000/ 7T REEK

BE (BB RERREBRAA]

Creation International Investment & British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited RERXHS 50,0003 7T REER

EIEERRERRERAA

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. 2ARRKEBEER(8)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) FEMBARMNER (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KARIMBARMFRBWOT: (8)

HE Percentage of equity

incorporation/ attributable to the Company

registration NGl

and business Paid-up REFDL

FMEEL capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

B3N ES-$E BRRE E# ME TEXE
Golden Village Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
EREEBRAA RERUES 50,000 T REZK
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,500,000 - 100  Operation of department
IRERFILRBEEERAA H AR stores

8,500,0007C BEREE
Lung Shing International Investments & British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Limited KERLHS 50,000 1T REEK

BREREEERARAA

Anshan Lung Shing Property Services The PRC US$1,050,000 - 100 Property management
Co, Ltd* e 1,050,000 70 nEEE
BLERENEREERAF
Xi‘an Chang'an Parkson Store Co,, Ltd. ***  The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
AZRZEREEERARA HE AR stores
10,000,0007C BEREE
Xi‘an Shidai Parkson Store Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
AZRREREEERAR I AR stores
15,000,0007C BEREE
Shanghai Xinzhuang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. * F AR stores
TEEHARREERERAR 20,000,0007C BERERE
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial The PRC RMB28,000,000 - 100  Operation of department
Co., Ltd. * H ARE stores
HENEARREERAT 28,000,0007C RERERE
Changshu Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co., Ltd. »* e ARE stores
RABEBRERARAA 15,000,0007C BERERE
Guizhou Zunyi Parkson Retail The PRC RMB12,500,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. **** I ARE stores
EMERARREERBRAR 12,500,0007C BEREE

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

il CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Lanzhou Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *
BME N EEEEERAA

Capital Park Development Limited

Capital Park (HK) Investment &
Development Limited

A (FR)REERBRAA

Malverest Trading International Limited

Malverest (Hong Kong) Limited

K& (FR)ERAT]

Oroleon International Limited

Oroleon (Hong Kong) Limited

Releomont International Limited

Releomont (Hong Kong) Limited
MEE (FE)ERAAF

Leonemas International Limited
Leonemas (Hong Kong) Limited
MAwm (FE)BRAF
Anshan Parkson Retail Development

Co., Ltd.
BUBRHERRERARA

HE
incorporation/
registration

and business
EMKL
L A 3t B

The PRC
P E

British Virgin Islands
RERUES
Hong Kong

BB

British Virgin Islands
RBRUES

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
RBRARE

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
RBRARS

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands
RBRARE

Hong Kong
BE

The PRC
P E

Paid-up
capital

BERA

RMB20,000,000
ARH
20,000,0007T

US$2
2ETT

HKS 1
1787

US$2
2ETT

HK$1
BT

US$2
2ETT

HK$1
BT

US$2
2ETT

HK$1
BT

US$2
2ETT

HK$1
BT

RMB10,000,000
ARE
10,000,0007C
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AARKEEER ()
FEMBLARNESN (F)
ARBMBARMFENT : (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERFEM
REBDLE
Direct Indirect

BE# B

Principal activities

FREH

Operation of department
stores

REBEE

Investment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RERK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RARK

[nvestment holding

RERK

[nvestment holding

RERK

Operation of department
stores

BEBEE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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AAREEER (B)
FEMBLARNESN (F)
ARBMBARMFEELT (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

HE
incorporation/
registration

and business
EMKL
L A 3t B

Paid-up
capital

BERA

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company
ERFEM
REBDLE
Direct Indirect

BE# B

Principal activities

FREH

Duo Success Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RERUES E REER
Huge Return Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
MpZRERRRDA Bk BT REER
Hanmen Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEREBRAA Bk BT REZK
Favor Move International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
HERBRBRAR RERUES (E REZK
Jet East Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
ERREARRA RERUEES B REER
Victory Hope Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
HBEERAT BE BT REZK
Shaoxing Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd, *** e ARE stores
RERNEEBERRBRAA 20,000,0007C REBEE
Shantou Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB8,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
WETREBERRAA H AR stores
8,000,0007T BERERE
Great Dignity Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
ABERERAA BB 2ETT REZK
Bond Glory Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
RBERAR RERUES (EP REZK
Choice Link Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
BrERRA RERUES (E9 REER
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I FS WM EE (18)
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. RARAREEER (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMBRARMNER (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KARMBARMFBOT: (8)
HE Percentage of equity
incorporation/ attributable to the Company
registration NGl
and business Paid-up REBA K
FMEEL capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
AR A BRRE HE MiE TEER
Kunshan Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
@, ligl, = e ARE stores
RILEHAREHEERAA 40,000,0007T K2BEEE
Zigong Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *™** The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
BEBREERERAA FE ARE stores
10,000,0007C BEREE
Changzhou Shifeng Retail The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100 Sale of apparel
Development Co,, Ltd, **** H AR HERE
FHREREERERAR 25,000,0007C
Changzhou Lion Food and Beverage The PRC RMB25,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Co,, Ltd. *** H ARE management services
FHBRERER AR 25,000,0007C ERERRS
Zhangjiakou Parkson Shopping Mall The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100  Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. *** HE ARE stores
RXOBEBENESERAA 30,000,0007C BEREE
Liupanshui Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB 15,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
EMABKEREERRERARA H AR# stores
15,000,0007C BEREE
Jinan Lion Consultant Management The PRC US$5,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Co., Ltd. ** F 5,000,000 7T and management
ERRHERATRERAR services
REZAREERE
Tianjin Parkson Shopping Mall Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB500,000,000 = 100  Operation of department
(‘“Tianjin Parkson")J*** H AR stores and property
AEAREEERERRA 500,000,0007C management
([RERE]) BEREBERNE
B
Shanxi Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co., Ltd. * F AR stores
LWEARHEERERAA 50,000,0007C BEBEEE
¢ C
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. 2ARRKEBEER(8)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) EBEMEBATNER (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KARIMBARMFRBWOT: (8)
HE Percentage of equity
incorporation/ attributable to the Company
registration NGl
and business Paid-up REBA K
FMEEL capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B3N ES-$E BRRA E# MiE FEER
Qingdao No.1 Parkson Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB233,340,000 - 9591 Operation of department
EEE—BRARAH HE AR stores
233,340,0007C BEREE
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co., Ltd. ** e ARE stores
BLARBNESERRA 40,000,0007T KEBEE
Dalian Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB40,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd, H AR stores
AERHARBAXERERLA 40,000,0007C BEREE
Sea Coral Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BMAER A G BT REEK
Wide Crest Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
BEEFRRA Y el 1%7T REER
Wide Field International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
EEERAR A A £ 2B REER
Parkson Venture Pte Ltd. Singapore $$14,800,000 - 100 Investment holding
IR 14,800,000 REER
IR T
Victor Crest Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REFRRA RERAES 17T REER
Panzhihua Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Co,, Ltd. *** ] ARE stores
ZRIEAEBEERAR 20,000,0007C BEREE
Qingdao Lion Plaza Retail Management The PRC RMB500,000,000 - 100 Property management
Co,, Ltd. ("Qingdao Lion Plaza"}*** e ARE MEER
EELRESHEERERAA 500,000,0007C
(IE8eHES])
Qingdao Parkson Beer City Property The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Property management
Management Co,, Ltd.*** F AR MEER
ERRBRENNEERERAR 10,000,0007C

cc
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I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. REAREEEHR (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BB ARNER (&)
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued) KARMBARMFBOT: (8)
HE Percentage of equity
incorporation/ attributable to the Company
registration NGl
and business Paid-up REBA K
FMEEL capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
B3N ES-$E BRRE E# ME TEXE
Qingdao Parkson Shopping Plaza The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
@, lig], = s ARE stores
EEERBNESERAR 30,000,0007C BERERE
Shanghai Shijie Fashions Co., Ltd. *** The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Sale of apparel
HERRERERRAF h ARE HEMRE
10,000,0007C
Qingdao Parkson Retail Development The PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
@), lial, = s ARE stores
EEERTEE YL :YNG 20,000,0007C BERERE
Shanghai Lion Food & Beverage The PRC RMBA4,000,000 - 91 Food and beverage
Management Co,, Ltd. **** H AR management services
LTEAREREEERAT 4,000,0007T ZRERRH
Shanghai Lion Parkson The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Provision of consultancy
Management Consultant Co., Ltd. *** AR and management
LTERRERFARRAR 10,000,0007% services
REFZAREBRY
Lion Food & Beverage Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands RMB4,000,000 - 91 Investment holding
EBELHS AR REER
4,000,0007T
Parkson Food & Beverage Ventures Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 91 Investment holding
Eik BT REER
Yeehaw Best Practices Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM100 - 100 Operating as a licensor
SRED & FF1007T for the brand of
“Franco”
fE 5 [Franco | f 2K
REEgE
Shanghai Shihong Supermarket Co., Ltd. ***  The PRC RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Operation of gourmet
LB EmARA R H AR supermarkets
10,000,0007T RERERT
¢cc
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AAREEER (B)
FEMBLARNESN (F)
ARBMBARMFEELT (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

HE
incorporation/

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

registration

and business
EMKL
L A 3t B

Paid-up
capital

BERA

ARAFEM
REBA K
Direct Indirect

BE# B

Principal activities

FREH

Shanghai Delight Food & Beverage The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Food and beverage
Management Co,, Ltd.*** H ARE operation
LGN ERERERAA 1,000,0007C REBHRE
Chenzhou Shishang Parkson Retail The PRC RMB4,990,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd.*** s ARE stores
WMNE B EEEEREB AR 4,990,0007T BEREE
Hunan Changsha Shishang Parkson Retail ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100 Operation of department
Development Co,, Ltd. *** e AR stores
HARDKEHNEEEEERERAA 10,000,0007T BEREE
Shanghai Delight Food Co., Ltd.*** The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 Food operation
EEERRMAERAR FE AR TER M
5,000,0007C
Parkson Retail Laos Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM1 - 100 Investment holding
SRED WERIT REER
Parkson Lao Sole Co., Ltd. Laos [ AK20,000,000,000 - 100 Wholesale and retail
i "2 trade
20,000,000,00075 HENTE
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bnd. (*Parkson Credit")  Malaysia RM30,000,000 - 70 Hire purchase and credit
BRAED WE sale
30,000,0007C HERRE
Shanghai Lion Cosmetics Co., Ltd.* The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100 Wholesale and retail of
LERBHREREEAH F ARE cosmetics and related
1,000,0007T products
bt R AR E M
HELTE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

Shanghai Parkson Food & Beverage
Management Co., Ltd.*
LBEREREEARAA

Kunming Hogan Food & Beverage
Management Co., Ltd. ***

ERRERERERERAR

Guizhou Tongren Parkson Retail Co., Ltd.*

EMACAEREERAA

Jiangxi Parkson Shopping Centre
Management Co., Ltd.*
IREREYNTOERERAA

Parkson Business Commerce Sole Co., Ltd.

HE
incorporation/
registration

and business Paid-up
FMEEL capital
B3N ES-$E BRRA
The PRC RMB1,000,000
HE ARE
1,000,0007T

The PRC RMB1,000,000
e ARE
1,000,0007T

The PRC RMB10,000,000
e AR
10,000,0007T

The PRC RMB30,000,000
HE AEE
30,000,0007T

Laos [ AK20,000,000,000
Zi =g
20,000,000,0007C

AARKEEER ()
FEMBLARNESN (F)
ARBMBARMFEBNT : (&)

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

ARAFEM
REBA K
Direct Indirect
HE %
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100
- 100

Principal activities

FREH

Food and beverage
management services

EREERY

Food and beverage
operation

REBRE

Operation of department
stores

REBEE

Property management

NEER

Operation of department
stores

REBEE

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows: (continued)

*

registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC law

*%

registered as a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprise
under the PRC law

registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise under
the PRC law

FRRR

registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial instruments which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in the statement of profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to |AS 28

IFRIC 23

Annual

IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation
Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11,
IAS 12 and IAS 23

Improvements to

for the amendments to IFRS 9 and IAS 19, and Annual

Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle, which are not relevant to
the preparation of the Group's financial statements, the nature and
the impact of the amendments are described below:

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
Standing Interpretations Committee ("SIC") 15 Operating
Leases - Incentives and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single
on-balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, except for certain
recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using
similar principles as in IAS 17.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SIFFERARMIEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)

For a sublease arrangement, the classification of the
sublease is made by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, instead of by reference to
the underlying asset. The Group reassessed sublease
arrangements at 1 January 2019 that were previously
classified as operating leases applying IAS 17 based on the
remaining contractual terms and conditions of the head
lease and sublease at 1 January 2019, and determined
that some of these arrangements are finance leases
applying IFRS 16. Accordingly, the Group recognised a net
investment in subleases amounting to RMB328,518,000 and
derecognised the corresponding right-of-use asset of the
head lease amounting to RMB304,090,000, prepayments
and other receivables amounting to RMB6,638,000, other
payables and accruals amounting to RMB368,000, deferred
tax assets amounting to RMB3,331,000, resulting in a gain
of RMB14,827,000 recognised in the opening balance of
retained profits at 1 January 2019.

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard has
been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 January 2019, and
the comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continued to be reported under IAS 17 and related
interpretations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)
New definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application.
Contracts that were not identified as leases under IAS 17
and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition
of a lease under IFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after 1 January 2019.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT E£E®HE

2.2

BBREEREZE2E (B)

(a)

(&)

HENFER
RIBBEREM G HREERIE 16
9 e SBEBKEMmS T
BRI A A I ] 3R B
ERNEN AIZa0EHE
KBEHE EEFAERE
RA BRI EERFBALI K
B AR EEERERA
a8k 7l B E RO B N By - B AR
e AREERERMAERMEDN
ERREHEARTFZERE
BRARTARNERAERBHE
RIBBIBR ST ERF 175 R B
B BHREZRERZ 885450
BEAEE AL REBK
T LERISE 17557 K B R B 7 R
TREBZEERSRAREER
HENAOTSEMNMGE B
Itk - B B 5 R 5 2 I 5B 16557
ATMHEHEEREERARE=S
E-NF-A—BRZRITL
HEENELN -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SIFFERARMIEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2
(continued)

BBREERREZE2E (B)

(a)

(continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of IFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property
and other equipment. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group applies a
single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected
on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of
12 months or less (“short-term leases") (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 January 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding
lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
January 2019. The right-of-use assets were measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based
on IAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES 2.2 EiHBERBECSF (&)
(continued)

(@  (continued) (a) (&)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating EREABA -SRI EARE
leases (continued) HEMHEE (8)
Impact on transition (continued) BEZE (E)
The Group has used the following elective practical RZZE-—NF—A—BEAREH
expedients when applying IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019: B B 75 o 5 2E Bl 3B 1655 B+ AR
SEGEAUATERUEERER
HOX -
. Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases . HREHEERERR
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from HAR 1218 A AR IR AR
the date of initial application; ERAEHHEEH S
. Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of . RZZE—-—NF—H—H
leases with reasonably similar characteristics when FTEHEAE HAE
measuring the lease liabilities at 1 January 2019. SEBUSBNHEER

ARME—RE -

Financial impact at 1 January 2019 R-B-IFE-—A—BHNHH
=4
B
The impact arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 as at 1 MRZZE—hF—H— BERHAE
January 2019 was as follows: PR B 75 i 5 MBI 3 1 65R EE AR Y
FENT:
RMB'000
AREFIT
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets 155 PR HE & EE 42 0 3,836,781
Increase in other assets H{th & EE 0 262,015
Decrease in prepayments and other receivables 815 ZX T8 & H b & U 308 R > (14,261)
Decrease in deferred tax assets EIEFTEE =R (3.331)
Increase in total assets 488 E N 4,081,204
Liabilities =k
Increase in lease liabilities THE & FEE 4,770,431
Decrease in other payables and accruals H A & FRIB R FEET IR B R 4 (33,407)
Decrease in long-term payables K HA S ZE s (670,647)
Increase in total liabilities e FEEN 4,066,377
Increase in retained profits R B8 7 42 i 14,827
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(a)

(continued)
Financial impact at 1 January 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 are
as follows:

2.2

—
QO
—

I

=113

Z22E (&)

=
A
X
S
T

~ A~
|

®—nE—A—ANHE
2 nE—A—ANE
EEER_F—/\F+=f
=+—BREEEERENY
BT

|| | B

% WH

Q

Al

RMB'000
ARETT

Operating lease commitments

R—ZFE—N\EFE+-_A=+—HH

as at 31 December 2018 LR E R 7,495,208
Less: Commitments relating to short-term B EAAG BAAE & K FEIeR AR BRI RS
leases and those leases with a —E-NAF+A=+—H
remaining lease term ended on or %A EMOEE R @R AE
before 31 December 2019 (36,469)
Add: Payments for optional extension periods I RZZT—NF+ZA=+—HKHE
not recognised as at 31 December 2018 SR HY A] JE HA A5 2k 93,245
7,551,984
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate A —ZE— N F— A — B8N
as at 1 January 2019 1538 £ 15 FOF) = 9.92%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—HNHEEAE 4,770,431

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion
of IFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint
venture to which the equity method is applied and does
not include long-term interests that in substance form part
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture, to
which the equity method has not been applied. Therefore,
an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under IFRS 9, in accounting for
such long-term interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the
net investment, which includes the long-term interests,
only in the context of recognising losses of an associate
or joint venture and impairment of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture. The Group considered that
there are no long-term interests that in substance form
part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group.

(b)

Bl @t 2R 52858 2 (B 5T &
BRI IEREERENSRZ
N HEE D IE I E AR
AR ENR A ELEY
I MABEEED EEKR
ZHMENRNEEEZFR
E—Eoz KB (W&
R FARERS R ) o Ut - ERENE
FA B B B 755 3R 5 2E Bl 5955 1
JEBBR = 5T RIS 285% (B 15
B SR EERFR T 2
MERTE) BZEREERA
R-ERBERBLATHEE
TEZEBBENRBELEARRE
BOEZFEREREMS
B =t X BI| 550856 4 1 fE A
BIRE (RERIER) - K&
ERAEWEED FEKPE S
REIRABELEZFRE—I
DZEER B ZE B
HES R R T e s
RBEEATRTE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(0

IFRIC 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes (current
and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to
as "uncertain tax positions"). The interpretation does not
apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor
does it specifically include requirements relating to interest
and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii)
the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of
tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity
determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
Upon adoption of the interpretation, the Group considered
whether it has any uncertain tax positions arising from
the transfer pricing on its intergroup service charge and
entrusted loan. Based on the Group's tax compliance and
transfer pricing study, the Group determined that it is
probable that its transfer pricing policy will be accepted by
the tax authorities. Accordingly, the interpretation did not
have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised [FRSs,
which are applicable to the Group's operation and that have been
issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 9,
|AS 39 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1
and IAS 8

Definition of a Business’

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Definition of Material’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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—hE+-HA=+—H

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a business,
it must include, at @ minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to create
output. A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus
is on whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions
or other events that occur on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 address the effects
of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting. The
amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge
accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Early
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute
a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory
effective date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group's investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its wealth management products at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RIS R EE
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties,
goodwill and non-current assets), the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESHEHRBE(HE)
(continued)
Related parties (continued) S (&)
(0) (continued) (b) (&)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for V) ZEBABBEETNG
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an g ZEEMNEEAR
entity related to the Group; REENEAEEFH

NERBNES:

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) ZEBREEMEAL
person identified in (a); 22 | S FE (R 12 )

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vi) ()BT A ¥ ZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEEATVESIBZ
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ER(ZEENTR
of the entity); and AEEEBEKE

&

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viii) ZERBIEEMREEK
part, provides key management personnel services to BARRHEIEEEA
the group or to the parent of the Group. BIRM T AREBE S ARE

ElASYNS]
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful
lives for this purpose are as follows:

Land and buildings 35 - 45 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Equipment and fixtures 5 - 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents stores, buildings and storage
facilities under construction or renovation works in progress
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises development and construction
expenditures incurred and other direct costs attributable to the
development less any accumulated impairment losses. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment or investment properties when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and provision for any impairment in value.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over the
expected useful life.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement of disposal.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The principal
estimated useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Computer software 5 years
Licence 10 - 14 years
Franchise agreement 10 years
Trademark 10 years
Customer relationship 5 years

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent land use rights paid to the
PRC government authorities. Land use rights are carried at cost
and are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the respective periods of the rights ranging from 42 to 45 years.
When the prepaid land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire prepaid land
lease payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as
a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Property 2 - 16 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise

of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SIFFERARMIEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FTESTHEBE(E)

(continued)
HE(BEZZE—hE—HF—HBELE
A) (&)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
oceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.q., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by lease basis.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value-assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
lease payments and related payments (including the initial direct
costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the
net investment in the lease. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as
a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the on-balance sheet recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Reqgular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes wealth management products which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “"pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs as detailed below.

Stage 1 -Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage 3 -Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank loans and lease
liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for resale and
consumables and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of merchandise is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is determined based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recognised as a reduction in revenues upon
granting of bonus points to customers in accordance with the
announced bonus points scheme. The Group estimates future
redemption of bonus points based on its historical experiences.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liability relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values where there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BB RMTEE ()

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4
(continued)

B BEBE (&)

lﬂlﬁiﬁﬁw (:E‘)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

(o)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers
with rights of return. The rights of return give rise to
variable consideration.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be
returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment
to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.

Provision of concessionaire sale services

Revenue from the provision of concessionaire sale services
is recognised upon the commission rate of the gross
concessionaire sales which was recognised upon the
delivery of goods.

Provision of consultancy and management services

Revenue from the provision of consultancy and
management services is recognised over the scheduled
period on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Promotion income and minimum guaranteed sales commissions
are recognised according to the underlying contract terms with
concessionaires and as these services have been provided in
accordance therewith.

Credit card handling fees, administration fees and service fees are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Display space leasing fees and equipment leasing income are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other employee benefits

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and requlations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company's memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is
different from the functional currency of the Company - the United
States dollar. The Company's consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi because management considers that a
substantial majority of the group companies are in the PRC and
the Group primarily generates and expends cash in Renminbi.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of the entities in the Group are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their profit or loss is translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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2.4

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi
at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Identifying performance obligations in sale of goods and
commissions from concessionaire sales

The Group recognises revenue when a performance obligation is
satisfied when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customer on sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire
sales. For contracts with customers, the Group determined that
the performance obligations of for loyalty points programme are
capable of being distinct. The Group allocates the transaction price
to each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or
services underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service to a customer.

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into sublease contracts for its department
stores business. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as whether
the lease term constituting a major part of the economic life of the
investment properties and right-of-use assets and the present value
of the minimum lease payments amounting to substantially all the
fair value of the investment properties and right-of-use assets,
whether it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases or finance
leases.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease term
for the lease of a property of which the lease has a short non-
cancellable period of three years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)
Tax provisions

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is assessed
periodically to take into account all the changes in tax legislation
and practices.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with the expected future
market and economic conditions in the PRC and tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 December 2019 was RMB34,905,000
(2018: RMB12,880,000). The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2019 was RMB1,274,346,000 (2018:
RMB1,162,836,000). Further details are given in note 19 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at
the end of each reporting period. Intangible assets with indefinite
lives are tested for impairment annually and at other times when
such indicators exist. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit based on assumptions, in particular those relating
to gross margin and growth rates, as well as the overall market and
economic conditions in the PRC and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT H£E#&HRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

TESE AR A (&)

st 2 TEEM (&)
BT IE L E

R B A Be B R 2K FE SR B F1E R K
MHREBENESEE N SLTE A A
W EEERRECREEE -E%
ZEEE (B E A H B RAR IR R 2K
ERMAHEENKEMESRE &6
T8 HA 2R 2R o B T 35 N AT R AR R A R
TEIEIREE  NE T RERNIELER
HEEMEBE - RZTE—NEF+=
A=+—H BEEAFEEIEIE
BREERBEENERABEAAR
#34,9050007T (ZZE—N\F: AR¥
12,880,0007T) e R =ZE—NF T+ = F
=+ —HNARERRIBEBEAARK
1,274,346,00070 ( —ZF—\F : AR
1,162,836,0007T ) ° s B & R B B Wk
MaE19 o

FEMEERE (BEFI)
AEEREHREPRFEAA IR
BE (BREREEE)EE HEM
BFR - AKEEEF (RRARE
RO WERET EEELTT
BRI - B B R BUR LA SF & B
BENKRAENAIKEE  BIHEZE
FeMEEETRENMA BEEX
ReELBUMEEEBEEIK
B8 (AR EERDEKRANER
FEREETNREE ) AHIRR
B AABERHEXATRENUER
EARFRZHARBEZRORNH
HEX ST AIESHNEIE Al Hi5
MERLEEERNIEEKRATE-E
AAEEREER BEENAENSR
EMX -ERREPEEEHSEL
IR BRREFTREEERR
TELBUNBHARRAERE I
BESBENITRE UtEZERE
MERIBEIE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units based
on assumptions, in particular those relating to gross margin and
growth rates, as well as the overall market and economic conditions
in the PRC and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2019 was RMB1,770,538,000
(2018: RMB1,770,538,000). Further details of the impairment
testing of goodwill are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and other receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns (i.e., by service type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the retail and credit service sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes
21 and 22 to the financial statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ("IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay“, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes a provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items which are identified as no longer suitable for sale or use.
Management estimates the net realisable value for such inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
each reporting period and makes a provision against obsolete and
slow-moving items. Management reassesses the estimation by the
end of each reporting period.

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes
in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair
value of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and amortisation

The Group has estimated the useful lives of the property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) to be 2 to 45 years, after
taking into account their estimated residual values, as set out in the
principal accounting policies above. Depreciation and amortisation
of items of property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (other than goodwill) is
calculated on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives.
The carrying amounts of items of property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (other than goodwill) as at 31 December 2019 were
RMB3,449,090,000 (2018: RMB3,894,419,000), RMB303,292,000
(2018: RMB30,293,000), RMB3,248,189,000 (2018: nil), and
RMB21,515,000 (2018: RMB27,137,000) respectively. Further details
are given in notes 11, 12, 13 and 14 to the financial statements,
respectively.

REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue

An analysis of revenue is as follows:
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2019
—E-NEF
RMB'000
ARET
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFE A Mz
(Note a) (Bfz¥a)
Sale of goods from direct sales HEHERE 2,712,119 2,323,660
Commissions from concessionaire sales HEREHEHERS
(Note b) (Ff3Eb) 1,429,023 1,624,127
Consultancy and management service fees x40 & & IR R 15 & 12,263 9,011
4,153,405 3,956,798
Revenue from other sources A IR 2
Gross rental income e BB A 357,952 406,023
Credit services = ,\Hlﬁ% 57,146 9,641
415,098 415,664
4,568,503 4,372,462
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

4.  REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND SEGMENT 4. Wz B WHBURSIE

INFORMATION (continued) # (&)
Revenue (continued) Wz (8)
Note a: Revenue from contracts with customers are analysed as follows: fista: REZEALMKEIITWT
() Disaggregated revenue information 0) a4 o Uk 258 B
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE-—_2—h&E+=A

=t—HLEHE

Commissions Consultancy
Sales of from and
goods from  concessionaire management

direct sales sales services Total
BT EE BEHAR

HEHER HERS EEREE At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T

South region A &P 1,348,861 625,594 2,811 1,977,266
North region itH 682,023 535,499 1,741 1,219,263
East region BB 681,235 267,930 7,71 956,876

Revenue from contracts ~ REBRF AL

with customers W25 2,712,119 1,429,023 12,263 4,153,405
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEz—_ZT—-—NF+=A
=+—RHIEFE

Commissions Consultancy

Sales of from and

goods from concessionaire management
direct sales sales services Total

B R BiR
BEEEE  HEEE  ERBKE ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETE ARMTR

South region [ 1,051,956 687,440 397 1,739,793
North region 1t ZB 647,208 628,303 1,078 1,276,589
East region BB 624,496 308,384 7,536 940,416

Revenue from contracts ~ RE B A 4H)
with customers g 2,323,660 1,624,127 9,01 3,956,798

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

4.

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

W HKERBURSBE
B (&)

Revenue (continued) Wz (8)
Note a: Revenue from contracts with customers are analysed as follows: fista: REBFPFAHNWELTWOT :
(continued) (&)

0] Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

0] moWmER (8)
TRINRARE HREER
MBRASR ZZLER
WEHYEFAGNAR
A :

2019 2018

—E-hF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T

Direct sales and gross revenue from B & $HE RS EEHE
concessionaire sales B 782,389 771,447
(i) Performance obligations (i) BREE

Sale of goods and commissions from concessionaire sales HEEmRFTEEBEE

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations were RMB685,792,000
as at 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB782,389,000), which
are all expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable
consideration subject to constraint.

Note b: Commissions from concessionaire sales are analysed as follows:

zoliik

BHERBGREEZ I
HBREEPRERX-

R—ZZE—NALF+=A
=t+—RB 528 THE%
BAEETHR HER
B AR ¥685,792,0007C
—E-NF:ARE
782,389,0007T ) ' BT R
—FRERAERZE X
Frig BT T eEZR
HE ] BB

ffto : A EEHEMES T T :

2019 2018
—B-hE

—ZE—N\F
RMB'000
ARBETIT

RMB'000
AR®T T

Gross revenue from concessionaire sales 43 5F S48 5 & 48 Uk 25 8,963,992 9,961,302
Commissions from concessionaire sales  HFEFrE B E M4 1,429,023 1,624,127
c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H
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REVENUE, OTHER OPERATING REVENUES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

W HKERBURSBE
B (E)

Revenue (continued) Wz (8)
Other operating revenues Hih R S
2019 2018
—EF-EFE ZT)\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Credit card handling fees ERRFEE 48,685 56,290
Promotion income 185U A 72,306 80,760
Electricity and water fees BENKE 126,934 143,426
Administration fees THER 89,404 83,954
Display space and equipment leasing income & $5 35 #h & 5% 5 F & Wg A 61,783 48,584
Service fees R & A 25,897 24,126
Government grants (Note) BT B (B 5E) 8,953 8,141
Other income Ha g A 23,553 30,065
457,515 475,346
Note: BT -

Various local government grants have been granted to reward the Group for
its contributions to the local economy. There were no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies attaching to these government grants.

Segment information

For management purposes, except for the consumer financing
business carried out under Parkson Credit mainly in Malaysia, the
Group has a single operating and reportable segment, which is the
operation and management of department stores in the PRC. Except
for credit services, revenues from external customers are generated
in the PRC and all significant operating assets of the Group are
located in the PRC.

As the consumer financing business in Malaysia and other
companies out of the PRC do not have a material impact on the
Group's results based on a measure of revenue, net profit and total
assets, respectively, for management purpose, there is no need to
disclose a separate operating and reportable segment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

BiAT (&) 78
A EEOBA (B51E) /R
B (3t A) THIBB B

2019 2018
—®-hE —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE AR®BTT

Cost of inventories recognised as

FER B F ERA

expenses 2,270,490 1,979,633
Staff costs excluding directors’ and BEIAN (TEBEESEK
chief executive's remuneration BREATEME)
Wages, salaries and bonuses TE& #H& MEA 488,148 502,328
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIMH K 58,193 66,529
Social welfare and other costs 12 fE I K B At AR AR 110,065 105,530
656,406 674,387
Directors’ and chief executive's EXNEREHNTEMNS
remuneration (note 7) (B 5E7) 10,235 9,829
666,641 684,216
Depreciation and amortisation P& K 5 696,674 265,408
Impairment of receivables JE W BR BORU(E 21 14,871 2,439
Reversal of impairment of other H th i U BR FORL (B B O]
receivables 22(b) (43) (6,071)
Impairment of property, plant and M- BE &R ERE
equipment " - 7,843
Foreign exchange differences, net bE H ZRRE 25,719 869
Lease payments not included in the Rt AHEBEFEDN
measurement of lease liabilities: MERNK:
Minimum lease payments * =EHEE* 18,435 793,572
Contingent rents ** SRS 95,498 143,755
113,933 937,327

cc

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED mmmxzmaRa=a 165



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

5.  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 5. Biplt (BA) FBE(E)

2019 2018
—E-EFE —T)N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TFRE AR®BTRT

(Gains)/losses on disposal of items of  HEWE  BE KEREN

property, plant and equipment, net (F18) /518 58 (43,703) 17,363
Auditor's remuneration 2% SRR BN 3,913 3,888

Gross rental income in respect of KEMENES WAL

investment properties (3,807) (5,213)
Lease income in respect of sublease of AAZHEB TWXEBHE
properties under operating lease: WHES WA :
Minimum lease payments * w=IEHEE* (254,723) (299,945)
Contingent lease payments ** g A & (99,422) (100,865)
(354,145) (400,810)
Total gross rental income Bt A (357,952) (406,023)

Direct operating expenses arising from 1% & ¥ EE £/

rental-earning investment properties B & & 664 1,005
* Minimum lease payments of the Group include pre-determined * AEEREHEAcEEECHEE X
rental payments and minimum guaranteed rental payments for R IEE & 17 7 Bk AT S B i 8y
lease agreements with contingent rental payments. REHE -
o Contingent lease payments are calculated based on a percentage * HAES HRBEEERENAE
of the relevant performance of the tenants pursuant to the rental BREEEBTHERKES -
agreements.

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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FINANCE INCOME/COSTS 6. BMHEBA A&
2019 2018
—2-hEFE —F-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARET T
Finance income: B AU
Bank interest income RITH B WA 33,809 114,713
Gain on redemption of financial assets BEEAAEBENER
at fair value through profit or loss HEFH ABmZ
T REE WS 11,497 19,239
Change of fair value of financial assets BAREERER
at fair value through profit or loss HEHTABRZ
PRMEEZANBEE 1,515 5,948
Finance income on the net investments B SR E FEE MBI A
in subleases 28,590 -
75,411 139,900
Finance costs: BRSO
Interest on bonds BHF B - (32,270)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEARENFERX (425,040) =
Interest on interest-bearing bank loans ERITERRHEAER
and other borrowings Z T B (237.838) (175,786)
(662,878) (208,056)
c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

7.  DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE HEITERSRTHA
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS Ef&
Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed BEEBBERXIMBERRARRZS
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the EWRA(TETRA]) FEHERA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"), section 15451 25383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () Mz (& A &)
383(1) (a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (BEEEFHER) ROIFE 25T E
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about WEZREERTEFEMSOT

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-EFE ZZT)\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARETT

Fees we 1,499 1,494
Other emoluments: E i< :
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and other e A TEA R
benefits H {th 42 A 8,736 8,190
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE FT B - 145
8,736 8,335
10,235 9,829
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIFHMITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during FARBLIEHTEETINH
the year were as follows: BB :

2019 2018
—E-nE —ZEF)N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTRT ARBTRT

Mr. Dato' Fu Ah Kiow EERT/ELE 223 218
Mr. Ko Desmond Ko Desmond %t 4 223 218
Mr. Yau Ming Kim, Robert SRk E 223 218
669 654

There were no other emoluments payable to the BE-_ZEZ—hE+=-—RA=1+—
independent non-executive directors for the year ended 31 B L FE I 8 e T8
December 2019 (2018: nil). EHTEEHEE (ZZE—N

F:F)-

c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors and the

chief executive

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

EE HERITERSRITEHA
EM< (48)

(b) BTES FHUTESERERE
HITE

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
bonuses and scheme
other benefits contributions
56 28
AR Bie
e Hiig 7l FTEIft R ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®Tx AR¥ET AR¥BTT
2019 —T-NEF
Executive directors: WITES:
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem B EEEAR 215 3,008 - 3,223
Mr. He Dong AR EE
(re-designated on (R=ZE—NL%&
5 May 2019 and resigned on TARRERRE
31 October 2019) PTR-E—-N%F
+A=1+—H
B ) m 1,559 - 1,670
Ms. Juliana Cheng San San EMmat 215 2,400 - 2,615
541 6,967 - 7,508
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Mr. He Dong 3R % &
(re-designated on (R=ZE—h&
5 May 2019) TALRERME) 74 405 - 479
Dato’ Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SENEMBEAEL 215 8 - 223
289 413 - 702
Chief executive: BREHMTE:
Mr. Chong Sui Hiong (resigned SR Im i 5 4
on 1 February 2019) (R=FE—-h&E
ZR—HEE) - 1,356 - 1,356
830 8,736 - 9,566
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BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

7. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE-HEHTERSRITEA
EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) EME (&)
(b)  Executive directors, non-executive directors and the (b) HITEZ FHTEEREE
chief executive (continued) HITE (B)

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
bonuses and scheme
Fees other benefits contributions

eyt
TEAL R BRE
ik Htt gl stEIHE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE AREBTE AR®TR

2018 —E-N\E
Executive directors: HTES:
Tan Sri Cheng Heng Jem BT BEER 210 3,008 - 3,218
Mr. Chong Sui Hiong RInMLAE 210 - - 210
Ms. Juliana Cheng San San SE - 210 2,128 = 2338
630 5,136 - 5,766
Non-executive director: FMTES:
Dato' Sri Dr. Hou Kok Chung SENEMBEREL 210 8 - 218
Chief executive: BR#MIE:
Mr. Chong Sui Hiong R LA - 3,046 145 3,191
840 8,190 145 9,175
There was no arrangement under which any directors or the FARERTWNESHEEDN
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration TEREXREREETMAMNE
during the year. i 1 R 2 8k o

c o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SENIOR 7. EE HEITERSRITEHA

EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued) EMie (&)

()  Five highest paid employees 0 TEERESFHMESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included FARZ xS WEES B
two executive directors, details of whose remuneration are WETES ENSFFIBHE
set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of REN - RFEHEBK=Z (=
the remaining three (2018: two) highest paid employees T—)N\F WE) R FHNE
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the B (WERIFEARAEE IF
Company are as follows: EEREMITE)NMEFEN

T

2019 2018
—®-hE —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE AR®BTRT

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e REE A REMER

other benefits 7,523 4,334

Pension scheme contributions RREET B - 92

7,523 4426

The number of non-director and non-chief executive B F LA T 85 B /) & = 5 B

highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the EE (WHZEE TIIFEFHN
following bands is as follows: TEIMABNT

Number of employees

BEAH

2019 2018
—F-F =—T)\F

HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,000 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T
(equivalent to RMB1,792,000 to (HEER AE®1,792,0007T 2
RMB2,239,000) AR #2,239,0007T ) 1 1
Over HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to 2,500,000/ 7T (A&
RMB2,239,000) AR #2239,0007T) A £ 2 1
3 2
In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no key EEZRR BREXABEENE
management personnel (as defined in IAS 24 Related Party ENhERSFHENESI K
Disclosures) other than the directors and the five highest SEVELCMEMEZERE A
paid employees as disclosed above. 8 (FxRBEReERFE24

SREH K -
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required to participate in
the employee retirement benefit scheme operated by the relevant
local government authorities in the PRC. The PRC government is
responsible for the pension liability to the retired employees. The
Group was required to make contributions for those employees who
are registered as permanent residents in the PRC and are within the
scope of the relevant PRC regulations at rates ranging from 14%
to 21% of the employees' salaries for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

The Group's contributions to pension costs for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately RMB58,193,000 (2018:
RMB66,674,000).

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on the profit
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

During the year, seven (2018: seven) PRC entities of the Group
obtained approval from the relevant PRC tax authorities and
were subject to corporate income tax at a preferential tax rate of
15%. Under the relevant PRC income tax law, except for certain
preferential treatments available to certain PRC subsidiaries and
the joint venture of the Group, the PRC entities of the Group are
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
their respective taxable income.

An analysis of the provision for tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss is as follows:

EBIREFGE
AEENF R BRRHELXHEFAER
FERE H 75 BT BB Ve B BRI 1B
FErEl - FRBFEERZEDRIK
BEXNERE -BE-_T—NEFER
—E—)\F+-_A=+—HIFE"
AEBBACERKAETREAAER
MEBPBEERIIEENZSEER
BEH LN F14%Z=21%1 5 1 £ 5
HE o

BE-_T—hhE+-_A=+—HItF
B AEERRRENAEROAR
#58,193,0007C ( ZE— N\F: AR
66,674,0007T ) °

FRrig®

AEBERRAEKE RAREREESAE
KA ERTR RDAE R T E L ST
EVRE - I B PTS R

FRAEENLER(ZE—NF:
+XR)FP R EELES B BT SR
HOERWEBEEREHBNTCERS
FoBBEBPREMBHE BEASE
EETHBEWNBARLRAEDER
ZEETERFBIN NEBNFE
ERYARTESSANERTRAE
2500 ( = — )\ : 2500 ) B R 1
EMSH-

RiFaBRRBR AR EN DTN
~

2018

—E-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Current income tax RHEAPTIS 166,336 207,497
Deferred income tax (note 19) RIEFTISH (MisE19) (11,268) (27,048)
155,068 180,449
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FiBH (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit FRARRRI RERITDHE R RLE
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or jurisdictions) FrEBS (k5 AR ) 85 FER R
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are HEFR (ER) MNEZERR
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a ERY  EIRERRRAENTIER
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to THEER A RERH R (BAEMR
the effective tax rates, are as follows: R)EEBEHEMNLRAT
2019 —E-hE=E
British
Cayman Virgin
Singapore Islands Islands Malaysia Laos PRC Total
s CTE) BARE ] CE] 4%
RMB'000 RMB'000 ' RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARETR ARETR ARETR W ARETR W ARETR W ARMTR
[Loss)orofit bfore tax Hai(B8) /%73 (5,503) (1.002) (255,234) (1.890) 9,102 (7,115) 213,030 (48,612)
Taxat the statutory taxrate. AT HE5 EHFE (908) 165 (170) 170 - - - - 2,185 %0 (1423) 00 5357 250 5294 (108.9)
Taceffectof peferental ~~ EIHEMKHFHE
fax ates - - - - - - - - - - - S (agse)  (164) (3485 n

Profits and loses atrbutable  —FAERER
to:3 joint venture and BENTEENE

associates RER (1) 05 - - - - - - - - - - () 24 (5150 106
Toxlosses not recognised ~ WABRMHERE - - 170 (17.0) - - - - 164 18 1423 (200) 73780 W1 7587 (1553)
Tax losses previously recognised, AR B EEH

oW reversed HEBE - - - - - - - - - - - - 2,658 12 2,658 (55)
Talosses previouslynot~— EATARERME

recognised, now recognised ~ CERAFHABE - - - - - - - - - - - - (man) (568) (11,879 24
Eupenses not deductibe for tax AR FB(ERARBNMT 935 (17.0) - - - - - - - - - - 56 12812 (26.4)

Fffect of withholding tax on the ZEEFEHERF

dstibutale pofisof the ~ ATAEAE

Group's PRC subsidiaries btz 4 - - - - - - - - - - - - 838 29.7 63,228 (130.1)
Adjustmentsinrespectof St/ EAERE

curtent tax of previous frthiRE

oerods - - - - - - - -0 (1) - - 986 05 (216) 05

Tax charge for the year FEERETL - - - - - - - - 1147 126 - - 1539 723 155068 (319.)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

. ==
9.  INCOME TAX (continued) 9. FifE® (&)
2018 —E—NFE
British
Hong Cayman Virgin
Kong Singapore [slands [slands Malaysia PRC Total
B
&k i ] ki At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT \RBTT % ARETT % ARETT \RBTTT
(Lossorofit bfore tax Bl (B8)/H8 (3469) (120) [2228) (159 378 215) 36,185 125897
Taxat the statutory taxrate. AT HEF EMFE (572) 165 (20) 170 909 %0 (43) 00 88,046 50 87940 700
Taeffectof peferental ~~ BEREMHEYE
tax rates (31,099) (88) (31,099) (247)
Profits and losses atrbutable  —FIAERER
to: joint venture and BELREEHE
asstiates RER (15) 04 - - - - - b (17 (6008) ¢8)
Taxlosses not recognised AR HERE - - 0 (170) 91 2% m (2000 55303 157 55837 44
Tax losses previously recognised, 5 IR TIBEEEH)
oW reversed HREHE - - - 3692 10 3692 29
Talosses previouslynot R ATARERME
recognised, now recognised ~ EEBAFREEE - - - - - - - [4172) (12) [4172) (33)
Expenses not deductible for tx  AHBEEMRENERL 57 169 - - - - 39847 03 a0 301
Effect of withholding tax on the ASEREHBAF
disrbutable profits of e A ARFES
Group's PRC subsidiaries ~ THIBR S/ 3127 9% B %2
Adjustment in respectof S8/ BEMEHHE
current tax of previous fEiibRE
periods - 698 02 698 06
Tax charge for the year REERELL 1000 284 - - 17949 50 180449 184

The share of tax attributable to the joint venture and associates
amounting to RMB2,484,000 (2018: RMB2,875,000) and
RMB1,027,000 (2018: RMB2,249,000), respectively, is included in
“Share of profits and losses of a joint venture and associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,634,532,000 (2018: 2,634,532,000) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic loss per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

Loss &8

Loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent,
used in the basic and diluted
loss per share calculations

10.

AR EERELRR
BEEENSE AR
LTRkESFBEARGER

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

BATIEERESZEEAEWN
BREBE
EREAGBEDIBEFAS AR LR
BEZFBEABLEBEBURFEAES
AT I 38 AR OO0 #E - 15 $2,634,532,000
B (= — )\ 4F : 2,634,532,0000% ) 5t
ﬁ o

BREBEERIREFAS AR ER
PR E ARG EIRA R FARE 3
TTEBENEF O (MREFRER
EIEMFTER)  MEmB#EN
BELBRERETEXBRAER
BB AT ER TR EBINEFS
At E o

HE_Z—NFr=_ZE—\E+=A
—t—BIFE AEBTEDET
BB LR

BREANMETEROTEIIRET
578 R :

2019
—F-hF

2018

RMB'000
AR¥T

RMB'000
ARBETIT

(222,751) (79,283)

Shares gv)

Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEREREIERD
shares in issue during the year used in FABBTEBRMNE
the basic loss per share calculation 8

Number of shares

R4 & E
2019 2018

—E-NF

S
‘000 ‘000

B i

2,634,532 2,634,532
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11.
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W2 BB KRRE

Land and Leasehold Motor Equipment Construction
buildings improvements vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
THREF BENXEE RE REREE ERIR Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2018, net of WZE-\E-A-B"
accumulated depreciationand AR EFHHER
impairment e 2,605,281 310,552 4,988 138,436 738,335 3,797,592
Additions RE 206,200 47 804 18,788 70516 368,725
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-RHBAR = 430 = 1,895 - 2325
Transfer from investment RENFHA
properties 2336 - - - - 2336
Transfers from construction AR IREA
in progress 13521 43,098 - 9,923 (66,542) -
Disposals & - (12370) (125) (5,742) - (18237)
Depreciation charged during FRAEXE
the year (75,723) (140,091) (1817) (32,848) = (250,479)
Impairment provided FRRERE
for the year - (5,839) (187) (1.817) - (7.843)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ-\Ft=A
1 January 2019, net of =t-BR=F-h%
accumulated depreciationand ~ —A— 0 - S4B 25t
impairment FERRE 2,751,615 268,197 3663 128635 742,309 3894419
Additions RE = 53499 37 14,558 45,563 113,992
Transfer to investment REMEEA
properties (note 12) (Fr&E12) (273663) - - - - (273663)
Transfers from construction ~ MARTIREA
in progress 246 23,049 - 3,549 (26,844) -
Disposals HeE (51,726) (2797) (386) (10573) - (65,482)
Depreciation charged FRTEXH
during the year (81,230) (112,552) (1,136) (25,258) = (220,176)
At 31 December 2019, netof ~ R=Z—NETZA
accumulated depreciationand = 1+— B+ 1B &5t
impairment FERAE 2345242 229,39 2513 110911 761,028 349,090
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

11.

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

M BERRE(E)

Land and Leasehold Motor Equipment Construction
buildings improvements vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
THREF HENELE RE RERKE ERIR CH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 31 December 2018: RZZ-\F
t=A=t-A:
Cost KA 3,239,658 1,791,823 21,594 475,855 742,685 6,271,615
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZFTHTEREE
impairment (488,043) (1,523,626) (17,931) (347,220) (376) (2377,196)
Net carrying amount FEFE 2,751,615 268,197 3,663 128,635 742,309 3894419
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-1&
+-A=+-A:
Cost R 2770761 1,694,874 19387 408,729 761,404 5,555,155
Accumulated depreciationand ~ ZFTHTEREE
impairment (425519) (1,365,478) (16,874) (297,818) (376) (2,106,065)
Net carrying amount EHFE 2,345,242 229,396 2513 10911 761,028 349,090

All of the Group's land and buildings are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2019, the buildings of Qingdao Lion Plaza
and Tianjin Parkson with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB2,292.6 million (2018: RMB1,895.4 million) were pledged to
secure the Company's bank loans (note 28).

In view of the fact that the business of four subsidiaries of
the Group had been loss making in recent years and it was
not considered probable that profits would be available in the
foreseeable future, an impairment loss of RMB7,843,000 was
recognised for property, plant and equipment of the subsidiaries
with a carrying amount of RMB7,843,000 (before deducting the
impairment loss) in 2018. Impairment of RMB7,467,000 was written
off in 2019 and no impairment is recognised in the current year.

AREBMAE L REFHUNFE -

R-E—NE+-_A=+—H F&
CHESRRXZABRERFENS
AR¥E22026BB T (ZF—/\F:
ARM1854FEBIL)METF AR
RNRIRTTE TR ER (HiE28) -

ERNEFRAEENKMEB AR
HEE - BR A &R KA B
A - BWERRZE-N\FEHBRARZ
VE- -BEMZEERBEREEA
R#¥7843000c  HEEEEAARK
7,843,0007C ( RINFRBEEIERT) R
—E—NEFMEERE AR 7,467,000
TTEARFE I EERRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12. REYWHE

2019 2018
—2-hE —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR

At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:

Cost DN 392,839 35,196

Accumulated depreciation B i (89,547) (4,903)

Net carrying amount BREFEE 303,292 30,293
A reconciliation of the net carrying amount of investment FY R FERORE Y ZES R FEL
properties at the beginning and end of the year is as follows: BRA0T ¢

2019 2018
—2-RE ZF-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE AR®BTRT

Net carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHNEREFE 30,293 33,634
Depreciation e (664) (1,005)

Transfer from/(to) owner-occupied property A/ (EEZE) B HWE

(note 11) (BtEE1) 273,663 (2,336)
Net carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BREREFE 303,292 30,293
The Group's investment properties were revalued at approximately REENKREYWERAEEHLN =
RMB3.0 billion on an open market, existing use basis on 31 E—hNhF+-_A=+—HBHAHREMT
December 2019 by the Group. The investment properties are 5 REREREESHNAAREK0
situated in the PRC and leased to third parties under medium term BT - WEWELM A B AR R
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in HeHOHBETFE=7 EF15H

note 13 to the financial statements. EENI BRI T3 -
As at 31 December 2019, the building of Beijing Parkson with a net RZEBE—NFE+-_A=+—H 1x
carrying amount of approximately RMB286.8 million (2018: RMB3.0 BREEFENRARE2868BET
million) was pledged to secure the Company's bank loans (note 28). —E-N\F: ARK308ETT)WE
FRAARRARRITEREHER (M

7£28) -
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13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property and
other equipment used in its operations. Leases of property generally
have lease terms between 2 and 16 years. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually
of low value. There are several lease contracts that include variable
lease payments, which are further discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent lump sum payments
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owner
with lease periods of 42 to 45 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land
lease and are amortised on the straight-line basis over the
respective lease agreement periods.

As at 31 December 2019, the building of Beijing Parkson
with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB369.9
million (2018: RMB382.7 million) was pledged to secure the
Company's bank loans (note 28).

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

13.

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

HE

REEEREAA
AEEREXBEETRANENE
LEMREHEREHESN MEHE
MEEHRAEE R2E16F - Hith R
HAEREE A1218 A AR RS E
AEERE BNEERHNBRETE
HEMNK FBER I CE—Fatm e

(a)

(b)

FE 1 HFHE Z

ENTHAERRIEAOHER
ANESHB AT FHNRE
&t M 78 8 AR — R AT
FETERBEHELHBE
BE B BT A3 B 5
mMeERESEMNEERZHRA
LE AR R -

RZE—NF+_A=+—
A EREREEFEOAEA
R¥3699BE T (=T —N
F: AR 7AETT)HIE
FEHF BARAMARTT
ERRMHER (Hi5E2s) °

EHEEE
IXESAREERHEEEDN
FREEARAREERE):

Buildings

BF

RMB'000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2019 R—F—h&F—HA—A8 3,836,781

Additions arising from new leases HHEELENAE 20,538

Depreciation charged for the year REFHEER (456,900)
Decrease arising from lease term RS B R A% 1 E EE A B R

modification and termination (148,599)

Decrease arising from sublease EHEEERNRLD (3,631)

As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NF+=ZA=+—8H 3,248,189

c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. H&E (%)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBA (B)
(c)  Lease liabilities ) HHEEEF
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEBGENEREHEBERFANE
during the year are as follows: NN

Lease liabilities

HEESE
RMB'000
ARBET T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZZTE—-NF—A—BHNEEEAE 4,770,431
Additions arising from new leases MHEEANAE 20,512
Accretion of interest recognised FRERH NS IE N
during the year 425,040
Payments ES (730,556)
Decrease arising from lease term MHE R R 2 EE £ AR
modification and termination (145,196)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—HBMNEHEE 4,340,231
Analysed into: DT :
Current portion BVERER 5 474,677
Non-current portion FEBNERE 2 3,865,554
The maturity of analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEAGELMHEIHBBIR
note 39 to the financial statements. B 75 3R 3% BT RE 394 55 ©
(d) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (d)  RIEz A pHE R % 5840
are as follows: e

2019
—E-nE
RMB'000
AR® T
Interest on lease liabilities HERBEMNFE 425,040
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets CREEENITEER 456,900
Expense relating to short-term leases and A &R FHHPR —T—NF
other leases with remaining lease terms t A=+ HRZAERN
ended on or before 31 December 2019 SHHE REEENRX 18,435
Variable lease payments not included in WEFAHEEGFENAEHEENK
the measurement of lease liabilities 95,498
995,873
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

LEASES (continued) 13. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEEEREEA (B)
(e) Variable lease payments (e) A] #FH E 1150
The Group leased a number of the retail stores which AEBHEHFLZTER EF
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the BEERAEETEENEE
Group's turnover or profit before tax generated from the A o P 2E AR BR A AT A 9 AT &
retail stores. There are also minimum annual base rental MENKGER - ZEHETA
arrangements for these leases. The following provides BERFEERBES L TX
information on the Group's variable lease payments, REEEAEEZEENK
including the magnitude in relation to fixed payments: K& R BIEEE E A
Y81 -
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& E 4 ™ CE-oE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%®TR AR%®TxR
Fixed rent Ehaika 288,647 - 288,647
Variable rent with minimum payment 58 XM FH I EHE S 467,620 31,548 499,168
Variable rent only EE-Fikn - 63,950 63,950
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NE+-_A=+—H 756,267 95,498 851,765
f) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflows f) THERIR SR A &R
relating to leases that have not yet commenced are FIsmHEB B ARRIRE R
disclosed in notes 33(c) and 35(c), respectively, to the 95 RIS B 75 2R F 5133 (0) &2
financial statements. 35()HE R -
The Group as a lessor AEBERBEAA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 12) and right-
of-use assets in the PRC under operating lease or finance lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
15 years. The terms of the lease generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

AEBERBEL=HELMERE R
ERBEHEREREYE (HFE12) &
EREEE MERMNEEHRN T
1E5F-HEKRRBEEREFLX
HRES  UREBERNRITHRE
TERHSHE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

13.  LEASES (continued) 13. HE&E (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEEEREEA (B)
(a)  Operating leases () HEHE
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was REERFERNEROBE S WK
RMB357,952,000 (2018: RMB406,023,000), details of which A= A R #357,952,0007T (=
are included in note 5 to the financial statements. T — \F: AK%406,023,000
TC)  FETEE R B FS IR R MY 5
5 o
At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted fixed lease NRZZE—NE+=_A=+—
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under B ANE BN R REABAREE
non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as HEFPH TR HEKLEHER
follows: Wy R BE 3R B E M &~ R
T

2019 2018
—g-hE —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARETT

Within one year —F KN 179,729 226,764
After one year but within two years —FRERMEA 127,820 148,794
After two years but within three years MEBER=ZFA 69,804 109,947
After three years but within four years “FRERMNERA 51,359 91,370
After four years but within five years MERERAFNA 37,075 76,730
After five years hFi% 48,619 177,201

514,406 830,806

cc

182 W 2019 ANNUAL REPORT &%



13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

LEASES (continued) 13. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEEERERA (B)
(b)  Finance leases b) HEHE

The carrying amount of net investments in the subleases HHEEREFENREMERSF
and the movements during the year are as follows: NEBHMT :

Net
investments in
the subleases

HEE

REFHE

RMB'000

ARBT T

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZTE—-NF—A—BHNEEEAE 328,518

Additions arising from new leases MHEELANAE 4,512
Accretion of interest recognised F AR R F B 0

during the year 28,590

Proceeds from subleases iS5 KIE (62,833)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF+_A=1+—HHEREE 298,787

Analysed into: DT
Current portion B HAZR 7> 40,877
Non-current portion JEBNERER 5 257,910

R-E—AF+=A=+—
A - A B SR R 4R 4 5

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted fixed lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods under

non-cancellable finance leases with its tenants are as HBAFPHW TN REmEfErE

follows: Wiy R BE 3R B E B & 1 5
T

2019

—E-hF

RMB'000

AR®T

Within one year —FNR 61,988

After one year but within two years —FRERMEN 62,273

After two years but within three years MFRER=FNA 61,632

After three years but within four years —FRERNERA 62,785

After four years but within five years MERERAFA 59,876

After five years hF& 80,848

389,402

In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental Br EXFratsh - FRESAE S
amount is calculated on a percentage of the turnover or net BREEPHEZERIOFIED
profit of the respective tenants. X—BotksitHE-

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEREXEBEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14.

The movements of intangible assets are as follows:

BLEE
BVEENBEHNT :

At 1 January 2018, net of

R=Z-\E—A—H"

Goodwill
)

RMB'000

ARBTT

Computer
software
EREMH
RMB'000
ARETT

Licence*
e
RMB'000
ARBTL

Franchise
agreement™ Trademark **
BAEEHE B
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT

Customer
Relationship*™*
EFR&E™
RMB'000
ARBFT

Total

Ax

AR
RMB'000
ARETFT

accumulated amortisationand IR REFEER

impairment HE 1,755,889 755 3343 - - - 1759967
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-—RHBAR 14,649 = = = = 24,689 39338
Amortisation provided FREHER

during the year - (416) (411) - - (823) (1,650)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ2-N\F

1 January 2019, net of TZA=t-Bk

accumulated amortisationand ~ —E—AF—A—R"

impairment ENBR2HEHRAE 1770538 339 2932 - - 23,866 1,797,675
Amortisation provided B i

during the year - (269) (415) - - (4,938) (5622)
At 31 December 2019, net of RZZ-NE

accumulated amortisation and +-A=+-8"

impairment BNk 2 EERAE 1,770,538 70 2517 - - 18,928 1,792,053

Computer Franchise Customer
Goodwill software Licence* agreement™ Trademark™ Relationship*™* Total
BE EREH Bl BEEEHE e EFR&E™ &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTT ARETL ARBTFL ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
At 31 December 2018: RZZ-N\F
tTZA=+-A:
Cost KA 2,254,533 19,420 28,678 6,177 36,009 24,689 2,369,506
Accumulated amortisation and 2 EHRAE
impairment (483,995) (19,081) (25,746) (6,177) (36,009) (823) (571,831)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,770,538 339 2932 = - 23,866 1,797,675
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-n%
+=A=+-8:
Cost AR 2,254,533 19,420 28,678 6177 36,009 24,689 2,369,506
Accumulated amortisationand R EHRAE
impairment (483,995) (19,350) (26,161) (6,177) (36,009) (5761) (577,453)
Net carrying amount BE%E 1770538 70 2517 - - 18928 1,792,053

c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

14.

* Among the balance, there was amount of RMB19,510,000 related
to the licence rights of "Quiznos", "The Library Coffee Bar" and
“Johnny Rockets" which have been fully impaired in prior years.

*¥

prior years.

Franchise agreement and trademark have been fully impaired in

A subsidiary acquired by the Group in 2018 has established

relationships with its customers through contracts, for a period of
5 years commencing from 2018. The amount represents the fair
value of the customer relationship acquired by the Group.

Impairment testing of goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the
following cash-generating units:

oA
i
.

>

gE (8)

HEere o A K #19,510,0007T Y
% %4 8 [Quiznos | * [The Library
Coffee Bar | X [Johnny Rockets | A9
FEr AR MZSRTEENA
FEEBBRIE

FemaRARERBESF
R BURE °

AEER T N\FREN K
MEBAREBRANERRFPEY
BE BT \FRRPAF-
ZEREASBEMESEBRE
BWRAREBE-

KR E R
BENREECHRETIREESE

B

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. L 7E B A% LK
BEERAF (a) 381,682 381,682
Asia Victory International Limited EEHEAR A (b) 315,225 315,225
Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. BEREEERARNA () 297,097 297,097
Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre %111 K 8 & 2% B %7 70 /0
Co., Ltd. BRAE (d) 272,743 272,743
Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial FEERBAEEE
Co,, Ltd. BRAA (e) 155,066 155,066
Xi'an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. ALV EARES
BRAE (f) 111,104 111,104
Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. 4% = e B R RS
BRAF] (9) 91,478 91,478
Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. &[5 & B B ¥ E 5
BRAA (h) 72,491 72,491
Lung Shing International Investment & EERBERIREER
Development Company Limited AR AT (i) 59,003 59,003
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. (1) 14,649 14,649
1,770,538 1,770,538
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(d)

()

Jiangxi Parkson Retail Co., Ltd. principally engages in the operation
of one department store in Nanchang, the PRC.

Asia Victory International Limited and its subsidiaries principally
engage in the operation of two department stores in Kunming, the
PRC.

Parkson Retail Development Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of three department stores in Beijing and Harbin, the
PRC.

Anshan Tianxing Parkson Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. principally
engages in the operation of one department store in Anshan, the
PRC.

Nanning Brilliant Parkson Commercial Co., Ltd. principally engages
in the operation of three department stores in Nanning, the PRC.

Xi‘an Lucky King Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of one department store in Xi'an, the PRC.

Mianyang Fulin Parkson Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in the
operation of two department stores in Mianyang, the PRC.

Shenyang Parkson Shopping Plaza Co., Ltd. principally engages in
the operation of one department store in Shenyang, the PRC.

Lung Shing International Investment & Development Company
Limited and its subsidiary principally engage in property
investment and holding in Anshan, the PRC.

Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. principally engages in the hire purchase
and credit sale business in Malaysia.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by the executive
directors. Apart from Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd., a newly acquired subsidiary
in 2018, the post-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is
11.0%. The post-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections for
Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd. is 16.3%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.0%, which was the same as the
long term average growth rate of the industry.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT H£E#&HRE

14.

BEEE (8)
B HRER R ()
GEE

(a) TrEBERTLUEBEERRARE
ENPEBEERLE—RKBERE-

(b) EZEERERARMENE QR
TERTHEEALEMKAE

JE o
(c) ARBEERERAREERT
BitREkERELE=RAE

JE o

aj

/N
TZRFERLULE—FKBE
JE o

(e) MERBARBERRARTE
RABEELE=RAEE-

(f) AXVEARESARARLIE
RABEALEE-—RAERE-

(9) wMEERARESARARIE
RABREREMRAERS -

(h) B ARBYESERARTIE
RAPBEEGRE —FKBEE-

(i) ERFEERREERBBRARRE
MBAREEZRHEELLEY
EREER -

() Parkson Credit Sdn. Bhd.== & A 5 3
PROR /S & TR R ARG T o

EHREELEBEM AN E SR IIREME
HEEZRREeR=EIEE Bens
FEB IR BEMTESE I ERE T FH
Fi1 B B Bk T8 &L VE ) © F& Parkson Credit Sdn.
Bhd. (—RR_ZE— NEHWEHHEBE A
AN RERETEINERARBITIRE
/511.0% ° Parkson Credit Sdn. Bnd IR & i &
FER A E AR EITE R AB163% B H A
FHRME S RE ARG R E2 00fHEHE -
EHEFEARPFHIERERAR -



14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Key assumptions used in the value in use calculation

The following describes the key assumptions of the cash flow

projections:

Revenue:

Gross margins:

Operating expenses:

Discount rates:

The bases used to determine the future
earnings are historical sales and average
expected growth rates of the retail market
and credit services in the PRC and Malaysia,
respectively.

Gross margins are based on the average
gross margins achieved in the past five
years immediately before the budget
year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market
development.

The bases used to determine the values
assigned are the cost of inventories
purchased for resale, staff costs,
depreciation and amortisation, rental
expenses and other operating expenses.
The value assigned to the key assumption
reflects past experience and management's
commitment to maintain the operating
expenses to an acceptable level.

Discount rates reflect management's
estimate of specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

With regard to the assessment of values in use of the respective
cash-generating units, management believes that no reasonably

possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause
the carrying amounts, including goodwill, of the relevant units to
materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
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BEEE (&)
ARG EEAEENEERR
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Wi AREEARANNE
R ABE B EREIUAR
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BH)fEET
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

eI EEFE

Share of net assets

RMB'000
ARBTT

RMB'000
AR®TT

26,934 28,517

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

AEBERELEFHBUOT:

Percentage of

EETHSENED L

Place of
registration

and ownership
Paid-up capital  business interest

&
MRER LenY FEEER
Xinjiang Youhao Parkson Development RMB20,000,000  The PRC 51

Co,, Ltd. (*Xinjiang Parkson") AERE20000000

MERFARREERERDT
(IHEaEl)

Although the Group has ownership of more than half of the voting
power of the subject entity, the joint venture agreement establishes
joint control over the subject entity. The joint venture agreement
ensures that no single venture is in a position to control the
activities of the entity unilaterally.

Xinjiang Parkson is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group, and is accounted for using the equity method.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT FE®RE

Profit
sharing

Voting
power

Principal
activity

MEE  FEXER

51 51 Operation of

department
stores
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BEAEEHEERERNBLHR
R AEMIREARREFBER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

15.  INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 15.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Xinjiang Parkson adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
financial statements:

R-—XEELENRE (&)
TERBREENEARNIEER
ER S BEREM E R IEL AR
KR EM BRI ANNREE

2019
—E-NF
RMB'000
ARET
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEY 147,295 57,017
Other current assets B mEEE 21,284 115,551
Current assets mEEE 168,579 172,568
Non-current assets ERBEE 78,229 13,270
Financial liabilities, including trade, TREE BEES.
other payables and provisions H A~ FRE N B (101,327) (82,941)
Other current liabilities HngasE (42,523) (45,298)
Current liabilities nREBE (143,850) (128,239)
Non-current liabilities ERBAEG (50,145) (1.683)
Net assets BEFE 52,813 55,916
Reconciliation to the Group's interest AEBREECENERLER:
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE B REL G 51% 51%
Group's share of net assets of the joint AEBEEEELEEETRE
venture 26,934 28,517
Total operating revenues KR AR 172,262 177,871
Purchases of goods and changes KEEMRFEE S
in inventories (65,256) (66,833)
Depreciation and amortisation Hr 8 Ko g (26,021) (3,844)
Operating expenses LIER (47,828) (76,266)
Finance income THIA 5,129 6,448
Finance cost B 7% B 25 (6,760) =
Tax I8 (4,871) (5.637)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRMEREZEBALE
for the year 26,655 31,739
Share of profit of the joint venture 15 —RE LB ENHE 13,594 16,187
Dividends received 2 W% 8 15,177 17,931
Share of tax attributable to the joint venture &G —R& &R EFIIE (2,484) (2,875)
cC
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. REEQTPRE

2019 2018
—B-F ZFN\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE AR®BTRT

Share of net assets before impairment e REREEFE 59,351 52,374

Impairment of investments in associates REEE R AR ERE (17,582) (17,582)

Share of net assets JEEEEFE 41,769 34,792
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: EEHERRNFEBOT

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
registration attributable  Principal

Paid-up capital and business to the Group  activities

AL, AEEENG
A REE PR B R &

BEER HhE Batk TEEH
Parkson Newcore Retail Shanghai Ltd. RMB80,000,000  The PRC 49  Operation of
("Parkson Newcore") AR #80,000,000T outlet stores
BRAVBREEEE (LE) 18 B RN
BRAE ([BEATR])
Parkson Newcore, which is considered a material associate of the BAERANR (EKRENEIERERK
Group, is engaged in operating and managing outlets stores, and is R EeAEEBEEH L NG
accounted for using the equity method. AR EEITERIE -

cc
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16.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Parkson Newcore adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the

16.

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

REENRNRE (8)

TRBLABERAATEANMBE
B gt BRI ERELT
BURHRESE M ERRANRE

consolidated financial statements: 1B

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBET T
Current assets REEE 192,061 166,966
Non-current assets EREEE 454,714 85,162
Current liabilities mEasE (199,873) (176,932)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (366,482) (8,885)
Net assets BEFE 80,420 66,311

Reconciliation to the Group's interest in AREBENEE R AR R AR

the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEBFTBREL G 49% 499
Group's share of net assets of the associate 7N %5 [ JE (G Bt & N A B E R A 39,406 32,493
Carrying amount of the investments KEMEREE 39,406 32,493
Gross revenues FENl gy 902,270 842,895
Profit and total comprehensive income FRMEREZEBAEE

for the year 14,108 15,885
Share of profits of the associate iR RN P e 6,913 7,783
Share of tax attributable to the associate BB = AR IE (1,018) (2,205)

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

g
RN

RIS QT IRE ()
TRHBAEBER TS LREER
AN AR B AR

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR®ETFTT
Share of the associates' profit for the year — FE{GE & A B1F N F)E 161 91
Share of the associates' total EIEEE AR 2 ERA BT
comprehensive income 161 91
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's ~ AEBR B L R AR EH
investments in the associates FREARE 2,363 2,299
17.  OTHER ASSETS 17. HiEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—EF-N\F
—E-hEF +=A
—A—H =+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR%T T AR®ETF T
Lease prepayments BT & (a) 175,421 104,814 132,657
Net investments in the ~ BEFHER & FEE
subleases (b) 257,910 289,858 -
433,331 394,672 132,657
Notes: Bt 5

(a)

This represents the long-term portion of lease prepayments. As
a result of the initial application of IFRS 16, lease prepayment
of RMB27,843,000 previously included in "other assets" and
RMB52,921,000 previously included in “prepayments and other
receivables”, respectively, were adjusted to right-of-use assets at 1
January 2019. Refer to note 2.2(a) to the financial statements for
further details.

This represents the long-term portion of net investments in the
subleases. As a result of the initial application of IFRS 16, the
Group recognised net investments in the subleases amount of
RMB328,518,000, including RMB289,858,000 included in "other
assets” and RMB38,660,000 included in “prepayments and other
receivables”, respectively, as a result of the sublease contracts
classified as finance leases.
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(b)

EERBAEREHEHBS AR
B R B 755 3 25 22 Rl 381655 BV B X
JER - ERIEtATEMEE] A
R #27,843,0007T & 5C BT AT A [ T8
NREBEREMERZKEI AR
152921000 TENHEEAES
—E-NF—A—HNEREE
E-BHlE— T ER2HYE®
RHEE2.2(a) ©

EHEEHEREFENRBAL
7o A B BR B R 5 ZE R %16
FHNEAER A5EEERE
THERE F 5 AR 328518000
TCoBRERATEMEE] A
R #289,858,0007T M 5T A [ 38 +
RIE R H A E U GRIE ] B A R E
38,660,000 ' JYH R EHE S 4
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18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS IN PRINCIPAL GUARANTEED DEPOSITS

Investments in principal guaranteed
deposits in licensed banks in the PRC
(Note)

IR B R IRTTEY
RATFHKE (MIFE)

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

REERKRE

2019 2018
—E-NF

—E—)N\F
RMB'000
ARETIT

RMB'000
ARBT T

250,050 664,780

Note:

These investments in principal guaranteed deposits have terms of less
than one year and have an expected annual rate of return of 3.53% (2018:
3.38%) on average. Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices, the
investments in principal guaranteed deposits are capital guaranteed upon
the maturity date.

As at 31 December 2019, there were no investments in principal guaranteed
deposits pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans (31 December
2018: RMB125.0 million) as detailed in note 28.

B AT -

ZERDIGFHIRENHR DR —F - FAH
2FERRFH H3530 (2T — N\ F:
3.380% ) ° RIFAEEE L SBA - (RAFRK
FEMNRSHE A B RERE -

R-E—hE+-_A=+—8 A&EEL
ERATFREEEARBABRITER
MEHE(ZE—NF+=ZA=+—H: A
R#12508 &) @ sHI5 SR HIzE28 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 19. BEBEEERAE

Recognised

in the
Balance at Effect of Balance at  consolidated Balance at
31 December adoption 1 January  statement of 31 December
2018 of IFRS 16 2019  profit or loss 2019
i

i
FMEBRME —F-hF
BERD —-A—H ERGE
AN AE2 e  BRERER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 VE RMB'000
AR®TRL AR®TR ARE®TR ARMTR AR%TR

Deferred tax assets: BT BEE
Depreciation ik 2,085 - 2,085 (182) 1,903
Accrued other expenses st % 3,906 - 3,906 2,510 6,416
Accrued rental expenses EEERAST 160,882 (160,882) - - -
Right-of-use assets and TREAER
lease liabilities HEARE - 157,551 157,551 20,029 177,580
Accrued coupon provision B EEAEE 6,823 - 6,823 (41) 6,782
Tax losses HIEER (a) 12,880 - 12,880 22,025 34,905
186,576 (3.331) 183,245 44,341 227,586
Deferred tax liabilities: ELERBRE:
Depreciation e (10,141) - (10,141) 2,004 (8,137)
Fair value adjustments IhE-10- NG
arising from acquisition FREE 4 H)
of subsidiaries AAEERE (247,116) - (247,116) 6,066 (241,050)
Compensation for HELRE
policy-based relocation fES (9,440) - (9,440) 9,440 -
Withholding taxes BB (b) (13.417) - (13,417) (50,583) (64,000)
(280,114) - (280,114) (33,073) (313,187)
(93,538) (3,331) (96,869) 11,268 (85,601)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 19. EZEMREEERESE (B)
Recognised in
the consolidated
Balance at statement of Balance at
1 January 2018 profit or loss 31 December 2018
i
i —T-N\&
—E-N\F =
—H—H BREA =+—-H
k=333 BaRER H &5 2R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax assets: EETHBEE:
Depreciation e 2,318 (233) 2,085
Accrued other expenses H it et 6,282 (2,376) 3,906
Accrued rental expenses agiikab3 161,311 (429) 160,882
Accrued coupon provision i EREREE 6,733 90 6,823
Tax losses HIEES (a) 23,458 (10,578) 12,880
200,102 (13,526) 186,576
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFEARE:
Depreciation e (12,139) 1998 (10,141)
Fair value adjustments arising from  ARBB I B A RIFTE £
acquisition of subsidiaries MO EERE (243,609) (3507) (247,116)
Compensation for policy-based BERUERERES
relocation (9,440) = (9,440)
Withholding taxes AMH (b) (55,500) 42,083 (13417)
(320,688) 40574 (280,114)
(120,586) 27,048 (93,538)
Notes: P AT -
(a) The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of (a) HRAREEBR-_Z—NE+=-B

tax losses arising from overseas subsidiaries of RMB15,298,000
(2018: RMB6,500,000), including amount of RMB9,230,000 (2018:
RMB2,115,000) that will expire within three years, RMB1,062,000
(2018: RMB379,000) that will expire within seven years and
RMB5,006,000 (2018: RMB4,006,000) that are available indefinitely,
respectively, for offsetting against future taxable profits, and tax
losses from the PRC subsidiaries of RMB1,259,048,000 (2018:
RMB1,156,336,000) that will expire within the next five years, as
it was not considered probable at 31 December 2019 that taxable
profits would be available against which such tax losses can be
utilised.

=+—HBRAETATLESTH
R IBEENERFEFE
B AR TS SN B A R EE A K 8
RRFERFRAENHEBEBEAR
#515,298,0007T (=& — /A F : A
K #6,500,00070) (BEHR=F
A EIEA A A K #9,230,00070 (==
— \E: AR #2,1150007T) * #
REFAEIHH A K 1,062,0007T

—ZT— \F: AR#379,0007T)
N % BR B ] AR AY A R #5,006,000
T (=ZZF— /\F : A R#¥4,006,000
T0) ) A RFEF BB AREL
BRARRAFAREPHNFHEIBEE
A R #1,259,048,0007T (ZZF— N\
£ AR #1,156,336,0007T ) FE R
EERIHEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

19.

20.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 19. EXEHEEEREE (E)
Notes: (continued) ek : (4&)
(o) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding (b) RIEFBEEEMERHE RE
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from A b A 37 B 90 7 3% B 1 ZE R N
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. The & & T IR S A 4100089 FE T
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to Be-ZBEEE_EEN\F—H—H
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of RER - HBRAR=ZZTLF+=A
5% may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and =T—HBZEEENRF A E
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group is liable for HAINRIEEERE A ERE]
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries A B U5 T - B AT 3E A 5008 B
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from 1 TEIH X - AEEBEERTPEA
January 2008. MK NZENBARIR-ZEE
NE—A—RARBREEMNBNAS
K EY AR S TR0 A o
At 31 December 2019, deferred tax liability of RMB64,000,000 has RZE—hFE+=-A=+—8"
been recognised for withholding taxes. Other than that, no deferred BT TIE B 5 A K #64,000,0007T
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be ERTENT B o BRit 250 - I
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding 4 o R 7K 5 B 72 Fh B A b AR 37 A
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries and joint ventures established in B AR MEEDEAMMIEBIN
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable T B 2K BE 22 7 m FE A B9 TR0 AR
that these subsidiaries and joint ventures will distribute such BRIELERIB - BEHRAE ZSH
earnings in the foreseeable future. BRARIREEREDKTRENA]
RARRDIREBEF -
INVENTORIES 20. 7
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Merchandise 72 an 366,245 332,240
Consumables JH R iR 23,658 23,507
Impairment BB (5.862) (5,664)
384,041 350,083
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES (continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of inventories are as
follows:

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

& (F)
FEREREBHESHOT

2019 2018
—2-nE —ET-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTFRT ARETT

At the beginning of the year F 1) 5,664 19,983
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEER 198 -
Written off £ il £ - (14,319)
At the end of the year FR 5,862 5,664

Included in the above provision for impairment of inventories is
the provision for individually impaired inventories of RMB5,862,000
(2018: RMB5,664,000) with a carrying amount before provision of
RMB13,437,000 (2018: RMB7,543,000).

EH\LLT“?}E%‘E%&%MI%JSWTEF
B E AR %58620007T (ZF —
F: AR¥5,664,0007T) ° E%ﬁauﬁﬁ
& A AR #13,437,0007T (ZF—

& AR¥7543,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

21.

BB 5 KA

2019 2018
—ZE-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TE
Current B &3

Third party EF=hA 267,493 294,659
Impairment A (1,957) (4,476)
265,536 290,183

Non-current JEHNEA
Third party F=H 85,388 94,295
Impairment DERED (6,906) (2,699)
78,482 91,596
Total HEt 344,018 381,779

Trade receivables of the Group mainly arise from purchase by
customers with credit cards and credit services arise from loan
receivables. The credit period of trade receivables is generally
one month. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Among the
balance, RMB260,184,000 are with an interest rate range from 9%
to 19% depending on the payment term of loan receivables, while
others are interest-free.

Included in the balance as at 31 December 2019 were trade
receivables from the joint venture and an associate of
approximately RMB194,000 (31 December 2018: RMB195,000) and
RMB350,000 (31 December 2018: RMB350,000), respectively, which
are attributable to the consultancy fee income of the Group. These
balances are unsecured and interest-free.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT E£E®HE

AEERKESFBEBEERERETF
LMEBRMEE AR RIRRERE R
MIEERK - EKE SHIENERE
—AE—EA AEEHENKREE
FEWBR RS BRI 1 Wk B R E
B PI AR EREEERKE - 8 H
HEHhmmREREETHEN - EEE
P BB RAEE 2 BIE FFRIAR
BAEZTIEEL B ESEESP
MEERB AEETEREERE
SHRBEHRIFETMER RN EME
ERBoEHT - AR®260,184,000
TCHY F T A F900 % 190 » 3% F| R EUR
REWERNERBR MEKAER

=1
N

R-ZFE—NE+_A=+—0 &8
BRASEZABBRAEBLKRES
ELENBERAINEKRE S RIE
D R# AR B 194,000 (ZF— N\ 4F
+=—HA=+—H: AR¥1950007T)
M AR#350,000 (ZE—N\EFE+=
A=+—8: AR#%350,0007T) °#%
LB AEEEREE -



21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

FEWE SRIE (&)

RBER REZAHARMREE
BB RKE S HIEZ Rk 5 a0
T

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Within 1 year —FE R 265,536 290,183
1to 2 years —EMFE 64,537 68,778
Over 2 year R PA 13,945 22,818
Total @at 344,018 381,779

The Group applies general approach for the impairment of trade
receivables. Under the general approach, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date based on three stages to measure
expected credit losses. The Group determines whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of
trade receivables or whether an asset is considered to be credit-
impaired and, hence, whether it needs to provide for 12-month
ECLs or lifetime ECLs. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

AEBBLE 5 W IR RERA —
RITE-RE-—RITE RERER
HAAR B = (EPS BOETTRE DT MAGT
ERHEERBR -AEEEFTEER
HERE HRUHEAREERRES
ERZEM REERTRES/EE
ME FAtEEEEREMR12EARE
HEEBEAFRABREEER
FHEE R Rt ERR BB R 0L
R -TENFEEEARN RSB H
AESEBBEEMH SRR LY
REZBEA N TR S IR [ A] 32 5
MER-BEME M85 EKFR
B —F B AR TR EIMITIE
B A T LAMES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

In the situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. Set
out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the

Group's trade receivables:

As at 31 December 2019

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)

21. EWEZHEGE)
EEEBDEREERNNATELER
REWMERT RS EREENE
SEEERE RAEEXR AR
HEEBE BEXIEHAEARR
B AT B R SR AL AL B0 TR (40
ER) ARBEREKESREAZEE
&R BT

R-B-hA&+=-A=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

financial financial

assets assets

FRATFEHY

EEEE FRABS

-kFE FEEE-

BE FERE

SREE SEEE
BHEEBEX 0.84% 8.25% 37.95% 2.51%
Faes(ARETT) 320,650 20,358 11,873 352,881

BHEEEE

(ARETT) 2,678 1,679 4,506 8,863

As at 31 December 2018

Expected credit loss rate
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)

R-ZZ-NFE+-A=t+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial

ECLs assets assets

FRATEH

EEBE FRABH

A —FEE FEBE-

BHEE WE FERE

BiE SREE SHEE
BHEEEEX 0.04% 9.42% 34.17% 1.84%
FESE(ARBTT) 339,498 39,897 9,559 388,954

BHEEBE

(ANR®FT) 149 3,760 3,266 7.175
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21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

2. EWEZHREE)

Under the general approach, an impairment analysis is performed BE—RAE REREBHRE=
at each reporting date based on three stages to measure expected B R EITRED T LAsTETEHE
credit losses. Set out below is the movements in the loss allowance EEE-ASERKESRIBREBEL
for impairment of the Group's trade receivables: BREEGBEHEHIIMOT

As at 31 December 2019

R-ZE-NA&F+=-A=+—H

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - not ECLs -

credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial
ECLs assets assets

FRAEHY

FEEER FRAEY

28R -#FE FEBR-

BHEE mE EERE
BE SREE <RHEE At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR

At the beginning of year E 5 149 3,760 3,266 7175
Impairment losses HEEE 2,529 (2,081) 14,423 14,871
Written off s - - (13,183)  (13,183)

2,678 1,679 4,506 8,863

As at 31 December 2018

Lifetime Lifetime

ECLs - ECLs -

not credit credit

impaired impaired

12-month financial financial
ECLs assets assets

FRAEHY

EEEE

1A  —3FEE

REEE BB
BlR SREE 2R Aast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTE ARBTT ARBTT

At the beginning of year 1) - - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BB A A 13 2,858 4,761 7,732
Impairment losses HEEE 36 902 1,501 2,439
Written off ki - - (2,996) (2,996)
149 3,760 3,266 7,175
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H
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22. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. FAfRRERHEMERKIE

31 December 1 January 31 December

2019 2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

+=—H Z—ZE-hF +=AH

=+—H —HA—H ==

Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

B 3 ARET T ARETIT ARETIT

Lease prepayments EHEE (a) 76,369 86,986 139,907
Utilities and rental deposits KEBEHE RS 97,283 98,964 98,964
Advances to suppliers BEEREUE S 74,272 82,613 82,613
Prepaid tax HBRBIE 16,234 4,633 4633
Interest receivables FEY T & 24,786 59,690 59,690
Other prepayments HitbTa {508 47,269 48,958 48,958
Net investments in the subleases EHEREFE @) 40,877 38,660 -
Other receivables H fth e Y 5118 51,618 63,636 63,636
428,708 484,140 498,401
Impairment allowance BE RS (b) (7,896) (7,939) (7,939)
420,812 476,201 490,462

Less: Lease prepayments wTENEE 76,369 86,986 139,907
Less: Advances to suppliers R+ TR 4 R R TR AT 3R 74,272 82,613 82,613
Less: Prepaid tax BRI 16,234 4,633 4633
Less: Other prepayments W B TR A 47,269 48,958 48,958

Financial assets included in ST AE A M FIER

other receivables NEmEE 206,668 253,011 214,351
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22.

28

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Please refer to note 17 for the effect of initial application as at 1

January 2019.

The movements in the provision for impairment of prepayments

and other receivables are as follows:

22.

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

ANREARH A EWRFIR
(%)

B &

lxz.q/

(a) ERBERERRN-_Z—NLE—A
—HMTE F2HEMFE17 -

(b) T BRIB R B M SRR
BEOHEBOT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E2-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥ T AREFIT

At the beginning of the year F9 7,939 14,010
Reversal of impairment losses BB R R B O (43) (6,071)
At the end of the year F R 7,896 7,939

For financial assets included in other receivables, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate
is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate as at 31

December 2019 was 3.8% (2018: 3.7%).

FEAEMEYRFIBENEREE
s E2EALENELEIEL
% RAEEEAGATRBER
B8 - R R TVEHEARRER
AL BAR AR EAR R TR (203
R)-R_F-hF+-_A=+—
HEEEER3.80 (ZF—\F:

3.7%) ©
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITOR 23. A AEBEEHHSH A
LOSS BERveREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Wealth management products B Em
Balance at 1 January R—A— B & 544,593 1,604,430
Addition during the year FARNE 1,757,513 2,907,910
Redemption during the year FREMD (2,052,860) (3,973,695)
Change in fair value of financial assets at AR BEFEAHEH
fair value through profit or loss AABRZEREELZ
ARBEED) 1,515 5,948
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—Hm&e 250,761 544,593
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

23.

24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (continued)

The wealth management products are managed by licensed
financial institutions in the PRC to invest principally in certain
financial assets, including bonds, trusts, cash funds, bond funds or
unlisted equity investment issued and are circulated in the PRC in
accordance with the related entrusted agreements.

The investments are measured at fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The gain on the change in fair value of
RMB1,515,000 (2018: RMB5,948,000) is credited to “Finance
income" in the current year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TIME DEPOSITS

23

24,

BRAARBESEEESHFTA
BRzseslEE (8)

% IR n B P BT R B AR
ERMERHRER TERERE
TEREE BENPEBTNAE
ZEF ER - REeEL BEFER
HIFLTARRAEE

RBEHR ZERERAAEBE
HE-ARNEBEZEHRZARE
1,515,000 (ZZE— N\F: ARK
5,948,0007T ) 1A AN F & 51 A [ B 7% 4
A

BeRBESEEBYRERER

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR®EF T
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEER 788,901 1,112,087
Short term deposits ySRRER 2,416,089 1,116,130
Long term deposits RHAGFER 787,899 1,433,142
3,992,889 3,661,359
Less: Pledged short term time deposits B RETERITERERRD
for interest-bearing bank loans 2 HA TE HifE 3R (400,118) (380,729)
Less: Pledged long term time deposits B RE BRITERIEERD
for interest-bearing bank loans R HTE BT X (787,899) (1,433,142)
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B BARREIHBRR
original maturity of more than three =EAMEERNTEHER
months when acquired (539,364) (303,134)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBREEEY 2,265,508 1,544,354

The cash and bank balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB3,965,223,000 as at
31 December 2019 (2018: RMB3,483,474,000), which is not freely
convertible in the international market. The remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's time deposits with a carrying
amount of RMB1,188.0 million (2018: RMB1,813.9 million) were
pledged to secure the interest-bearing bank loans as detailed in
note 28.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. BNESZNRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows: BN E SHRERNERRDTOT

2019 2018
—2-nE Z—ET-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTET

Within 3 months =EAR 1,059,831 1,281,771
4 to 12 months mzE+—{E@A 48,663 44,346
Over 1 year — LA F 28,069 28,649
1,136,563 1,354,766
26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HttENHIBERESTEE

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018

= s —B-N\E
t=A =%-A% +=5

=+-8 -A-A =t-8
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTFT  ARETT  AREBTR

Rental payables RS (a) 19,532 59,405 92,812

Other tax payables Hofth e A< B 18 44,793 49,942 49,942

Deposits from suppliers HEEEe 145,924 151,831 151,831

Construction fee payables JEREES 55,327 82,324 82,324

Accrued salaries and bonuses st & RIE4L 46,023 40,824 40,824

Accrued interest FEFT A B (c) 11,219 3,831 3,831

Provision for litigation settlement AR A BB E (b) 10,000 10,000 10,000
Other payables and accruals Hofth FE 1 5RIE K

FEETIEE (©) 304,951 287,951 287,951

637,769 686,108 719,515

c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

26.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As a result of the initial application of IFRS 16, accrued lease
payments of RMB33,407,000 previously included in “other payables
and accruals” were adjusted to the right-of-use assets recognised
at 1 January 2019. Refer to note 2.2(a) to the financial statements
for further details.

The balance represents the provision for litigation settlement,
payable to a fellow subsidiary of the Group.

Other payables and accruals included a one-year loan to Parkson
Credit granted by PHB with an aggregate amount of RM3,000,000,
equivalent to RMB4,886,000, which is due in April 2020, and
accrued interest of RMB208,000 with a fixed interest rate of 6.18%
per annum is included in accrued interest.

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26.

27.

Hitb B FREREFTEE

&)
GEE

[ A

(a)

(b)

(c)

R B BR B 75 iR & 22 Bl B 1655
R RER  Ealat ATH MR
NHREREFEEINARK
33,407,000 EAEE T — L&
—A—BERNEREEE -
E—FHBREL2HMERRNE
2.2(a) °

ERIEERNARER R E QA
B ER AR E B -

HAb e OB K 1B B B E5PHB
% F Parkson Creditd) —FHRE k42
% 58 AT $53,000,0007T (FHER
AR #4886000T) AT -F
FH AR AREEFEFERA
6.18%#Y & 51 F1] B, A K #208,0007T
Bat A FIB -

BRNEE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —FT-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Prepayment from customers B FKIE 664,126 759,500
Provision for loyalty points programme A B B a2 B 21,666 22,889
685,792 782,389
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 28. FTEEITER
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
—E-hE —E-\F
+=A=+-H +-A=1+—H
Maturity RMB'000 Maturity RMB'000
A AR®ETx A ARETRT
Current D
RM secured bank loan DS RTENGERRT 2020 25,479 2019 21,424
L —B-EF “FNF
HK$ secured bank loan DB TRHER BB 2020 173,786 2019 169,982
B i “FNF
HK$ current portion of long term bank LA T EMREFTER 2020 781,137 2019 55,732
loans - secured HANE IS — B HAE —ECEF “E-NF
US$ current portion of long term bank A TLitEK R HRTEX N/A - 2019 48,042
loans - secured HENERE > — B TER —E-NF
RM current portion of long term UHE R ENRBRITE 2020 31,186 2019 26,466
bank loans- secured ALY -EHE —B-EF “E-NEF
1,011,588 321,646
Non-current FEENHR
HK$ secured bank loan PABTTRMER B BB RTT 2021-2022 2,923,891 2020 259,356
¢ “E--§ZF “E-ZF
—E-CE
US$ secured bank loan PAETFHMER B E B RT N/A - 2021 3,344,325
X TER —E-—F
RM secured bank loan DPME R EMNEEMET  2021-2022 89,992 2020-2022 117,560
¢ —E--FZ% “T-ZFE
—E-CE —E-
3,013,883 3,721,241
4,025,471 4,042,887

2019 2018
—®-RE ZF-NF

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETRT

Analysed into: AT
Bank loans IRITEX

Within one year or on demand —F AN EK 1,011,588 321,646
In the second year F_F 1,063,125 259,356

In the third to fifth year, inclusive E=EFRHEF
(BEEEMSE) 1,950,758 3,461,885
4,025,471 4,042,887

cC
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued) 28. RIEBRITERE)
Notes: Bt 5
() The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to (a) ANE B AR A AR A R IR AR

RMB99.3 million (2018: RMB353.6 million) as at the end of the
reporting period.

(b) Certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's investment property situated
in Beijing, which had an aggregate carrying value at the
end of the reporting period of RMB286.8 million (2018:
RMB3.0 million);

(i) mortgages over the Group's buildings, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period
of approximately RMB2,292.6 million (2018: RMB1,895.4
million);

(iii) mortgages over the Group's prepaid land lease payment,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB369.9 million (2018:
RMB382.7 million);

(iv) the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits and
principal guaranteed deposit amounting to RMB1,188.0
million and nil, respectively (2018: RMB1,813.9 million and
RMB125.0 million, respectively).

In addition, a subsidiary of the Group, Parkson Retail Development
Co., Ltd., has guaranteed certain of the Group's bank loans up to
HK$3,900.0 million (2018: nil) as at the end of the reporting period.
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29.

30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SHARE CAPITAL AND TREASURY SHARES 298

Number of
ordinary shares

EBREE

000
Ti

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

BRAEREER

Nominal value
HE
HK$'000
TEL

RMB'000
ARBTT

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each FREE0.027%8 LA L B 7,500,000 150,000 156,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHR
At 1 January 2019 and RZZ-NF-A—AK
31 December 2019 —T-NEF
+-A=+—-H 2,634,532 52,691 55,477

A summary of movements in the Company's issued share capital
and treasury shares is as follows:

Number of
shares in issue

ERTROHE

'000
T

At 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 R=ZE—AF—A—H &
“F-NFt-A=1—H

2,634,532

ARRIEBITIRAREFROEEHH
AR

Issued
capital
ERITRE
RMB'000
ARETT

55,477

No transactions occurred in the Company's issued share capital
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 100 to 101 of the financial

30.

E-F-AFT-A=t+—AL
- ARTERTRABERER
%0
it 8
AREAEERBETEORESE

HEMGeaEsR-

statements.

PRC reserve funds

(a)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of
the Group's joint ventures which are established in the PRC
has been transferred to reserve funds which are restricted
as to use.

(a)

TEREARE
REBEFINGELENERER
FOER R BIRIZNAEE
BECEE KB MEERR
HAGRNEEES-

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

30.

RESERVES (continued)

(a)

(b)

PRC reserve funds (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, Sino-
foreign joint venture companies registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage, as approved by
the board of directors, of their profit after income tax, as
determined in accordance with PRC accounting rules and
regulations, to the reserve fund, the enterprise expansion
fund and the employee bonus and welfare fund. These funds
are restricted as to use.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of
the wholly-owned foreign enterprises (“WOFEs") registered
in the PRC is required to transfer not less than 10% of its
profit after tax, as determined in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the PRC ("PRC GAAP"), to
the reserve funds, until the balance of the funds reaches
50% of the registered capital of that company. WOFEs
registered in the PRC are required to transfer a certain
percentage, as approved by the board of directors, of their
profit after income tax to the employee bonus and welfare
fund. These funds are restricted as to use.

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
PRC domestic companies are required to transfer 10% of
their profit after income tax, as determined in accordance
with PRC GAAP, to the statutory common reserve, until the
balance of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, the statutory common reserve may be used to
offset against the accumulated losses, if any.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve represented the fair value
adjustments to the property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and lease prepayments which
were already owned by the Group before the acquisition
of the remaining 44% equity interest in Parkson Retail
Development Co., Ltd. in 2006.
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30.

wE ()
@ HEARS(E)

(b)

RIBAEBTBEDARIMOER R
RGP INEERRIHE
EEZSHAENBRT RIE
B AR A R AR B - KRR A
BHEMNBZE—F A DL E &
EREE BERERESUR
BEIEAREBNES ZFE
TR EHERS -

BIBMEBERBERRER R
FEAMNSIIEEE S
([N BERZE])EBBE
FREARSHEIN(THHA
REFFEDEEN LR
HB 2R E10nE B E AR
L HEESEHEIZAT
5 it & AR50004 1F o A A B 5
MR EBECEBECEESTS
HERMBRT  BRETESHRE
FEZ—TEOLLBARET
AREHIES - ZEEESHA
B BERG -

RIFRABEFBRER AR F
BANERRABBRETFEAR
GEHERETRRRATERZF
HilonwE R = EFE L AES B
FHeHEBENZ AR EME
50004 LE © PR 54 4H 8 A B
ERTEME TR EEA
Ber] AEEE R ERE (1
)

BEEMLRE

BEEMRREBENR_ZTRF
WiEaREFERERA AR
Tas0otE s AT B AKE D B
BRME BERREB KRE
MELRBNESHNRAREER

A%



31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 18 October 2018, the Group acquired a 70% equity interest in
Parkson Credit from a subsidiary of the ultimate holding company.
Parkson Credit is engaged in providing hire purchase and credit
sales financing to customers. The acquisition was made as part
of the Group's strategy to expand its market share of credit sales
business. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the
form of cash, with RM49,000,000 (equivalent to RMB81.6 million)
paid at the acquisition date.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Parkson
Credit as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

Blc

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

EKeHt
RZZE—N\F+A+N\B KEEH
BRETER AR —FEHB R A WE
Parkson Credit 7097 #= ° Parkson Credit
REARFRUENEREREEHE
BmE-WARWEALAEBBAEEE
HEEKMBHBEHBEH D Kk
ENBEEREBEURSEREE BNk
% B BB S I M E 1549,000,0007T (48
ERARESIEESE L) ©

U HE B B - Parkson Credit?] 5l &
ERBBEZAABENT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

LAt B B SR

“AEE

RMB'000

ARET T

Property, plant and equipment L E R e L] 2,325
Intangible assets B EE 24,689
Deferred tax assets RIETTEE E 1,662
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIBEEEY 10,788
Trade receivables fEU E B FIE 243,695
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE I H th & W I8 4,587
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIBEE (5,925)
Trade payables JERTE 5 IB (11,185)
Interest-bearing bank loans STRSRITEX (169,922)
Other payables and accruals Hth f& < 5008 K FEETIE B (5,028)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BEAREBEYERZAIBNEEFELES 95,686
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR M (28,706)
Goodwill on acquisition g B 2 g 14,649
Satisfied by cash AR & 3 ~F 81,629

The fair values of trade receivables and prepayments and
other receivables as at the date of the acquisition amounted
to RMB243,695,000 and RMB4,587,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and prepayments and
other receivables were RMB251,427,000 and RMB4,587,000,
respectively, of which a loss of loans of RMB7,732,000 was
recognised in trade receivables.

RUEBE BWESRBEREN
HREREMERRENAREBEED
Bl A& A K #243,695,0007 & A R #
4,587,0007T ° FE W B 5 FIE K FE
RBEREMEKRRBENESNBES
Bl & A R #251,427,0007T & A R
4,587,000 EFP ERBBARK
7,732,0007C E 1 FE U B 5 5K 18 iR

5
e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

31.  BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31. XEBE6 (&)

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB209,000 for this REEBRWESHEELE X KNG
acquisition. These transaction costs have been expensed and are AE#209,0007T - ZERXHKNAE X
included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statement HEIT RS EaRAARAE ML

of profit or loss. Fx e
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a HWENE AR ZERERED TN

subsidiary is as follows: ™

RMB'000
AR®EF T
Cash consideration BeRE (81,629)
Cash and bank balances acquired BRH e RIRITER 10,788

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in 5t ARBEBFIERETEZ

cash flows from investing activities RekREZBYRLFE (70,841)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in AAREEBMAGERERE

cash flows from operating activities W EIB R F KA (209)

(71,050)

Since the acquisition, Parkson Credit contributed RMB9,641,000 to B Us B8 =78 LA 2K » Parkson Creditid &

the Group's revenue and RMB1,315,000 to the consolidated profit 2 E—N\F+_A=1+—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2018. AAREE T B Uz A R%9,641,0007T

&R A FE A R #1,315,0007T ©

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year of MEBEEHN - — \FF Y%
2018, the revenue and the loss of the Group for the year would H£oBIAREBFRNWE REEE S
have been RMB4,418,711,000 and RMB41,956,000, respectively. B A A R #4,418,711,0007T &2 A R ¥

41,956,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

32. DIVIDENDS 32. KE

2019 2018
—g-nE Z—TN\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®BT T ARET T

Interim - nil (2018: RMB0.03) REH-—® (T \F:
per ordinary share AR#0037T) BERR - 79,037
Proposed final - nil (2018: nil) BRARE— &
per ordinary share —E-N\E:T)FEER - -
- 79,037
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. MEBHEREBXRME
FLOWS
(@)  Major non-cash transactions () FE}BREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash decrease to EXN AEBEHEEEEET
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB131,692,000 HERHNEREEEKHE
and RMB124,684,000, respectively, in respect of lease EaEMIIERESRMD DA A
arrangements for buildings for department stores (2018: A R 131,692,000 K A R &
nil). 124,684,000 (= Z — \ £ :
/) o

PARKSON RETAIL GROUP LIMITED BEREXEBEER QA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. HERERERME (H)
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) ELXEERETBNEEEE
2019 —E-hEF

Amount

due to the

L

Accrued holding

interest company

Interest- included in in other
bearing Lease  other payables payables

bank loans liabilities and accruals and accruals
Hin e

AR RER

EARER FEHIE R &

TR FEFFIEE# FE S B 2%
BITEX HEASE EstFE  EBRARMNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET ARETR ARETR

At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=A=+—8H 4,042,887 = 3,831 =
Effect of adoption of RmBR B RS
IFRS 16 il o o2 - 4,770,431 = =

At 1 January 2019 (restated) RZZ—NE

—R—R (K=E5]) 4,042,887 4,770,431 3,831 -
Changes from financing cash ~ BER & RE S
flows (100,746) (730,556) (227,616) 4,886
New leases e - 20,512 - -
Foreign exchange movements S E & 83,330 - (2,834) 210
Decrease from lease modification & &3 K
and termination RIFEERRD - (145,196) = =
Interest expense MEFR% - 425,040 237,838 -
At 31 December 2019 R_E-NF
+-RA=+-H 4,025,471 4,340,231 11,219 5,096

c e
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. BEBRERERMET (BE)
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) ELXEERETBNEEEE
(continued) (&)
2018 —T-N\F

Accrued

interest

Interest- included in
bearing other payables
bank loans and accruals

A AEAD

& FRIB 2

B FEET IR B &Y
RITER &5
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTTE AR®BTR

At 1 January 2018 RZZE—NF
—HA—H 788,743 3,162,523 26,183
Changes from financing BMERERE
cash flows 2,815,616 (3,077,639) (235,336)
Foreign exchange movements YN & &) 438,528 (84,884) 4,928
Interest expense BB = = 208,056
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+-—A=+—H 4,042,887 - 3,831
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSHRHLHAZE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement STARERERTNEERS
of cash flows is as follows: MR
2019
—2-NEF
RMB'000
AR T
Within operating activities KETEEN 213,796
Within financing activities BEEBNR 730,556
944,352

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33. BEBRERERMET (BE)
FLOWS (continued)
(d)  Total taxes paid (d CESfNHREHAE
The total taxes paid during the year is as follows: FAENRIBAERAT :

2019 2018
—E-NE —ZT-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE AR®BTRT

Operating activities: REEE
PRC tax paid B ERIE (153,028) (118,970)
Investing activities: wEEE:
PRC tax paid 2 A B IE (12,645) (75,098)
(165,673) (194,068)
34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. BEEEH
Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's bank loans are AEBRAEERTERTKIMEE
included in note 28 to the financial statements. SR EE N R T e VLR
35. COMMITMENTS 35. &g
(a)  The Group had the following capital commitments at the (a) AEERHEHREUTER
end of the reporting period: A

2019 2018
—E-NE —F)N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for: ERIA) BAREME:
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE 40,829 19,188
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 (b) R-EBE—NEFE+=-B=+—8
W& HERE
As lessee TERAMN
The Group leased certain of its properties under operating AEERBECEHELHHEA
lease arrangements. Majority of these leases had non- ETYWE-RBHZEHEN
cancellable lease terms ranging from 15 to 20 years and TRMEE BN F 152205 2
there were no restrictions placed upon the Group by M BEAEEMERIZSE
entering into these lease agreements. & 13 5% 1 S B E () BR )

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

35.  COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. A&¥E (&)
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 (b) R-E—-NE+=-—B=+—8H
(continued) HREERERE (8)
As lessee (continued) EREATN (&)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future REEBR-_Z—N\F+=HA
minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating =+—HRBEBFITZHT
leases with its tenants falling due as follows: ATEUE A E AW B R R &
EHESEENAT
2018
—ET-)N\F
RMB'000
ARETT
Within one year —FR 921,627
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ B -—Z2FAF (BIEHEME) 3,412,801
After five years HF1% 3,160,780
7,495,208
A lease that is cancellable only upon the occurrence of ERAEEAE TERIANAEIE
some remote contingencies is a non-cancellable operating AR RS BO R 249 /& B R B S sl a5
lease as defined under IFRSs. Pursuant to the relevant ERAREN T EBELEME
lease agreements, the Group is entitled to terminate the H-BEEBEBEERZE WE
underlying lease agreement if the attributable department BIEEFELERT IR TEEEN
store business has incurred losses in excess of a prescribed BB B B/ EEIEmE
amount or any department store will not be in a position to ERFEREER AIREBRR
continue its business because of the losses. R IE B RS
In addition to the above, the annual contingent rental M EXCRraisN FESKATRE
amount is chargeable at a percentage of the turnover or BEBAERR L EFEBRTA
profit before tax of the respective stores. MENE—B LT
(c)  The Group has several lease contracts that have not yet © AEBR=-ZFE—ILFE+=A4
commenced as at 31 December 2019. The future lease =t+—BH#®E R AFABRBE
payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts due MHEESHK - ZF T A HEEE
within one vyear is nil, RMB266,968,000 due in the second HAR—FAN - F_EFRHF
to fifth years, inclusive, and RMB740,424,000 due after five (BREEMF)RAFEE
years. HHARRBENRS A AE
A R #£266,968,0007T & A R #&

740,424,0007T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. ARG
(a)  The Group had the following significant transactions with (a) FR AEEEBEETETH
related parties during the year: BEARSWT:

2019 2018
—B-hE —T-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARBTRT

Royalty expenses R B S (i) 1,002 1,350
Trademark expenses B (i) - 58
Consultancy income EAd A (iii) 3,062 3,190
Property management expenses L EI=EN (iv) 9,577 9,730
Rental income e U A (v) - 49,119
Royalty income R WA (vi) - 121
Entrusted loans repayment EAXERER (vii) - 9,800
Interest income B U A (viii) 25,783 336
Payment for litigation compensation &2 FF AR E R (ix) - 90,000
Payment for business combination A HFEIN K (x) - 81,629
Loan E& (xi) 4,886 =
Interest expense AMERE (xii) 208 -

c o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

The royalty expenses are paid or payable to Smart
Spectrum Limited, a fellow subsidiary of the Company, for
the Group's entitlement to use the “Parkson” trademark in
the PRC.

Trademark expenses are paid or payable to F&B Essentials
Sdn. Bhd, an associate of PHB, for the Group's entitlement
to use “The Library Coffee Bar" trademark in the PRC. The
trademark expenses is nil (2018: RMB58,000) because of
the closure of these stores.

The consultancy income received or receivable from
Xinjiang Parkson, a joint venture of the Group, amounted
to RMB1,741,000 (2018: RMB1,869,000) and Parkson
Newcore, an associate of the Group, amounted to
RMB1,321,000 (2018: RMB1,321,000). The consultancy
income is determined according to the underlying
contracts.

The property management expenses are payable to
Shanghai Nine Sea Lion Properties Management Co., Ltd.,
an associate of the Company. The property management
fee of RMB9,577,000 (2018: RMB9,730,000) per annum
was charged according to the underlying contract.

No rental income is recognised in 2019 from Parkson
Newcore due to the adoption of IFRS 16, which was
recognised in interest income resulted from the net
investment in sublease.
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36. BBAOXE (&)

(a)

FA RSB R ETH
BARZWMT: (&)
P& -

Fﬂz

(i) FrafER X R A S B RH
BEEAEX]EmEmE
NN ARRR—KRAR
B B A AlSmart Spectrum
Limited 89 5K 15 ©

(ii) AEREAREERS
B & A [The Library Coffee
Bar | B iZ M E 7 =k fE
TPHBH) B & A B FeB
Essentials Sdn. Bhd &9 FXIE o
MR ZERGEER miZ
Y AZE(ZZ—N\fF:
AR #58,0007T) °

(iii) MASEHN—Re=a0%
198 B B U Bk FE U Y R
AU A B AR 1,741,000
T(ZZE—N\F: AR
1,869,0007T ) M [M AN 58 B )
—REE QA B RATE
I B Sk FE M R A B
AR #1321,0007T (==
—N\F: AR%1,321,000
T ) ° AU A TR A
BHETE °

(iv) MEETERIAEMNT
KNG H—REEE R A
EEBAEEHMMEERE
ERAGMHRIB - MEE
BEFF ARMI577,000
T(ZE—NF: ARK
9,730,0007T ) TR IEHEREE &
#Y U ER

v) ] 7 470 B % B 745 3R 45 #E B
FieH N _ZE—NLFW
MEERRE BB B
e A -EERERE
OB RRRE AW B UL A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

No royalty income is received or receivable from Entity
B Management Sdn. Bhd., an associate of PHB, for the
franchise of the "Franco” trademark (2018: RMB121,000).

The Group entered into two entrusted loans with Parkson
Newcore at an aggregate amount of RMB22,540,000
in 2016. One of the entrusted loans of RMB12,740,000
was repaid by Parkson Newcore in February 2017. The
remaining amount of RMB9,800,000 was repaid in
September 2018.

The interest income is received or receivable from Parkson
Newcore. The interest income in 2019 is resulted from the
net investment in sublease, and in 2018, it was determined
according to the underlying entrusted loans agreement.

The payment of litigation compensation is paid to
Serbadagang Holdings Sdn. Bhd., a fellow subsidiary of
the Group, in 29 May 2018. The litigation compensation is
determined according to the compensation agreement for
an equity interest ownership dispute with Dalian Tianhe
Building Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired a subsidiary, Parkson Credit, from a
subsidiary of PHB at a consideration of RM49,000,000,
equivalent to RMB81,629,000, based on an internal
valuation of the business performed by the directors of the
Company in 2018.
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BBRAIXS ()

FR AR T
ERXZWMT: ()

iEE: ()

(a)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

FRHaHERAREFK
& [Franco | & 12 if1 [
PHBHY B & A A Entity B
Management Sdn. Bhd.HzEX
Sk FE WY FRIB - R AT R IR
ARFRBZT(ZZT—N
F: AR#121,00070) ©

g S R AT A
—E-—RNFIUMMHZE
TER BEAARE
22,540,000 ' AR — B ZE
T E R AR 12,740,000
TEHBRAABNR =
—tFE-AEE-BREA
R #9,.800,000tEE R =&
—NFNAEE-

M BHA K A B B AL AT E
Yo BR 2% 8 U B SR IR o TR —
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REHEREFHREL "
MR- N\FHBKA
RERBEXERDEE

)

EREFDREEREER S
Z-NFRA=Z+NAX
NP AEERZRMMER A
Serbadagang Holdings Sdn.
Bhd. « AR F AR (E TH 1R
BEXEBERAIREGR R
AIREMEEFZ BN

REBRET -

AEBR-_ZT—N\FH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
SIFFERARMIEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEEAXRE (&)

The Group had the following significant transactions with
related parties during the year: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi) PHB granted a one-year loan to Parkson Credit with
an aggregate amount of RM3,000,000, equivalent to
RMB4,886,000, in April 2019, and charged a fixed interest
rate of 6.18% per annum. The principal is due in April

(a)

FA RSB R ETH
BARZWMT: (&)
B e (48)

(xi) PHBR —Z — NG M A [
Parkson Credit#% i 42 & %8
A R 7 4$3,000,0007T (48
SR A K #4,886,0007T)

2020. B—FHER LIREF
6.180%0 Y [&] T 7| & U BX F)
B AR _T_F
F P4 A H o
(xii)  The interest expense is paid or payable to PHB. The interest xi)  FERZBENHENT

expense is determined according to the underlying loan
agreement signed in April 2019.

The royalty expenses generated from a subsidiary of the Group
and the loan and related interest expense generated from the
ultimate holding company of the Group constitute connected
transactions and continuing connection transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, as these continuing
connected transactions represent less than 0.1% of the relevant
percentage ratios, pursuant to paragraph 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing
Rules, these continuing connected transactions are exempted from
the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements.

The consultancy income generated from the joint venture and an
associate of the Group, the property management expenses payable
to an associate of the Group, and the interest income generated
from an associate of the Group do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PHB - :Z A B i —F
—NWFENAFEENHEAE

iR EE -

7N £ B [T B A B FT 2 A O R AE
FRRAS RSB REERA A
FREAMERRA BN EFRXIE
KREEST G REERES S (F&
R EMABNE+IUAE) - 2A 1 -
HRZERERELISNEERT
o b RARR0.1% 1RIE TR B
14A76(1)()E - ZEHEBER S
BEHRRBSTHRN - FEEM 25
NI SRR WAL R E ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BAEAXRB (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) ARFREEEEBABEHMH:
Company:

2019 2018
—EF-EFE ZT)\F

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR ARETT

Fees we 1,499 1,494
Other emoluments: Eh B :
Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e RELTEAK
other benefits H fib 42 F 8,736 8,190
Pension scheme contributions RIRE FT I - 145
8,736 8,335
10,235 9,829
Further details of directors' and the chief executive's EENESTHAEMNE 2 &
emoluments are included in note 7 to the financial —HFHEEHRT B HRERN =T
statements. 70
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

37. E®MIAESE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial SR T AR ESEHRNIREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: N

AONE) 2018
—E-RE —ZT-N\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARBTT

Financial assets EWMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REHKATENEREE
Trade receivables W E 5 FIB 344,018 381,779
Financial assets included in prepayments FTATE R I K& H A FE UL
and other receivables RENSREE 206,668 214,351
Investments in principal guaranteed REERKRE
deposits 250,050 664,780
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEED 2,265,508 1,544,354
Time deposits EBER 1,727,381 2,117,005
Financial assets at fair value: EAnBEAENERHEE:
Financial assets at fair value through BEARBEFEEEZE
profit or loss AR EREE 250,761 544,593
5,044,386 5,466,862

2019 2018
—B-nE —B)\F

RMB'000 RMB'000

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans

Lease liabilities

AR®TR ARBTET

A y=R

REHEKATENeRaE:

BN E 55K 1,136,563 1,354,766
ST AE M FE T UE R
Eﬂﬁﬁm%ﬂﬁﬁ 90,964 178,968
B B3 4,025,471 4,042,887
ﬁﬁéﬁ 4,340,231 -

9,593,229 5,576,621

cc
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—hF+=-A=+—H

38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, investments in principal guaranteed
deposits, financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, trade receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by a director is responsible
for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The director reports directly
to the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
manager analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the director.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of time deposits and
interest-bearing bank loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank loans as at 31 December
2019 was assessed to be insignificant.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The
Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by
using a discounted cash flow valuation model based on the market
interest rates of instruments with similar terms and risks.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3. ERMIBAARBERAAEBE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B& (&)

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the MIEARBEFEBES T ABZE

following table gives information about how the fair values of ZERMEEMES  FRRREEBZSE

these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation TREENAABENNECNE

technique and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value B (R T A R (i B BT X 8 A 28

hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised B) UERBRBAABEFTFENHA

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair BB EREE  UoBEARBERT

value measurements are observable. ENARBEERKT (E—REE

=/ e

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F-E- RRASEESEENERMSEZ
for identical assets or liabilities BE(REHE ) E

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest F_E- REERMHE (BHEEIH
level input that is significant to the fair value BERBRHANEENEMNSE
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly BZyREEHALE)

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest F-E- REERWHE (BUATRER
level input that is significant to the fair value HARBEFEMSEEE L&
measurement is unobservable EEwAZE)

Fair value as at Level 3

RTIBHzAREE £=E
31 December 31 December ~ Valuation Significant Weighted
2019 2018 technique and unobservable average

—E-NF ZZ—\F key inputs inputs yield rate
Financial assets t+=A +-H ®ERETR EEZNFRT ¥
CREE =+-—H =+—H TEBAHE HEHAEE Iy 2% =
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBT T

Financial assets at fair value 250,761 544,593 Discounted Expected 3.64%

through profit or loss cash flows yield rate (2018: 3.62%)

- wealth management BEREER T8 H e (ZZ2—-N\%F:

products 3.62%)

BARBEFEAHEEH

ANEmZeREE

-~ B ER

¢ C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—NFE+=-A=+—H

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank loans, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, investments in principal guaranteed deposits, time deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities, such as
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments and
other receivables, trade payables and financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank loans with
floating interest rates.
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax and equity through the
impact on interest-bearing bank loans with floating interest rates.

898

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

BBEREREBEERBE

(%)

MERERE (E)
TREJHEMEERFIE A%
B RF B R BIRITERTE
MR BRI ERH N RSB e

(Increase)/

Increase/ decrease (Decrease)/
(decrease) in loss increase
in basis points after tax in equity
Hehwm, BREE R
GRA)  (#Em),mYd G, #Em
% RMB'000 RMB'000
b &= AR FIT AREFIT
2019 —E-hEF
HK$ bank loans BITIRITER 5 (1,939) (1,939)
HK$ bank loans BITIRITER (5) 1,939 1,939
RM bank loans MEFERITER 5 (73) (73)
RM bank loans MEFRITER (5) 73 73
2018 —E-N\F
HK$ bank loans BILIRTTE K 5 (243) (243)
HK$ bank loans BILIBITER (5) 243 243
US$ bank loans ETLIRITER 5 (1,696) (1,696)
US$ bank loans ETLIRTER (5) 1,696 1,696
RM bank loans MEFRITER 5 (83) (83)
RM bank loans MEFRITER (5) 83 83

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arises from
the Group's debt financing denominated in HK$, US$ and RM, other
than the units' functional currency.

Since the Group mainly engages in the operation of department
stores in the PRC, the transactional currency exposure arising from
sales or purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial
impact on the Group's loss after tax and equity.

SRS R
AEEHBRNIMNERRERRBAE
B AEMI DN REE M AN BT - £ T
EMERTHENESRE -

HRAKEEZNELLTENEE
J& - B ERIAA REIAING BEETTH
HESRBARZEREANEEBIEK
BENERTZETK-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. BKEREEEEREE
POLICIES (continued) (%)
IR R ()
TREJMEMESHFIE N
TZ-NF+A=+t—HBHAEE#ER
AL ETTMMEFERNAIGES
BEEHNHEE (ARERINE QA
R 248 N ISR A R
LASNheE BB E AN B4R A B %
WBEREINFTAHARE) -

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 December
2019 to a reasonably possible change in the HK$, US$ and RM
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's equity (due to the translation of the operating results and
financial position of each subsidiary with functional currencies
other than RMB into the presentation currency of RMB used for the
consolidated financial statements of the Group).

(Increase)/

(Decrease)/ decrease (Decrease)/
increase in loss increase
in US$ rate after tax in equity
EnER

(m2) BEEsE s
i ()RS OEL)
% RMB'000 RMB'000
bt & ARET T ARET T

2019 —EB-NF
RMB strengthens against US$ AR H EITTHE (5) (788) (788)
RMB weakens against US$ AREHETLEE 5 788 788

2018 —T_N&E
RMB strengthens against US$ AR K ETHE (5) 168,497 168,497
RMB weakens against US$ AREHETEE 5 (168,497) (168,497)

2019
RMB strengthens against HK$
RMB weakens against HK$

2018
RMB strengthens against HK$
RMB weakens against HK$

—E-NF
ARBHBTIE
ARBHBTRE

—E-N\F
ARBHETLIE
ARBRETLRZE

(Decrease)/
increase

in HK$ rate
BTER

(R,
3 hn

%

b

Decrease/
(increase)
in loss
after tax

BB

WA, (1ghn)

RMB'000
ARBTT

Increase/
(decrease)
in equity

R m
(RD)
RMB'000

ARETT

(5) 193,163 193,163
5 (193,163) (193,163)
(5) 16,293 16,293
5 (16,293) (16,293)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. XREMEEEERBEE
POLICIES (continued) (4&)

SEsEB ()

Decrease/
(Decrease)/ (increase) Increase/
increase in loss (decrease)
in RM rate after tax in equity

Foreign currency risk (continued)

MERBER BEER =B,
(m4) /1&m ®WP, (i) CRD)
%% RMB'000 RMB'000

b ARETT ARETT

2019 —E-NEF

RMB strengthens against RM AR SN ERFHE (5) 7,022 7,022

RMB weakens against RM AR M HFIzE 5 (7,022) (7,022)

2018 ZE-N\F

RMB strengthens against RM AR SN ERFAE (5) 7,957 7,957

RMB weakens against RM AR MRS HFIZE 5 (7,957) (7,957)
Credit risk EERE
The Group trades on credit only with third parties who have an AEEEHEASERAR S AW EHE
established trading history with the Group and have no history of RABHE=FETRER S - BE
default. It is the Group's policy that new customers who wish to REBENBEK BRERRERZHN
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. MEPHERKR  SHEERRA
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by analysis by customer/ BE/ RGUFHADMER - AEE
counterparty. There are no significant concentrations of credit B HRKFIBRFRZ 7B O &
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade BREREERR-

receivables are widely dispersed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. WBEREEEEREE
POLICIES (continued) (%&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BARMBEERERDE
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TR AEBENEEHRRNEE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which BENMNZAEERK  FEREEH
is mainly based on past due information unless other information BE (BRIFEMERTNEMEHTHBE
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging IR A RN AIELS ) KRR+ = A
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross =T —HZERBEESE HI e
carrying amounts for financial assets. REMEENREDRE-
As at 31 December 2019 R=-B-AE+=ZRA=+-—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B
BHEE
BB FHENEEESR

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

P& BR1 B Ex2 P& 3 Ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR%¥TR AR®TxR

Trade receivables e B 5 5A 320,650 20,358 11,873 352,881
Financial assets included in ST ATER I R E A
prepayments and other receivables EMHIEAN S REE 210,322 - 4,242 214,564
Investments in principal guaranteed  fRATFFRIXE
deposits 250,050 - - 250,050
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED 2,265,508 - - 2,265,508
Time deposits EHFR 1,727,381 - - 1,727,381
4,773,911 20,358 16,115 4,810,384

c e
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 898

POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —F—NF+=-A=+—H

%g@@%&@%&ﬁ%

RAEBRKEFRERDE(E)

R-ZFE-N\F+=-A=1t—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
BHEE
BB FHEMEEEE
NELN Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P& R 1 B B2 F& Ex3 et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT
Trade receivables W & 5 7 IE 339,498 39,897 9,559 388,954
Financial assets included in STATER FIE R E A
prepayments and other ERRIBANEREE
receivables 217,548 - 4,742 222,290
Investments in principal RETFREE
guaranteed deposits 664,780 - - 664,780
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED 1,544,354 - - 1,544,354
Time deposits EHFR 2,117,005 = - 2,117,005
4,883,185 39,897 14,301 4,937,383

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables and other receivables
are disclosed in notes 21 and 22 to the financial statements,

respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank
loans and lease liabilities. 18% of the Group's debts would mature
in less than one year as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 8%) based
on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the financial
statements. The directors have reviewed the Group's liquidity
position, working capital and capital expenditure requirements and
determined that the Group has no significant liquidity risk.

ERAEEBRKE S KB REME
WREEENEERRNE-—FE
{EBUR D B B 5 R B w21 S 223
Eﬁgo

HREBELRAR
AEBSEEBANABFERITER
MAEAE B#FESTEEHEE)
MBI FE - R T LF+=-A
=+—B BREMBERRPREAOE
EMRAE  AEBEBHI18%E R
—FREB(ZZE—/\F :80p) - =E
EEEHAEENRBES KR &
BESREARAT TR UHRALE
EYESRNRBHESER-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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31 December 2019 —Z—AF+=-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39. UIBEREEEEREE
POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBEeRKR (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the AEERFEHRNEBHEEERE
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted AARBAFOBNBERAT

payments, is as follows:

2019
—E-1F

Within 1t05 Over 5
1 year years years Total
—FR —Z5F BFEUE wt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBTRT AR¥TR AR®BTxR

Trade payables B8 558 1,136,563 - - 1,136,563
Financial liabilities included in A E At B 1 503 &

other payables and accruals BT HE AN SR AE 90,964 - - 90,964
Lease liabilities HEBE 701,973 2,894,533 2,620,494 6,217,000
Interest-bearing bank loans FFESRITER 1,165,781 3,200,891 - 4,366,672

3,095,281 6,095,424 2,620,494 11,811,199

2018
—F-)\%F

Within 1to5 Over 5

1 year years years Total
—FRN —ERHF RAENE maEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT

Trade payables e & 5708 1,354,766 = = 1,354,766

Financial liabilities included in other 5T A E 4t & {5 FR I8 &
payables and accruals EEfEEANSRAR 341,424 = = 341,424
Interest-bearing bank loans FTERITER 323,096 3,744,269 = 4,067,365
2,019,286 3,744,269 = 5,763,555
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains the Group's stability and growth.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
adjusted debt divided by the capital plus net adjusted debt. The
net adjusted debt includes interest-bearing bank loans, long term
payables, trade payables, contract liabilities and lease liabilities,
other payables and accruals less cash and cash equivalents, time
deposits, investments in principal guaranteed deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The gearing ratios as at
the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 39, BiIKERMEEEERBEK
POLICIES (continued) (&)
Capital management (continued) EARAEE (8)

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NEF —E-N\F

+=A=+-B  —A-B +=A=+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT  AREBTT  ARETx

Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 4,025,471 4,042,887 4,042,887
Long term payables KB e 2B = 57,323 727,970
Trade payables e E 5 FIA 1,136,563 1,354,766 1,354,766
Other payables and accruals H & A< 5RI8 K
FEETIER 637,769 686,108 719,515
Contract liabilities EHBE 685,792 782,389 782,389
Lease liabilities (Note) HEaE (M) 4,340,231 4,770,431 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents  J& : RE& RIS ZEY (2,265,508) (1,544,354) (1,544,354)
Time deposits EHTFER (1,727,381) (2,117,005) (2,117,005)
Investments in principal REGFEHEE
guaranteed deposits (250,050) (664,780) (664,780)
Financial assets at fair value BAREEE
through profit or loss BEEHTA
BazemEE (250,761) (544,593) (544,593)
Net adjusted debt R B FETS 6,332,126 6,823,172 2,756,795

Capital: equity attributable to BN :BARAE A

owners of the parent el = 4,230,661 4,524,766 4,509,939
Capital and net adjusted debt BN R AREFERS 10,562,787 11,347,938 7,266,734
Gearing ratio BEXRBENLE 60% 60% 380%

Note: The Group has adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective MiEE : AEEE RSB SR HERN
approach and the effect of the initial adoption is adjusted against BURR B SRS 2E RSB 1655 - B EIX
the opening balances as at 1 January 2019 with no adjustments to HRHEE VRN S — N F—
the comparative amounts as at 31 December 2018. This resulted A—B& A EETHE M
in an increase in the Group's net debt and hence the Group's T —_FE—-N\F+-_A=+—H
gearing ratio increased from 38% to 60% on 1 January 2019 when AL S B E T AR 5 EE
compared with the position as at 31 December 2018. AREEEFEBE N Hilk -

ZE-NFE+-A=+t—HBHRR
B AEEMNEARBELER

S — N — H— HH38%IEnE
609% ©
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40.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY  40.

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

I FS WM EE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AFE+=-A=+—H

D RHHRR R
AR RS R BB R
AR

2019 2018
—F-F ZF)N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMEBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RE R RHIKE 3,500,458 3,620,975
Total non-current assets ERBEELRE 3,500,458 3,620,975
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Prepayments and other receivables FEAS FRIE & H b e W 5k 0E 20,136 10,949
Cash and cash equivalents BehBEEEY 5,689 160,145
Total current assets MENE EEEE 25,825 171,094
CURRENT LIABILITIES neaE
Other payables and accruals H qth e 2B N EETIE B (5,071) (3,551)
Interest-bearing bank loans STEIRITER (781,137) (103,774)
Total current liabilities mEBEEE (786,208) (107,325)
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS nE (k) BEFE (760,383) 63,769
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES REERRBEE 2,740,075 3,684,744
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EMEBAEE
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIRITER (2,923,891) (3,603,681)
Total non-current liabilities EMEBBEBE (2,923,891) (3,603,681)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8l BEEFE (183,816) 81,063
EQUITY 5
Issued capital B 21T 55,477 55,477
Reserves (Note) e (BMIaE) (239,293) 25,586
Total (deficit)/equity @ (A R (183,816) 81,063
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
BAF5ERaRMEE (18)

31 December 2019 —E—AF+=-A=+—H

40.

41.

42.

43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

40.

ERAMBRRE (F)

GEE
AT EEHEDT -

Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
B 5 EE REEEF &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AREFT
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZE—-—NFE—H—H (405,763) 758,996 353,233
Interim 2018 dividend paid ENZZ—NFHERE - (79,037) (79,037)
Total comprehensive income FEZERKRABE
for the year (16,135) (232,475) (248,610)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ— N\
+=—A=+—H (421,898) 447 484 25,586
Total comprehensive income FEXERALRE
for the year (9,828) (255,051) (264,879)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—h4F
+=—A=+—H (431,726) 192,433 (239,293)
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. HEHERSBE

With the recent development of the coronavirus outbreak from
January 2020, the government of many cities in the PRC have
required entities to limit or suspend business operations and
implemented travel restrictions and quarantine measures. These
measures and policies have led to some department stores of the
Group postponed operations or shortened business hours since
the spring festival in 2020. Management is closely monitoring the
coronavirus outbreak progress and proactively coping with the
impacts on business operation and finance.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in note 2.2(a) to the financial statements,
the Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative
amounts in the financial statements were not restated and
continued to be reported under the requirements of the previous
standard, IAS 17, and related interpretations.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 24 February 2020.

2019 ANNUAL REPORT E£E®HE

42.

43.

BE T -_TFE— AURERESE
BRRIER  PRFZHTHOBRA
EERERRIIKNEEEKESL I
B MR TTBR Hll AR FE 1 o :Z S HE e
RECREHAEBONBLEEEE
T FRHUREEEESFEEE
¥RH-EEELETYERTRE
SRR ER URGEHEEKS
ERMBHTE-

bR E 8

AN EA T R Y 5 2.2(a) 3 — P RRRE -
AEBR-_T-NF—A—BEAK
EBUE W ER MBI B 75 3R & ERE
1658 o IRIEEZ TR ¥R AR
R REARKL B W EEBRIRTATER
B &5 ERIZE 1758 AR E M AERE R
BETE2®Re

B FE R R
BEEegN_E-_TF_A-+WMH
o MR REHI BB S TRk o
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